“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QEYRIi-BANK
KREDIT TOSKILATI MOHDUD
MOSULIYYOTLI COMIiYYOTi

Hor birinin nominal dayari 1000 (bir min) manat olan 6 000 (alti min) adad faizli,
tominatsiz, sanadsiz, adli istigraziarin

BAZA EMISSiYA PROSPEKTI

Qeyd: Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Markazi Banki bu Baza Emissiya Prospektinde olan malumatlarin
diizgiinliiylina gére masuliyyat dagimir ve nazarat orqant kimi onu geydiyyata almagqla yerlasdirilan
qiymatli kagizlara miinasibatini ifade etmir.

15 noyabr 2021-ci il



Baza Emissiya Prospektinin tartib edilmasinda istirak edon saxslar va

Baza Emissiya Prospektinda taqdim edilmis malumatlara dair

BOYANAT
Biz, asagida imza edanlar,

1. Bu Baza Emissiya Prospektini tartib etmazdan 6nce “Emissiya prospekti va
informasiya memorandumuna dair talablsr hagginda” Qaydalar ils tanis
oldugumuzu tasdiq edirik.

2. “Finca Azarbaycan” QBKT MMC-nin har birinin nominal dayari 1 000 (bir min)
manat olan 6 000 (altt min) adad faizli, teminatsiz, sanadsiz, adli
istigrazlarinin Baza Emissiya Prospektina daxil edilean malumatlarin hagigi
faktlar asasinda oldugu, heg bir faktin gizadilmadiyi va bunun {¢iin bitiin
lazimi tadbirlarin gorildiyl baradse tsminat veririk va masuliyyati 6z
Uzarimiza gotururik.

“Finca Azarbgycan” QBKT MMC-nin Direktoru:
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e Xabardarlq.

- Bu sanad Baza emissiya prospektinin giris hissasidir;

- Istiqrazlara investisiya etmak barads har hansi bir garar investorun Baza emissiya
prospektini oxudugdan sonra hayata kecirilimalidir;

- Baza Emissiya prospektinds olan malumatlarin yanlis, geyri-daqiq, ziddiyyatli
oldugu va ya Istigrazlara investisiya edib-etmamak barada garar veran investorlara
komak etmak magsadile asas informasiyanin verilmadiyi zaman Baza emissiya
prospektini hazirlamis saxslar miilki masuliyyst dasiyirlar.

1. Emitent haqqinda malumat
1.1. Emitentin tam adi: “FINCA AZSRBAYCAN” QEYRI-BANK KREDIT TOSKILATI

MOHDUD M3SULIYYSTLI COMIYY3Ti;
1.2. Emitentin qisaldilmig adi: “FINCA AZSRBAYCAN” QBKT MMC;

1.3. Emitentin dévlet qeydiyyat némrasi va tarixi: 25.11.1999 ci il; VOEN
1400494391
1.4. Emitentin oldugu yer va emitentin qgeydiyyatda oldugu 6lka: Azarbaycan,

Baki, AZ1014, Nasimi rayonu, Fizuli, ev 67

2. Emitenta va onun amaliyyat apardigi sahalars tasir edan malum tendensiyalarin
tasviri:
“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT MMC ssasan riteyl va mikro biznes kredit bazarinda
faaliyyat gostarir.

Hazirki dovrda kredit tasgkilatlarina asas tasir edan faktorlar olan valyuta
risklari va portfel keyfiyyati kimi faktorlar “FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT MMC-da
ganaatbaxs idara olunur.

Tagkilat aktiv inkisaf edir va alds etdiyi manfeatds son il ¢itddi artim misahila
edilir. Verilan kreditlarin sksariyyati, artan galira birbasa tasir edan daha yiiksak
faizli lizing ve mikro kreditlardir, belalikls sirkatin 6dema qabiliyyati artir.
Mumbkdin risklarin diversifikasiyasini artirmag magsadiyls taskilat kicik kreditlara
daha ¢ox 6nam verir.

“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT MMC, strateji olarag, kredit portfelinin
diversifikasiya tadbirlarini hayata kegirir. Diversifikasiya tadbirlari partnyor,



3.

region, sektor va digar meyarlar lizra hayata kegirilir ki, bu da kredit portfelinin
daha keyfiyyatli va risksiz idars olunmasi t¢iin dnamlidir.
Emitentin digar hiiqugi saxslarde movqeyinin qisa tasviri. Emitentin qrupda

olan saxslardan asili oldugu taqdirda bu barada geyd:

Emitent digar hiiquqi saxslarda istirak etmir.

4,

Galir prognozunun mévcud oldugu zaman bu barada geyd: Mévcud deyil.

Audit edilmis maliyye malumatlarina dair auditorun rayinin qisa tasviri:

Kenar audit rayina asasan, “FINCA AZSRBAYCAN” QBKT MMC -nin maliyys
hesabatlar butiin shamiyyatli aspektlar baximindan taskilatin il sonuna maliyys
vaziyyatini va hamin il Gzrs maliyys naticalarini ve pul vasaitlarinin harakatini
Beynalxalg Maliyys Hesabati Standartlarina uygun olaraq diizgiin aks etdirir.

Son l¢ maliyye ili arzinds har maliyys ili Gzre secilmis maliyya malumati
asasinda emitentin maliyys durumunun asas gostaricilari. Araliq dévrlar Gigiin
secilmis maliyya malumati verildiyi zaman avvalki maliyyes ilinda eyni dévr
barads miiqayisali malumatlar verilmalidir. Son darc olunmus audit edilmis
maliyya hesabatlarindan bari emitentin faaliyyatinds doayisikliyin olub-
olmamasi barads malumat. Araliq dévrlar liciin secilmis maliyya maliumati
verildiyi zaman avvalki maliyya ilinda eyni dévr barade miiqayisali malumatlar
verilmalidir.

(Azarbaycan manati ila)

Gostaricilar

Menfest/Zerer | 150 000y | 11,205,000 734.000
(vergidan avval)
Comi Shdelikler | 736,000 8,448,000 10,703,000

Cami kapital 7,608,000 18,687,000 15,501,000

Cami aktiviar 8,344,000 27,135,000 26,204000,

Pul vesaitleri 3,198,000 13,128,000 6,605,000




7. Emitentin 6dama qabiliyyatina tasir edan an son hadisalar:

Asagidaki cadvaldan goérundiyl kimi sirkatin galirliliyi durmadan artir va bu
tendensiyanin galan ilda davam edacayi planlasdirilir .

2021 2022
(Planlasdirilan)  (Planlasdirilan)

Gostaricilar 2018 2019 2020

Manfaat/Zarar

: (158,000) | 11,205,000 | 734,000 1,973,000 2,353,000
(vergidan avval)

Toskilatin  6dema qgabiliyyatine tasir eden ssas faktor kredit portfelinin
keyfiyyatinin ganastbaxs olmasidir. Asagidaki cadvalda 30 giindan cox gecikmis
portfelin kredit portfelina nisbati goéstaricisinin  illar Gzra dinamikasi
gostarilmisdir:

Gostaricilar 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2020
PAR>30 (mablag) 4,221,000 1,339,000 2,369,000
PAR>30/Portfel (%) 69.6% 10.1% 12.2%

8. Emitentin asas faaliyyatlarinin tasviri:
“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT MMC AR ganunvericiliyi ilo miayyan edilmis
gaydada qisa ve uzun middatli, taminatli va teaminatsiz kreditlar vera bilar.
Kreditlarin verilmasi Gglin muvafiq lisenziyaya malik “FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT
MMC, hamginin, asagidaki faaliyyat novlarini da hayata kegira bilar:
- Borc 6hdaliklarinin algi-satqisi (faktoring, forfeyting);
- Lizing;
- Veksellarin ugotu;
- Qarantiyanin verilmasi;
- Sigorta agenti xidmatlarinin gdstarilmasi (slave raziliq aldigdan sonra);
- Borcalanlara, o climladan, birga borcalan qruplarina maliyys, texniki,
idarsetma va maliyys masalalari lizra maslahat xidmatinin goéstarilmasi.

9. Mihiim istirak payina sahib olan saxsler tarafinden emitenta nazaratin
xusisiyyatlari:

Muassisanin nizamnama kapitali 100 (ylz) % payla bir saxsa maxsusdur.
Camiyyatin ali idarsetma organi onun istirakgilarinin Umumi Yigincagidir. Umumi



10.

Yigincag Emitentin faaliyyati ila baglh istanilan masalani miizakirs eda bilar.
Umumi yigincaq névbati va névbadankanar ola bilar.

Qiymatli kagizlar hagginda malumat

10.1. istigrazlarin névii: faizli, taminatsiz, sanadsiz, adli istigrazlar;

10.2. istigrazlarin valyutasi: manat;

10.3. Tadavil miiddsti: 24 ay;

10.4. istigrazlarla tasbit olunan mahdudiyyatlarin tasviri: Mévcud deyil.
10.5. istigrazlarla tasbit olunmus hiiquglarin tasviri:

Istigrazlarin  tadavil muddsti bitdiyi vaxtda lIstigrazin nominal dayarini
emitentdan almag;

istigrazin nominal dayarindan illik 12,5 faiz olmagqla, istigrazlarin tadaviil miiddsti
arzinda faiz galiri almag;

Emintentin lagvi, yaxud emitentin kreditorlarinin talablarinin 6danilmasinin
tominatina real tahlikaya sabab olan onun yenidan taskili barada garsr gabul
edildikds, habela Emitent muflis elan olundugda istigrazlarin nominal dayarinin
va hamin anadak hesablanmis, lakin, ddsnilmamis faizlarin vaxtindan avval
ddanilmasini Emitentdan talsb etmak;

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin ganunvericiliyinda nazards tutulmus digar hiiquglar.

10.6. istigrazlann faiz daracasi. istigrazlarin faizlerinin va dayarinin 6danilma

tarixi va middati: istiqrazlarin faiz daracasi 12,5% taskil edir, istigrazlarin faiz
odanisi istigrazlarin yerlagdirildiyi tarixdan hesablanaraq har 3 ayin (bir ay 30 giin
oldugunu gabul etmak sarti ila) tamaminda 6danilacakdir. istigrazlarin nominal
dayarinin 6danisi tadaviil middatinin sonunda édanilscakdir.

10.7. Istigrazlarin geri satin alinma sartlari: Emitent tarafindan istigrazlarin geri

satin alinmasi nazards tutulmur.
10.8. Galirin qisa formada hesablama metodunu géstarmakla galir gostaricisi:
istigrazlar Gizra faiz galirinin mablagi asagida géstarilan disturla miayyan edilir:

istigrazlar Gizra faiz galirinin mablagi asagida gostarilan diisturla miiayyan edilir:

TF=(N*D*G/360)/100

Burada,

TF- Bir istiqraz tizra toplanmis faizlar;

N- Bir istiqrazin nominal dayari (1.000 (bir min) manat);
D- istigrazlarin illik galirlik daracasi (12,5);
G-istigrazlarin faiz 6danis dévriiniin miiddati (90 giin)

N



10.9. istigrazlarin miilkiyyatgisinin tamsilgisinin adi-mévcud deyil;

10.10. istigrazlarin tanzimlanan bazarda ticarata buraxilmasi barads emitent
tarafindan miiracistin edilmasinin nazarda tutulub-tutulmamasi barads malumat:
Istigrazlarin kutlavi taklif Gsulu il ilkin yerlasdirilmasi Baza Emissiya prospekti va
muvafiq yekun sartlar dévlat geydiyyatina alindigdan sonra “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-
nin ticarat platformasi vasitasi ils hayata kecirilacakdir. istigraziarin listiga daxil
edilmasi ila bagl miraciat Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Markazi Banki tarafindan Baza
emissiya prospekti tasdiq edilib, buraxilis dovlst geydiyyatina ahndigdan sonra
edilacakdir.

11. Risk faktorlari

11.1.  Taklif olunan istiqrazlarla alagali bazar risklarini giymatlandirmak iiclin
zaruri olan risk faktorlar:

- Faiz riski- faiz daracalarinin manfi dayismasindan yaranan itki riski;

- Hesablagsma va kontragent riski- hesablagsmanin vaxtindan gec aparilmasi va
aparilmasindan avval kontragentin 6hdalikiarini icra eds bilmamasi sababindan
meydana galan itki risklari;

- Inflyasiya riski- pulun alicilig gabiliyystinin asagi dismasi ila bagl risk;

-  9maliyyat riski- daxili proseslar, sistem pozgunluglari, insan faktoru va xarici
hadisalardan meydana galan itki risklari;

- Kredit riski- borcalanin 6hdsliklarini yerina yetira bilmamasindan meydana galan
itki risklari;

- Likvidlik riski- muayyan anda aktivlarin satisi va ya alisi ila bagh ¢atinliklarin
yaranmasi miumkuinliyd;

- Tabii risk- insan faaliyyatindan asili olmayan risk (tabii falakat, fors-major va s.);

- Valyuta riski- valyuta kurslarinin alverissiz sakilde dayismasindan yaranan itki
riski.

11.2. istiqraz emissiyasi zamani emitentin ©6hdaliklarini yerina yetirmak
gabiliyyatina tasir eda bilan risk faktorlari

- Kaskin devalivasiyanin olmasi - mustarilarimizin 6hdaliklarin kaskin artmasi va
6dama gqabiliyyatinin kaskin zayiflanmasi, maliyys bazarinda durgunlugun
yasanmasi va pul axininin azalmasi asas risk faktorlarindandir.



12.

Toklif

12.1. taklifin sababi manfastin alds edilmasi ve ya bazi risklarin
sigortalanmasindan farqli oldugu tagdirds emissiyanin sababi-

Taklifin asas sababi Camiyyatin asas faaliyyati hesab olunan mikrokreditlarin
verilmasi il bagli faaliyyatin genislandirilmasi va manfaatin alds edilmasidir.

12.2. taklifin sartlarinin tasviri- Taklifin va yerlasdirmanin baslanma vs basa ¢atma
tarixlari:

- Yerlasdirmanin baslanma tarixi: yeni emissiya edilacak istigrazlar
Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Markazi Banki tsrsfindan dévlet geydiyyatina
alindigdan sonra yerlasdirmanin baslanmasina sn azi 2 is giini galmis harracin
bas tutacagi tarix “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin saytinda investorlara agiglanacaqdir.
- Yerlagdirmanin basa ¢atma tarixi: Harrac qaydalarina uygun olaraq “Baki
Fond Birjasi” QSC va anderrayter tarafindan elan edilan muvafig harracin bas
tutdugu glin. Taklifin sartlori barads atrafli maslumat bu Baza Emissiya
Prospektinin alavasi hesab edilan yekun sartlarda agiglanacaqdir.

12.3. emissiyada istirak edan saxslerin maraglarn, o ciimladsn maraqlarin
toqqusmasi, barada atrafli malumat-

“Baki Fond Birjasi” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati

Emissiya prosesinds istirak edan “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC yeni emissiya edilmis
istigrazlarin listinge daxil edilmssi, harrac vasitssila istigrazlarnin ilkin
yerlasdirilmasi, hamginin takrar bazarda alqi-satqisi tiglin pesakar kitlavi ticarati
taskil edir.

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC 2000-ci ilds qapali sshmdar camiyyati formasinda tasis
edilmis va 21 iyul 2000-ci il tarixli “fond birjasi faaliyysti” —ni hayata kegirmaya
icaza veran 5 sayll muddatsiz lisenziya asasinda Azarbaycan Respublikasi
arazisinda qiymatli kagizlar va térama maliyya alstlari Gzra kitlsvi ticaratin
pesakar taskilatgisi kimi faaliyyat gostarir. “Baki Fond Birjas’” QSC-ds dovlst
giymatli kagizlari bazari, korporativ giymatli kagizlar bazan ve térama maliyys
alatlari bazarlar mévcuddur.

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin faaliyysti AR Mulki Macallasi, Qiymatli Kagizlar Bazari
haqgqinda AR Qanunu, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin digar hliqugi-normativ aktlari
va “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin nizamnamasi va daxili Qaydalari ila tanzimlanir.



Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi (bundan sonra-MDM) Qiymatli
Kagizlar Bazar hagqinda Qanunun 16.1-ci maddasina asasan tasis olunan geyri-
kommersiya hiiquqi saxsdir. MDM Azarbaycan Respublikasinin arazisinda
depozitar sisteminin isini tagkil edan va slagslandiran Markazi Depozitardir.
Emissiya Prossesinda MDM-in vazifalari asagidakilardir:

- Baglanilmis aqdlar Gzra kliring va hesablasmalarin apariimasi.

Anderrayter

“AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” QSC 06 yanvar 2016-ci il tarixinda Azarbaycan
Respublikasi Igtisadiyyat ve Senaye Nazirliyi tarafindan verilmis 087907 sayli
lisenziya asasinda giymatli kagizlar bazarinda ssas va yardimgi investisiya
xidmatlarini gostaran pesakar investisiya sirkstidir. Bu emissiyanin anderrayteri
kimi Emitentin butiin satis sifarislarini harrac zamani Birjaya taqdim edir, “Baki
Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat sistemi vasitasi ile istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasi
xidmatlarini gostarir.

Bu emissiyada istirak edan Gglincli saxslar arasinda emitentla aidiyyati saxs
yoxdur. Markazi Depozitar emissiyani geydiyyata aldigl zaman komissiya alda
edir. Fond birjasi va anderrayter isa istigrazlar yerlasdirildikca emitentdan va
invetorlardan komissiya alda edir va bir basa maddi maraglari vardir. Emissiyada
istirak edan saxslar arasinda maraglar togqusmasina yol agan hallar mévcud deyil;

12.4. istigraz alicisinin 6damali oldugu vergi va xarclarin mablagi.

- Istigrazlar Uzrs faiz ddanisi zamani ganunvericilikde miiayyan edilmis gaydada
6dama manbayindan vergi tutulur. Hlqugi saxs olan istiqraz milkiyyatcilarinin
istigrazlar Gzra faiz galirindan Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 123-c
maddasina miivafig olarag 6dsnis manbayindan 10 (on) faiz vergi tutulur (Vergi
Macallasinin 123.1-ci maddasinds nazards tutulan saxslar istisna olmagla.) Bununla
yanasi, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 102.1.22-ci maddasina
asasan, fiziki saxslar 1 fevral 2016-ci il tarixindan etibaran 7 (yeddi) il muiddatina faiz
golirlarindan azaddirlar. Yani, istigrazlar Gzra 6danilan faiz (kupon) 6danisindan
tutulan vergidan fiziki saxslar 2023-cii ilin fevral ayinin 1-dak azaddirlar. istigrazlarin
dovriyyada oldugu middatds vergi ganunvericiliyi dayisarss, tatbiq edilacak vergilar
barads malumat emitent va ya anderrayter tarafindan kitlavi informasiya vasitalari
ila investorlarin diggatina ¢atdirilacagdir.

- aqgdin mablaginin 0,02%-i hacminda “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin komissiyasi;

10
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- investisiya sirkatinin komisyon haqqi: investisiya sirkati ile investor arasinda
baglanilmis migaviladan asili olaraqg dayisir;

“depo” hesab agilmasi tigiin 10 manat;

- hesablagma agentinds olan bank hesabina pul ké¢tiriimasi zamani bank-kégiirma
xarci (bankdan asili olaraqg dayisir).

Istiqrazlarin emitenti barada talab olunan malumatlar

1. Emitentin auditorlarn barade malumat

Son U¢ maliyya ili arzindse emitentin auditorlarinin adi, Ginvanlari ve har hansi
taskilatda tizvlliyli barada malumat:

Audit taskilatinda
uzvliyu barada
malumat

Maliyya ili Auditorun adi

2018 BakerTilly Audit Baky, Kty Pale o0 Maovcud deyil
martaba
2019 BakerTilly Augie | ol i) SRMIE DG Méveud deyil
martaba
2020 BaketTOR Audie | o i FElREShal Méveud deyil
martaba
2. Se¢ilmis maliyya malumati
(Azarbaycan manati ila )
Son ¢ maliyya il 2018 2019 2020
Xalis amaliyyat galiri 5,000 1,670,000 4,835,000
inzibati va sair amaliyyat xarclori | (4,665,000) | (4,978,000) (5,499,000)
Manfaat /Zarar 142,000 11,079,000 673,000

3. Emitent barada malumat
3.1. Emitentin tam adi: “FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QEYRI-BANK KREDIT T6§KiLATI

M3HDUD MaSULIYYSTLI CaMiYYaTi;
11



3.2
3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

Emitentin gisaldilmig adi: “FINCA AZSRBAYCAN” QBKT MMC;

Emitentin dovlat geydiyyat nomrasi va tarixi: 25.11.1999- cu il VOEN
1400494391;

Emitentin oldugu yer, pogt linvani, elektron pogt linvani, emitentin internet
sahifasinin linvani va alaga telefonlari: Azarbaycan, Baki.

AZ1065, Baki sah., C.Cabbarh 44, Caspian Plaza, 3-cu korpus, 8-ci martabs,
www.finca.az, (+99412) 596-33-84; info@finca.az

Maliyys hesabatlarinin son darc olunma tarixindan etibarin asas investisiyalarin
tasviri (mablagi gostarilmakla): Movcud deyil

idarsetma organlarinin emitentin galacak investisiyalari ils bagl 6hdaliklari va
hamin 6hdasliklari yerina yetirmak liclin lazim olan maliyya vasaiti manbalari ile
bagh malumat: Mévcud deyil.

Emitentin giymatli kagzlarinin ticarata buraxildigi tanzimlanan bazarlar barada
malumat:

Emissiya edilacak istigrazlar “Baki Fond Birjasi” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyatinda
yerlasdirilacakdir. “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC 2000-ci ilde gapali sshmdar camiyyati
formasinda tasis edilmis va 21 iyul 2000-ci il tarixli “fond birjas faaliyyati” —ni
hayata kegirmaya icaza veran 5 sayli miuddatsiz lisenziya asasinda Azarbaycan
Respublikasi srazisinda giymatli kagizlar va térama maliyyas alatlari Gizra kitlavi
ticaratin pegsakar taskilatgisi kimi faaliyyat gostarir. “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-da Pay
bazan, Borc alstleri bazari, Repo bazari, Térama maliyya alstlari bazar
movcuddur.

Yerlasgdiyi Ginvan: AZ1141 Baki sshari, Yasamal rayonu, Hasan Bay Zardabi kiigasi
2A (Sokolad Tower)

Elektron poct linvani: info@bse.az

internet sabakasinda rasmi sahifasi: www.bse.az

Tel: (+99412) 539 72 49

“Baki Fond Birjas”” QSC-nin faaliyyati Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Miilki
Macallasi, “Qiymatli kagizlar bazan hagginda” Azarbaycan Respublikasinin
Qanunu, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin digar hiiqugi aktlari ve “Baki Fond Birjasi”
QSC-nin nizamnamasi va daxili Qaydalari ila tanzimlanir.

4. Emitentin biznesinin icmali

4.1.

Emitentin satilmis mahsullarinin va ya gostarilmis xidmatlarinin asas
kateqoriyalarini gdstararak emitentin asas faaliyyatlarinin tasviri:

12



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

5.1.

5.2.

6.2.

“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT MMC AR ganunvericiliyi ils miayyan edilmis
gaydada qgisa va uzun muddatli, taminatli va taminatsiz kreditlar vers bilar.
Kreditlarin verilmasi Gglin mivafiq lisenziyaya malik “FINCA AZSRBAYCAN” QBKT
MMC, hamginin, agagidaki faaliyyat novlsrini ds hayata kecira bilar:

- Borc 6hdaliklarinin alqi-satqisi (faktoring, forfeyting);

- Lizing;

- Veksellarin ucotu;

- Qarantiyanin verilmasi;

- Sigorta agenti xidmatlarinin gdstarilmasi (slavs razilig alinmagla);

- Borcalanlara, o climladan, birgsa borcalan gruplarina maliyys, texniki,
idarsetma va maliyya masalalari lizra maslshat xidmatinin géstarilmasi.

Taqdim olunmus yeni mahsullar ve xidmatlar barada malumat, onlarin inkisaf
statusu:

Mdovcud deyil.

Emitentin raqabat apardigi asas bazarlarin tasviri:

Taskilat riteyl va mikro biznes kredit bazarinda ragabat aparir.

Emitentin ragabat movgeyina dair bayanati oldugu halda onun
asaslandirilmasi:
Movcud deyil.

Diger taskilatlarda istirak

Emitentin digar hiiqugi saxslarda istirakinin qisa tasviri: Mévcud deyil.

Emitentin daxil oldugu qruplardan asililigi va bu asililigin sababi:

Emitent heg bir qrupa daxil deyil. Faaliyyatini mistagil sakilds hayata kegirir.

Tendensiyalar barada malumat

Audit edilmis maliyya hesabatlarinin son darc olunma tarixindan etibaran
emitentin Baza emissiya prospektinda manfi dayisiklik olmadigi barada
malumat:

Gostarilan tarixdan etibaran miiassisanin faaliyyatinds Baza emissiya prospektina
manfi tasir edacak har hansi bir hal bas vermamisdir.

Emitentin faaliyyatina cari maliyyas ili dovriinda tasir etma ehtimali olan malum
tendensiyalar, geyri-miiayyanliklar, 6hdaliklar va ya hadisalar barada malumat:
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Emitent ticari ilde manfaatliyini artirmag Uglin ve camlasma risklarini
minimumlasdirmag magsadils yeni partnyorlarla amakdasliq edir. Emitentin
ohdaliklari cari faaliyyat asasinda yaranan 6hdasliklardir va onlar vaxtinda icra
edilmakdadir.

7. Galir prognozu- movcud deyil

8. Emitentin idaraetma va nazarat organlar

8.1.

Emitentin idaraetma va nazarat organlarinin har bir tizvii barada malumatlar;
Emitentin idarsetma orqgani takbasina icra organi olan Direktordur va idars
Heyatidir.

Tarrant Timothy

Direktorun salahiyyatlarina asagidakilar aiddiar:

Camiyyatin cari faaliyyatine rahbarlik edir va onun operativ idars olunmasini
hayata kegirir;

Vakalatma olmadan Camiyyatin adindan 6z salahiyyati daxilinda ¢ixis edir, onun
butlin dévlst hakimiyyati va yerli 6ziinliidara organlar, kommersiya va qeyri-
kommersiya tasgkilatlar qarsisinda, o cimladan mahkamsalarda iddiagi va
cavabdeh gisminda temsil edir;

Umumi yigincaq tarafindsn gsbul edilmis gararlarin vaxtinda va lazimi gaydada
icra olunmasini tamin edir;

Camiyyatin nizamnamasi ils nazarda tutulmus digar salahiyyatlari icra edir.
Emitentin Nazarat organi- Miisahida Surasi

Zarlasht Wardak-Sadr;
Jerrold Smelcer Wayne-izv;
Sridhar Srinivasan Raghavachari-iizv.Emitentin idare Heyati barade malumat:

Idara Heyatinin Gzvlari:

Timothy Tarrant Kenneth-sadr, Mobeen Yagoob-iizv, Rehimov Yadulla Yusif oglu-
tizv, Nurmammadov Zaur ingilab oglu-iizv, Osmanov Sahriyar Akif oglu-iizv.
Emitentin idara heyatinin salahiyyatlari:

Tasisginin gararlarinin hayata kegirilmasini tamin edir;

Taskilatin Talimat va Daxili Qaydalarinin icrasini hayata kegirir;
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8.1.1.

Tagkilata aid butin masalslar Gzre Tasisgiya maslshat verir va Tasisgini
gararlarinin icrasini tamin edir;

Taskilat tglin aylig maliyys hesabatlari hazirlayir ve taqdim edir;

Mivafig dovlet nazarst va vergi organlarn Gglin ganunvericilik tarafindan
nazarada tutulan maliyys va digar hesabatlari hazirlayaraq tagdim edir.

Tasis¢i tarafindsn tasdiq edilmis kredit haqqinda arizalerin icrasina va Taskilatin
biutin kredit mablagina rahbarlik edir. Kreditlarin gaytarilmasinin tamin edilmasi
Uglin Nizamnamays va mivafiq qanunlara va ya Tasisci tarafindan verilmis
salahiyyatlara asasan muvafig tadbirlar gorir.

Toagkilatin illik balansini va basga maliyya hesabatlarini hazirlayir va Tasisciys
tagdim olunur.

Nizamnamaya ve mivafiq ganunlara va ya Tasis¢i tarafindan verilmis salahiyyata
asasan muvafiq tadbirlar gorir.

Taskilatin adindan Tagkilatin bitlin név dasinar va dasinmaz amlakinin sarancami,
satigt va tahvil-taslimi, yerli va xarici kredit taskilatlari ile har hansi kredit
mugavilssi, budcadakanar pul kéglirmalari, gabz, cek, kredit, zemanat va ya
tasdig, qeyd va ya digar maliyya sanadlari va ya faaliyyatlari kimi mugavilalar
baglamaq va onlarin hayata kegirilmasi ile slagadar ssnadlari mivafig
amaliyyatlarin mablagi/dayari Gizarindas heg bir mahdudiyyat olmadan Taskilatin
adindan imzalamaq.

Emitentin Nazarat organi- Miisahida Surasi

Zarlasht Wardak-Sadr;

Jerrold Smelcer Wayne-iizv;

Sridhar Srinivasan Raghavachari-lzv.

Emitentin Miisahida Surasinin salahiyyatlari:

Comiyyatin idars edilmasina va faaliyyatina nazarsti hayata kecirmak, o
ciimladan Camiyyatin icra Organindan hesabat almag;

Sahmdar va icra Organi igiin tévsiyyalar vermak;

Camiyyst tarafindan glivvads olan ganunvericiliyin pozulmasi faktini miayyan
etdikde bu pozuntu barasinds Sshmdari, Audit Komitasini va icra Organini
xabardar etmak, ganunvericilikla miayyan edilmis doévlst qurumuna miivafig
ganunvericiliyin pozulmasi faktlari barada bildiris gondarmak;

Camiyyat ila icra Organi (onun Gzvlari) arasinda manafelar togqusmasi oldugu
hallarda bu barads Sshmdara ve mivafiq dévlst qurumuna malumat vermak ve
masalani hall etmak.

Xidmati vazifalari ile saxsi maraqlarn arasinda ziddiyyat yarana bilacayi hallarda
maragqlarin togqusmasi barads hesabat: Mévcud deyildir.
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9.

01,

2.

idara heyatinin isgiizar praktikasi

Audit va miukafatlandirma (oldugda) komitalarinin Uzvlarinin adlarn ve
komitalarin asasnamalari ila onlara verilmis salahiyyat asasinda gérdiiklari
islarin icmali:

Emitentin Audit Komitasi barada malumat:

Emitentin audit tizra masul saxsi- Fisnik Kepuska Skender;

Audit lizra masul saxsin ona verilmis salahiyyat asasinda gordiiyi islatin icmal:
Daxili nazarat sistemlarinin effektivliyinin ve adekvathginin yoxlanilmasi va
giymatlandirilmasi;

Risklarin idaraedilmasi metodologiyasinin tatbiginin ve effektivliyinin tahlili;
Elektron informasiya va 6danis sistemlari va camiyyat xidmatlari daxil olmagla,
maliyya va idaraedici informasiya sistemlarinin tahlili;

Miuhasibat yazilarinin va maliyys hesabatlarinin dagigliyinin va etibarhliginin
yoxlanilmasi;

Aktivlarin gorunmasi vasitalarinin tahlili;

Risk ehtimali ila alagadar kapitalinin giymatlandirilmasi sisteminin tahlili;
Faaliyyatlarin samaraliliyinin va xarclarin effektivliyinin (qgiymat baximindan
sarfalilik) giymatlandirilmasi;

Spesifik daxili nazarat ve amaliyyat prosedurlarinin islamasinin yoxlanilmasi.

Emitentin mukafatlandirma komitasi moévcud deyil.

Emitentin qeydiyyatda oldugu o6lkade movcud olan korporativ idarsetma
standartlarina uygun olub-olmadigi barada hesabat. Uygun olmadigi halda bu
barads hesabat: Emitentin idarsetma formasi Mulki Macalls ve ona mivafig
hazirlanmis nizamnamasi asasinda muayyan edilir va tanzimlanir.

10. Emitentin nizamnama kapitalinda muhiim istirak payina sahib olan saxslar

10.1.

Emitentin nizamnama kapitalinda 10 faizdan artiq istirak payina sahib olan
saxslarin adlan, vatandashg va onlara maxsus paylarin sayr v@ nizamnama
kapitalinda olan faiz nisbati:

Nizamnamsa Kapitalinda
Vatandashgi faiz nisbati

FINCA Microfinance
Cooperatief U.A.

Niderland Kralligi

16

W



10.2.

10.3.

Miihiim istirak payina sahib olan saxslar tarsfindan emitenta nazaratin
xuisusiyyati va bu nazaratin sui-istifade edilmadiyina amin olmaq ligiin lazimi
tadbirlarin tasviri:

Muhim istirak payinin sahibi Emitenta nazarat emitentin nizamnamasina va AR
Miilki Macallasina uygun olarag hayata kegirir.

Miuassisanin nizamnama kapitah 100 (bir yiz) % payla bir saxsa maxsusdur.
Camiyyatin ali idaraetma organi onun istirakgilarinin Umumi Yigincagidir. Umumi
Yigincaqg Emitentin faaliyyati ila bagh istanilan masalani miizakira eds bilar.
Umumi yigincaq névbati va névbadankanar ola bilar. Umumi Yigincaq nizamnama
kapitalinda an azi 60 % (altmis faiz) paya malik olan istirakgilar istirak etdikda
salahiyyatli sayilir.

Miihiim istirak payina sahib olan sexslarin dayismasina gatirila bilan ve
emitenta malum olan amaliyyatlar barada malumat: Mdvcud deyil.

11. Emitentin maliyya malumatlar

11.1.

11.2.

11.2.1.

11.2.2.

11.2.3.

11.2.4,

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

Emitentin basa catmis son iki maliyys ili tizra audit edilmis maliyys hesabatlari;
Baza emissiya prospektina alava edilir;

Maliyya hesabatlari beynalxalq miithasibat ugotu standartlarina uygun olaraq
hazirlanmisdir va asagidakilan 6ziinda aks etdirmakla emissiya prospektina
alava edilir:

maliyya vaziyyati hagqinda hesabati: Baza emissiya prospektina alavs edilir;
manfaat va zarar haqqginda hesabati: Baza emissiya prospektins alava edilir;
kapitalda dayisiklik hagginda hesabati: Baza emissiya prospektina alava edilir;
nagd pul vasaitlarinin harakati hagqinda hesabati: Baza emissiya prospektina
alava edilir;

Emitentin konsolidasiya olunmus maliyya hesabati (olduqda): Mévcud deyil;
Emitentin maliyya vaziyyatina va galirliliyina tasir edan son bir il arzinda hliquqi
proseslar barada malumat (hallini gézlayan proseslar da daxil olmagla): Mévcud
deyil;

Yarimillik audit hesabati- alavs olunur;

Maliyye hesabatlarinin darc edilmasindan sonra emitentin maliyys
vaziyyastinda bas veran dayisikliklar barade malumat: 2021-ci ilda pandamik
riskin davam etmasina baxmayaraq, Finca Azerbaijan il arzinds shamiyyatli artim
niumayis etdirarak galirliliyini goruyub. 2020-ci ils nisbatan 2021-ci ilda dafalarla
¢ox gazanc alds edacayi gozlanilir.
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12. Emitent hagqinda alave malumatiar

12.1.

12.2.

12.2.1.

12.2.2.

Emitentin nizamnama kapitali v onun tarkibi hagqinda, o cimladan
nizamnama kapitalinin migdari, paylarin miqdari, onlarin nominal dayari va
ndvlari: Nizamnama Kapitalinin tmumi mablagi 3,756,572 (ic milyon yeddi yiiz
ali alti min bes ylz yetmis ikimanat) va nizamnamsa kapitalinin 100% -i FINCA
Microfinance Holding Company MMC maxsusdur.

Emitentin nizamnamasi barada asagidaki malumat: Emitentin Nizamnamasinin
son redaksiyasi 27.11.2013-cu il tarixinda AR IN yaninda Dévlat Vergi Xidmatinin
Milli Gslirlar Bas idarasinin Hiiquqi Saxslarin Déviat Qeydiyyati idarasi tarafindan
dovlat geydiyyatina alinmisdir.

Faaliyyat voe maqsadlarin tasviri:

“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT MMC AR ganunvericiliyi ilo miayyan edilmis
gaydada qisa ve uzun muddatli, taminatli ve taminatsiz kreditlar vera bilar.
Kreditlarin verilmasi Gg¢lin muvafiq lisenziyaya malik “FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QBKT
MMC, hamginin, agagidaki faaliyyat ndvlarini de hayata kegira bilar:

- Borc 6hdaliklarinin alqgi-satqisi (faktoring, forfeyting);

- Lizing;

- Veksellarin ugotu;

- Qarantiyanin verilmasi;

- Sigorta agenti xidmatlarinin gostarilmasi (slava raziliq almagla);

- Borcalanlara, o ciimladan, birga borcalan qruplarina maliyys, texniki,
idaraetma va maliyya masalalari lizra maslahat xidmatinin gostarilmasi.

idarsetma va nazarat organlarinin salahiyyatlari barada miiddaalarin icmali:
Emitentin idaroetms organi takbasina icra organi olan idara Heyati tarafindan
dastaklanan Direktordur.
Direktorun salahiyystlarina asagidakilar aiddiar:
- Camiyyatin cari faaliyystina rahbarlik edir va onun operativ idars
olunmasini hayata kegirir;
- Vakalatma olmadan Camiyyatin adindan 6z salahiyyati daxilinda ¢ixais edir,
onun bitiin dovlst hakimiyysti va yerli 6zéndidars organlari, kommersiya va
geyri-kommersiya taskilatlari qarsisinda, o cimladan mahkamalards iddiagi ve
cavabdeh gisminda tamsil edir;
- Umumi yigincaq terafindan gabul edilmis gararlarin vaxtinda va lazimi
gaydada icra olunmasini tamin edir;
- Camiyyatin nizamnamasi ila nazarda tutulmus digar salahiyyatlari icra edir.
Emitentin ali idarsetma orqgani istirakgilarin Gmumi yigincagidir. Camiyyatin
istirakcilarinin Gmumi yigincaginin mistasna salahiyyatina asagidakilar aiddir:
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12.3.

- camiyyatin nizamnamasini va onun nizamnama kapitalinin migdarini
dayisdirmak;

- camiyyatin icra organlarini yaratmag ve onlarin sslahiyyatlarina vaxtindan
avval xitam vermak;

- camiyyatin illik hesabatlarini va maliyya hesabatlarini tasdig etmak, onun
manfaatini va zararini bolusdirmak;

- camiyyatin yenidan taskili va ya Isgvi haqqinda garar gabul etmak;

- camiyyatin camiyyatin direktorlar surasi (va ya misahids surasi) va (va ya
taftis komissiyasini (mufattisini) secmak va onlarin salahiyyatlarina vaxtindan
avval xitam vermak;

- Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Miilki  Macallasinin 49-1.2-ci va 87.10-cu
maddalarinds nazards tutulmus aqdlarin baglanmasi hagginda gsrar gabul
etmak.

- Miusahida Surasi Nizamnamads nazards tutulmayan, Nizamnama ila idara
Heyati Uglin macburi olan har hansi salahiyyatlari miayyan edilmamis,
masvaratci organdir.
idara heyatinin salahiyyatlari:

- idara Heyati Tagkilatin icra orqanidir. O, Tasis¢i tarafindan tasdig edilan
Nizamnamsa va qaydalar asasinda Taskilatin bitin islarinda istirak edir;

- Tasisginin gararlarinin hayata kecirilmasini tamin edir;

- Taskilatin Talimat va Daxili Qaydalarinin icrasini hayata kegirir;

- Toaskilata aid bGtlin masalalsr lzra Tasisgiya maslahat verir va Tasisginin
gararlarinin icrasini tamin edir;

- Tasisgi tglin aylig maliyys hesabatlarini hazirlayir va tagdim edir;

- Miuvafig dovlet nazarat va vergi organlar Uglin ganunvericilik tarafindan
nazarda tutulan maliyys va digar hesabatlari hazirlayir va tagdim edir;

- Tasis¢i torafindan tasdig edilmis kredit haqqinda arizalarin icrasina va
Taskilatin bitiin kredit mablagina rahbarlik edir. Kreditlarin gaytarilmasinin
tamin edilmasi Ugliin Nizamnamaya va mivafiq ganunlara va ya Tasisgi
tarafindan verilmis salahiyyatlara asasan miivafiq tadbirlar goriir;

- Taskilatin illik balansini va basqa maliyya hesabatlarini hazirlayir va Tasisgiya
tagdim edir;

- Nizamnama va miivafiq ganunlara va ya Tasis¢i tarafindan verilmis
salahiyyata asasan miivafiq tadbirlar gorir.

Emissiya olunan qiymatli kagizlar baximindan qiymatli kagizlar barades

emitentin ohdaliklarini yerina yetirmak gabiliyyatina tasir edan emitentin asas

faaliyysti ile bagh olmayan miigavilalar barada malumat: Mdvcud deyil.
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istiqrazlar barada malumat

13. 9sas malumat

13.1.

Emissiyada istirak edan saxslarin maraglari, o cimladan maraqlarin toqusmasi
barads atrafli malumat:

“Baki Fond Birjasi” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati

Emissiya prosesinda istirak edan “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC yeni emissiya edilmis
istigrazlarin listinga daxil edilmasi, harrac vasitasils istigrazlarin ilkin
yerlasdirilmasi, hamginin takrar bazarda alqi-satqisi tglin pesakar kitlavi ticarati
taskil edir.

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC 2000-ci ilda gapali sshmdar camiyyati formasinda tasis
edilmis va 21 iyul 2000-ci il tarixli “fond birjas: faaliyyati” —ni hayata kegirmaya
icaza veran 5 sayli muddatsiz lisenziya asasinda Azarbaycan Respublikasi
arazisinda qiymatli kagizlar va térama maliyys alatleri Uzrs kitisvi ticarstin
pesakar taskilatgisi kimi faaliyyat gostarir. “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-da dovlst
qiymatli kagizlari bazari, korporativ giymatli kagizlar bazar va térams maliyys
alatlari bazarlari mévcuddur.

“Baki Fond Birjas1” QSC-nin faaliyyati AR Mulki Macallasi, Qiymatli Kagizlar Bazari
hagginda AR Qanunu, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin digar hliqugi-normativ aktlari
va “Baki Fond Birjas1” QSC-nin nizamnamasi va daxili Qaydalari ila tanzimlanir.

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Markazi Depozitarn

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi (bundan sonra- MDM) Qiymatli
Kagizlar Bazar hagginda Qanunun 16.1-ci maddssina asasan tasis olunan geyri-
kommersiya hiqugi sexsdir. MDM Azarbaycan Respublikasinin arazisinda
depozitar sisteminin isini taskil edan va slagalandiran Markazi Depozitardir.
Emissiya Prossesinda MDM-in vazifalari asagidakilardir:

Baglanilmis aqdlar Gizra kliring va hesablasmalarin apariimasi.

Anderrayter

“AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” QSC 06 yanvar 2016-ci il tarixinds Azarbaycan
Respublikasi Igtisadiyyat ve Ssnaye Nazirliyi tarafindsn verilmis 087907 sayli
lisenziya asasinda giymatli kagizlar bazarinda 3sas va yardimgi investisiya
xidmatlarini gostaran pesakar investisiya sirkatidir. Bu emissiyanin anderrayteri
kimi Emitentin blitlin satis sifarislarini harrac zamani Birjaya tagdim edir, “Baki
Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat sistemi vasitasi ils istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasi
xidmatlarini gostarir.
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13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

Bu emissiyada istirak edan Ulcglncl soxslor arasinda emitentla aidiyyati saxs
yoxdur. Markazi Depozitar emissiyani geydiyyata aldigi zaman komissiya alda
edir. Fond birjasi va anderrayter isa istigrazlar yerlasdirildikca emitentdan va
invetorlardan komissiya alds edir va bir basa maddi maraqlari vardir. Emissiyada
istirak edan gaxslar arasinda maraglar togqusmasina yol agan hallar mévcud deyil.

istiqraz taklifinin sabablari va istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasindan alds edilon
vasaitlarin istifada edilmasi barada artafli malumat: Olks igtisadiyyatinin igtisadi
artim prosesina daxil olmasi va reyting agentliklarinin novbati illar Gizrs igtisadi
artim prognozlart emitentin bu prosesds istirakini, faydalanmasini va
igtisadiyyata tohva vermasini sartlandirir.

istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasindan alds edilan vasait Emitentin asas faaliyyatinin
genislandirilmasina va inkisafina yonaldilacakdir.

Olde olunan vasaitlarin nazarda tutulan layihalarinin maliyyslasdirmak
mimkiin olmadig taqdirda taleb olunan alave pul vasaitlarinin manbalari va
mablagi: Hazirda taskilatin resurs manbalari xtisusi kapital (15,146,700 manat),
bank dhdaliklari (17,353,580 manat). {01.11.2021 tarixa).

olda olunan vasaitlarin istifadasi, diger miiassisalarin alisini maliyyalesdirmak,
borclan qaytarmaq va ya restruktuzasiya etmak va ya emitentin asas
faaliyyatina aidiyyati olmayan aktivleri alda etmak Uglin istifade olunmasi
nazarda tutuldugda bu baradas atrafli malumat: istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasindan
aldas edilan vasait Emitentin asas faaliyystinin genislandirilmasina va inkisafina
yonaldilacakdir. 9lds olunan vasaitlarin  digsr miusassisalerin  alisim
maliyyalagdirmak, borclari qaytarmaq va ya restruktuzasiya etmak va ya
emitentin asas faaliyyatina aidiyyati olmayan aktivlari alda etmak dgln istifads
olunmasi nazarda tutulmamisdir.

14. istiqrazlar barads malumat

14.1.

14.2.

Qiymatli kagizlarin emissiyasini tanzimlayan qanunvericilik: Azarbaycan
Respublikasinin Milki Macallasi, “Qiymatli kagizlar bazari hagqinda” Qanun, Isgv
olunmus Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Qiymatli Kagizlar Gzra Dévlst Komitasinin 27
yanvar 2016-ci il tarixli, 05 nomrali Qarar ils tasdig edilmis “Emissiya prospekti
va informasiya memorandumuna dair talablar hagginda” Qaydalar va 27 yanvar
2016-ci il tarixli, 04 némrali Qarar ila tasdiq edilmis “investisiya qiymatli
kagizlarina abuna yazilisi va yerlasdirilmasi hagginda” Qaydalar.

Istigrazlarin névii: Faizli, taminatsiz, sanadsiz, adli istigraz;
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14.3.

14.4.
14.5.

i4.6.

14.7.

14.8.
14.9.

14.10.

Toklif edilan qiymatli kagizlarin sayi ve nominal dayari (yeni buraxilan va
movcud olan istigraziar barade malumat ayri-ayriliqda gostsrilmakls) : 6 000
(alti min) adad, 1000 (bir min) manat;

Istigrazlarin valyutasi: Azarbaycan manati;

Istigrazlarin saxlanmasi va onlara hiiquglarin ugotunu aparan Markazi
Depozitarin oldugu yer:

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi (bundan sonra- MDM) Qiymatli
Kagizlar Bazari hagqinda Qanunun 16.1-ci maddasina asasan tasis olunan geyri-
kommersiya hiiqugi saxs olub, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin arazisinda depozitar
sisteminin isini taskil edan va slagslandiran Markazi Depozitardir.

Hlqugi Gnvani: AZ1000, Baki sah., Bul-Bil pr., 27;

Faktiki invani: Baki s., Yasamal r-nu, Hasan bay Zardabi kiigasi 2A (Sokolad Tower)
Taklif olunan istigrazlarin reytingi (oldugda) ve bu reytinga tasir edan amiller
barads malumat: Movcud deyil.

istigrazlarla tasbit olunan hiiquglar, onlarin hayata kegirilmasi gaydasi va
onlara dair mahdudiyyatler: Istigrazlarla tesbit edilan hiiquglarin hayata
kegirilmasi ila bagh mahdudiyystlar mdvcud deyil.

Istiqraz miilkiyyatgilarinin asagidaki hiiquglan vardir:

a) listigrazlarin tadavil muddstinin sonunda istigrazin nominal dayarini
Emitentdan almag;

b) istigrazin nominal dayarindan illik 12,5 faiz olmagla istigrazin tadaviil miiddati
arzinda faiz almag;

¢) Emitentin lagvi, yaxud emitentin kreditorlarinin talablarinin 6danilmasinin
taminatina real tahlikaya sabab olan onun yenidan taskili barada garar gabul
edildikda, habela Emitent miiflis elan olunduqgda istigrazlarin nominal dayarinin
va hamin anadak hesablanmis, lakin ddsnilmamis faizlarin vaxtindan svval
o6danilmasini Emitentdan talsb etmak;

d) Azarbaycan Republikasinin ganunvericiliyinds nazarda tutulmus digar
hiquglar.

istigrazlar Gizra galirliyin faiz deracasi :illik 12,5 faiz;

istigrazlarin va faizlarin édanilmasi tarixi va miiddati: istigrazlarin faiz daracasi
12.5% taskil edir, istiqgrazlarin faiz ddanisi istigrazlarin yerlasdirildiyi tarixdan
hesablanarag har 3 ayin (bir ay 30 gin oldugunu gabul etmak sarti ila)
tamaminda odanilacakdir. istigrazlarin nominal dayarinin édanisi tadavil
muddatinin sonunda ddanilacakdir.

Faiz va asas borcun odanilmasi ile bagh iddia miiddati: 9sas borc va faizin
odanilmasi ils bagli iddia miiddati Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Mulki Macallasinin
372-384-ct maddslari ils tanzimlanir.
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14.11.

14.12.

14.13.

14.14.

14.15.

14.16.

14.17.

14.18.
14.19,

Bazarda bas veran hadisalarin istigrazlarin baza aktivina (olduqda) va istigraziar
uzra hesablagmalara manfi tasiri barade malumat. Bels hallarin tanzimlanmasi
qaydalari va ya prosedurlar: istigrazlar Gizra baza aktivi nazards tutulmamisdir.
Hal-hazirda bazarda bas veran hadisalar istigraziar Gizre hesablasmalara manfi
tasiri mlsaiyat olunmur.
Odanislar lizra hesablasma agentinin adi: “Finca Azerabycan” QBKT MMC;
Tamin edilmis istiqrazlar taklif olundugqda taminatin dayarinin istiqrazlarin va
onlar lizra faizlorin ddanisina tesiri barada aydin va atrafli malumat: yeni
emissiya edilan istigrazlar taminatsiz formada emissiya edilir.
istigrazlarin geri satin alinmasinin sartlari: Emitent tarafindan istigrazlarin geri
satin alinmasi nazarda tutulmamisdir.
istiqrazlar buraxilislar ila yerlasdirilacakdir. Buraxilislanin dévlat geydiyyatina
alinmasi asagidaki gaydada yekun sartlerin tartib edilmasi yolu ile hayata
kecirilacakdir:
1-ci buraxihis- Gmumi mablagi 3 min. manat olan, har birinin nominal dayari 1000
(bir min) manat olan, 3 000 (G¢ min) adad faizli, taminatsiz, sanadsiz, adli istiqraz;
2.-ci buraxilis- Gimumi mablagi 3 min. manat olan, har birinin nominal dayari 1000
(bir min) manat olan, 3 000 (li¢ min) adad faizli, taminatsiz, sanadsiz, adl istiqraz.
Galirlik daracasi va onun hesablanmasi gaydasi.
istigrazlar Gizra faiz galirinin mablagi asagida gostarilan diisturla miiayyan edilir:
TF = (N*D*G/360)/100
burada,
TF —Bir istigraz Gizra toplanmis faizler;
N — Bir istigrazin nominal dayari (1 000 (bir min) manat);
D —istigrazlarin illik galirlik daracasi (12,5);
G — istigrazlarin faiz 6dsnis dévriiniin middati (90 giin) istgirazlarin emissiyasi
haqqinda gararin gabul edilmasi tarixi, nomrasi va garari gabul etmis emitentin
idaraetma orqaninin adi: idars Heyatinin 28.10.2021-ci il tarixli Qarar.
Istiqgrazlarin alda edilmasi liclin mahdudiyyatlar (olduqda): Movcud deyil.
istiqrazlar iizra galirlorden manbadan verginin tutulmasi barade malumat.
Istiqraz Gizra galirlarden verginin tutulmasi barads emitentin 6hdaliyi:
Istigrazlar Gzra faiz 6danisi zamani ganunvericilikds miayyan edilmis gaydada
6dama manbayindan vergi tutulur. Hiquqi saxs olan istigraz mulkiyyatcilarinin
istiqrazlar tzra faiz galirindan Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 123-
cli maddasina muvafig olarag 6danis manbayindan 10 (on) faiz vergi tutulur
(Vergi Macallasinin 123.1-ci maddasinda nazards tutulan saxslar istisna olmagla.)
Bununla yanasi, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 102.1.22-ci
maddasina asasan, fiziki saxslar 1 fevral 2016-ci il tarixindan etibaran 7 (yeddi) il
faiz golirlerinden azaddirlar. Ysni, istigrazlar Gzra o6danilan faiz (kupon)
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14.20.

14.21.

ddanisindan tutulan vergidan fiziki sexslar 2023-cu ilin fevral ayinin 1-dak
azaddirlar. listigrazlarin dévriyyada oldugu miiddatda vergi ganunvericiliyi
dayigarss, tatbiq edilacak vergilar barads malumat emitent va ya anderrayter
tarafinden  kiitlavi informasiya wvasitalari ila investorlarin  diggatina
catdirilacagdir.Hlqugqi sexslar isa har faiz 6danisi tarixinds faiz 6danisinin 10%-i
hacminds 6dems manbayindan vergi tutulmaqla 6z faizlsrini alacaglar.
Potensial investorlarin miixtalif kateqoriyalari barade malumat: potensial
investorlar hlqugi saxsler, banklar, sigorta taskilatlari, investisiya sirkatlari,
resident vo qgeyri resident fiziki saxslar ola bilar. Xarici hiiqugi saxslarin da
istigrazlari almasi  mimkindir. Potensial investorlarin istigrazlar barads
malumatlandiriimasi tiglin internet resurslarindan va anderrayter vasitasila vardi
gorlslarin kegirilmasi nazarda tutulub. Anderrayter va emitent miiraciat edan
istanilan potensial investora miifassal malumat veracakdir.

istigrazlarin alda edilmasi liciin mahdudiyystlar (oldugda): istigrazlarin alda
edilmasina heg bir mahdudiyyat goyulmayib.

15. Taklifin sartlari

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

Taklifin ve yerlasdirmanin baslanma va basa ¢catma tarixlari:

Yerlasdirmanin baslanma tarixi: yeni emissiya edilacak istigrazlar Azarbaycan
Respublikasinin Markazi Banki tarafindsn dovlst geydiyyatina alindigdan sonra
yerlasdirmanin baslanmasina an azi 2 is gini galmis harracin bas tutacagi tarix
“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin saytinda investorlara agiglanacagdir.

Yerlagdirmanin basacatma tarixi: Harrac gaydalarina uygun olaraq “Baki Fond
Birjas” QSC va anderrayter tarafindan elan edilan mivafig harracin bas tutdugu
gun.

Taklifin qlivvada oldugu miiddat arzinda prospektds diizalislarin edils bilacayi
muddat va diizalislarin edilmasi gaydasi:

Baza Emissiya prospektinda dayisikliklarin dovlat geydiyyatina alinmasi tglin ariza
muvafig gararin qgabul edildiyi glnden 5 is guni arzinde Azarbaycan
Respublikasinin Markazi Bankina taqdim edilir. Baza Emissiya prospektinda
edilmis dayisikliklar doévlat geydiyyatina alindigi tarixdan bes is glinii arzinda
“Qiymatli kagizlar bazari hagqinda” Qanunun 7.1-ci maddasi ile miiayyan edilmis
vasitalarla agiglanir va agiglandigl tarixdsn on bes is gini bitdikdan sonra
qlvvaya minir.

Taklifin dayandirnilmasi va ya texira salinmasi hallarinin izahi: Taklif “Qiymatli
kagizlar bazar haqqinda” Qanunun 9-cu maddasina asasan dayandirila bilar.
Istigrazlara abuns vyazihsi kegirildikde asagidaki malumat: istigrazlarin
yerlasdirilmasi prosesinda abuna yazilsi nazards tutulmamisdir.
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15.5.

15.6.

15.7.

15.8.

istigrazlar harrac vasitasile yerlasdirildikda, harracin kegirilmasi qaydasi va
sartlari:

istigrazlar harrac vasitasils yerlagdirildikds, harracin kegirilmasi qgaydasi-
istigrazlar birgiymatli harrac Gsulu ila “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat
platformasinda birja Gzvi tarafindan sifarislarin birjanin sistemina daxil edilmasi
yolu ila algi-satqi aqdlari baglaniimagla ilkin yerlasdirilacakdir. istigrazlarin
yerlagdirilmasina onlarin fond birjasinda ticarsta buraxilmasindan sonra
baslanilir. Harrac glinti anderrayter va digar birja Uzvlari sifarislarin gabul edilmasi
uglin elan olunmus middat arzindas istigrazlarin alinmasi Gglin sifarislari “Baki
Fond Birjasi” QSC-ya teqdim edir. Investorlar terafindan tegdim edilmis
sifariglarin cami emissiyanin tmumi hacmindan gox olarsa, sifarisler proporsional
gaydada icra olunacaqdir. Harrac gliniindan gec olmayaraq, istigrazlarin alinmasi
Uglin pul vasaitlari investorlar tarafindan “AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” QSC-nin
hesablagma agentinds olan bank hesabina kéglrilmalidir. Harracin kegirilmasi
tarixi Emitent tarafindan miiayyan edilir va harracin kegirilmasina an azi 2 is glinii
galmis “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin internet saytinda (www.bfb.az) va Emitentin
internet saytinda (www.finca.az) agiglanir.

Istigrazlarin dayarinin ddanilmassi va investorlarin istiqrazlarla tachizati
sartlari va qaydasi: istigrazlarin dayarinin 6danilmasi kdciirma yolu ils investisiya
sirkati vasitasils hayata kegirilir. Kliring gaydalarina mivafiq olaraq, istigrazlan
alde etmak istayan investorlar istiqrazlarin yerlasdirilmasi barsda malumat
aciglandigi vaxtdan etibaran 6z tasdiq edilmis sifarislarini investisiya sirkatina
taqdim edir va almagq istadiyi istigrazlarin dayarini “AzFinance investisiya Sirkati”
QSC-nin hesablagsma agentinds olan bank hesabina kogilrir. Harrac basa
¢atdigdan sonra 1 is glinl arzinda investisiya sirkati harrac zamani investor lcln
aldigi istiqrazlar barada rasmi malumati (hesabati) investora tagdim edir. Mustari
terafindan hesab {izra sarancam verildiyi andan investisiya sirkati mustarinin
“depo” hesabinda mévcud olan va hamin sarancamda gdstarilan giymatli kagizlar
barada malumat almagq hiquguna malikdir.

Potensial investorlarin miixtalif kateqoriyalarn barade malumat: emissiya
edilacak istigrazlar ham fiziki ham da hiiquqi saxslar tarafindan alds edils bilar.
istigrazlarin satisinin baglanmasi barada investorlara bildirislarin gondarilmasi
gaydasi va satisin xabardarliq edilmazdan onca baslaya bilib-bilmamasi barada
malumat: Harracin kegirildiyi glin investorlara harracin baslanmasi saati elektron
poct vasitasi ils bildirilacakdir. Satis xabardarlig edilmadsan baglanila bilmaz.
istigrazlarnin taklif qiymati. Qiymatin malum olmadig: teqdirds istiqrazlarin
giymatinin miayyanlasdirilmasi metodunu gostarmakle bu prosesda istirak
edan va masuliyyat dasiyan saxslar barasinds malumat: istigraziar 1 000 (bir
min) manat qiymatina taklif olunur.
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15.9,

15.10.

istiqraz alicisinin 6damali oldugu vergi va xarclarin mablagi:

istiqrazlar Uzra faiz 6danisi zamani ganunvericilikds miisyyan edilmis gaydada
ddoama manbayindan vergi tutulur. Hiqugi sexs olan istigraz mulkiyystgilarinin
istigrazlar tzra faiz galirindan Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 123-
cl maddasina miivafiq olarag 6danis manbayindan 10 (on) faiz vergi tutulur
(Vergi Macallasinin 123.1-ci maddasinda nazarda tutulan saxslar istisna olmagla.)
Bununla yanasi, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallssinin 102.1.22-ci
maddasina asasan, fiziki saxslar 1 fevral 2016-ci il tarixindan etibaran 7 (yeddi) il
muddatina faiz gslirlarindan azaddirlar. Yani, istigrazlar tizrs 6dsnilan faiz (kupon)
ddanisindan tutulan vergidan fiziki sexslar 2023-cii ilin fevral ayinin 1-dak
azaddirlar. istigrazlarin dévriyyada oldugu miiddatds vergi ganunvericiliyi
dayisarsa, tatbig edilacak vergilar barads malumat emitent va ya anderrayter
tarafindan kitlavi informasiya vasitalari ila investorlarin diggatins ¢atdirilacaqgdir.
agdin mablaginin 0,02%-i hacminda “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin komissiyasi;
investisiya sirkatinin komisyon haqqi: investisiya sirksti ila investor arasinda
baglanilmis migaviladan asili olaraq dayisir;

“depo” hesab agilmasi ti¢clin 10 manat;

hesablagma agentinds olan bank hesabina pul kéglrilmasi zamani bank-kéglirma
xarci (bankdan asil olaraq dayisir).

istigrazlan ohdalik gotiirmakla ve ya ohdalik gotiirmadan yerlasdiran
anderrayter barada malumat (ad, lisenziyasi va tinvani). Xidmat haqq.
istigrazlar “AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati tarafindan
qisman 6hdalik gotiirtiimakls asagidaki gaydada yerlasdirilacakdir:

1-ci buraxihg tizra Umumi mablagi 3 min. manat olan, har birinin nominal dayari
1 000 (bir min) manat olan, 3 000 (li¢ min) adad faizli, taminatsiz, sanadsiz, adl
istigraz “AzFinance Investisiya Sirksti” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati tarafindan
ohdalik gotiriilmakla yerlasdirilacakdir;

2-ci buraxilig tzra Umumi mablagi 3 mlin. manat olan, har birinin nominal dayari
1 000 (bir min) manat olan, 3 000 (i¢ min) adad faizli, taminatsiz, sanadsiz, adl
istigraz “AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati tarafindan
6hdalik gotlirilmadan tam hacmda yerlasdirila bilar;

“AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” QSC 06 yanvar 2016-ci il tarixinds Azarbaycan
Respublikasinin igtisadiyyat ve Senaye Nazirliyi tarsfindan verilmis 087907 sayli
lisenziya ssasinda qiymatli kagizlar bazarinda asas va yardimgl investisiya
xidmatlarini gdstaran pesakar investisiya sirkatidir.

Unvani: Baki sahari, Yasamal rayonu, Nariman Narimanov pr-ti 206, mahalls 466,
AZ1065.

VOEN-i: 1303538081.

Telefon: + 994 (12) 310 33 30
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Elektron pogt tinvani: info@afi.az

Emitent Anderrayterls baglaniimis migavilsys asassn agdin mablsginin 2 %-i
hacminda komissiya 6dayacakdir.

15.11. Anderrayting miigavilasinin baglandigi va ya baglanacag: vaxti: Emitent ila

“AzFianance Investisiya Sirkati” QSC arasinda anderrayter mugqavilasi giymatli
kagizlar buraxiliglar dovlat geydiyyatina alindigdan sonra baglanacaqdir.

16. Ticarata buraxiima va onun tanzimlanmasi

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

istigrazlarin tanzimlanan bazarda ticarats buraxilmasi barads emitent
torafindan miiraciatin edilmasinin nazards tutulub tutulmamas: barads
malumat. Bela bir miiraciatin edilmasi nazarda tutuldugu halda istigrazlarin
ticarate buraxilacagi tanzimlanan bazar hagqinda malumat va ticarats
buraxilma sartlari:

istigrazlarin ilkin yerlasdirilmasi, listingi ve tadaviili Baki Fond Birjasinda
aparilacaqdir.

istigrazlarin tanzimlanan bazarda ticarats buraxilmasi barada “Baki Fond Birjas”
QSC-ya Emitent tarafindan miracist istigrazlar dévlst geydiyyatina alindigdan
sonra edilacakdir.

Market meyker(lar) barada malumat: Emitent tarafindan galacakds istigrazlarin
takrar bazarda tadaviili Gglin prosesa market meyker(lar) calb edils bilar.
Reyting prosesinda emitentin sorgusu va ya emitentla amakdasliq naticasinda
emitent va ya onun borc qgiymatli kagizlan Uglin tayin olunmus kredit
reytinglari- mévcud deyil.
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“FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QEYRIi-BANK
KREDIT TOSKILATI MOHDUD
MOSULIYYOTLI COMIYYOTi

Istiqraziar iizra baza emissiya prospektinin

har birinin nominal dayari 1000 (bir min) manat olan 3 000 (ii¢ min) adad faizli,
tominatsiz, sanadsiz, adli istigrazlarin

YEKUN SORTLORI
Nel



Qeyd: Azerbaycan Respublikasinin Markazi Banki bu Yekun Satlords olan malumatlarin diizgiinliiyiina
gore masuliyyat dagimir vo nazarat orqani kimi onu qeydiyyata almagla yerlosdirilon qiymatli kagizlara
miinasibatini ifada etmir

Boayanat

Biz, asagida imza edanlar,

1. Bu Yekun $artlar “Finca Azarbaycan” QBKT MMC-nin Baza Emissiya prospekti ila birga
oxunmhdir.

2. “Finca Azarbaycan” QBKT MMC -nin Baza Emissiya prospekti va har buraxihsin yekun
sartlari www.finca.az internet sahifasinds agiglanacaqdir.

3. Bu Yekun Sortlar “Finca Azarbaycan” QBKT MMC-nin Baza Emissiya Prospektinin 1-ci
buraxilisi Ggtin tartib edilmisdir. Buraxiligin xiilasasi bu yekun Sartlars slava olunur.

~

“Finca Azarbaycan” QBKT MMC-nin Direktoru:

Tarrant Timothy

“Finca Azarba an \

\J

Muhammad Mobeen Yaqoob
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1. XULASD

Xabardarliq

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

Bu sanad Baza emissiya Prospektina asasan Umumi mablagi 3 min. manat
olan har birinin nominal dayari 1000 (bir min) manat olan 3 000 (li¢ min)
adad faizli, tsminatsiz, sanadsiz, adli istigrazlarin buraxilisi Ggiin 1 sayh
yekun sartlaridir.

istigrazlara investisiya etmak barada har hansi bir garar investorun Baza
emissiya prospektini va bu Yekun Sartlari oxudugdan sonra hayata
kegirilimalidir;

Baza Emissiya prospektinda va Yekun $Sartlards olan malumatlarin yanlis,
qeyri-daqiq, ziddiyyatli oldugu va ya istigrazlara investisiya edib-etmamak
barads gqarar veran investorlara komak etmak magsadila asas
informasiyanin verilmadiyi zaman Yekun Ssrtlsri ve Baza emissiya
prospektini hazirlamis saxslar miilki masuliyyst dasiyirlar.



2.

2.1.
2.2,

2.3.
2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

ISTIQRAZLAR BARSD® MALUMAT

istigrazlarin névii: Faizli, taminatsiz, ssnadsiz, adl istigraz;

Taklif edilan giymatli kagizlarin sayi va nominal dayari: 3000 (ii¢ min) adad, 1000 (bir
min) manat;

istiqrazlarin valyutasi: Azarbaycan manati;

istigrazlarla tasbit olunan hiiquglar, onlarin hayata kegirilmasi qaydasi va onlara dair
mahdudiyyatlar: Mahdudiyyatlar movcud deyil.

istigraz miilkiyyatcilarinin asagidaki hiiquglari vardir:

a) istigrazlarin tadaviil miiddstinin sonunda istiqrazin nominal dayarini Emitentdan
almag;

b) istigrazin nominal dayarindan illik 12,5 faiz olmagla istigrazin tadaviil middati srzinds
faiz almaq;

c¢) Emitentin Iagvi, yaxud emitentin kreditorlarinin talablarinin 6danilmasinin taminatina
real tahliikaya sabab olan onun yenidan taskili barada garar gabul edildikds, habela
Emitent miiflis elan olunduqda istigrazlarin nominal dayarinin ve hamin anadak
hesablanmis, lakin 6danilmamis faizlarin vaxtindan avval 6danilmasini Emitentdan talab
etmak;

d) Azarbaycan Republikasinin ganunvericiliyinda nazards tutulmus digar hiiquglar.
Mahdudiyyst nazardas tutulmayib.

Faiz va asas borcun ddanilmasi ila bagh iddia miiddati: 9sas borc va faizin 6danilmasiila
bagh iddia middati Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milki Macallasinin 372-384-cii maddalari
ila tanzimlanir.

istigrazlar iizra galirliyin faiz daracasi : illik 12,5 faiz;

Faiz daracasi miiayysn olunmadigi halda istigrazin faiz daracasinin hesablanmasi
tisulu- faiz daracasi miiayyan olunub;

Bazarda bas veran hadisalarin istiqrazlarin baza aktivina (oldugda) va istigrazlar tzra
hesablasmalara manfi tasiri barade malumat. Bela hallarin tanzimlanmasi qaydalari va
ya prosedurlari: istigrazlar lizra baza aktivi nazarda tutulmamisdir. Hal-hazirda bazarda
bas veran hadisalarin hesablagmalara manfi tasiri miisaiyst olunmur.

Tamin edilmis istiqrazlar taklif olundugda taminatin dayarinin istiqrazlarin va onlar tizra
faizlarin 6danisina tasiri barada aydin va atrafli malumat: emissiya edilan istigrazlar
taminatsiz formada emissiya edilir.

istigrazlanin geri satin alinmasinin gartlari: Emitent tarafindan istigrazlarin geri satin
alinmasi nazarda tutulmamisdir.

Golirlik daracasi va onun hesablanmasi gaydasi:

istiqrazlar tizra faiz galirinin mablagi asagida géstarilan disturla miayyan edilir:
TF=(N*D*G/360)/100

Burada,



2.12.

2.13.

TF- Bir istigraz Uizrs toplanmis faizlar;
N- Bir Istiqrazin nominal dayari (1.000 (bir min) manat);

D- istigrazlarin illik galirlik daracasi (12,5);

G- Istigrazlarin faiz 6danis dévriiniin miiddati (90giin).

investorlari tamsil edan taskilat barada (oldugda) malumat- nazards tutulmayib;
istigrazlarin tenzimlanan bazarda ticarsta buraxiimasi barada emitent tarafindan
miraciatin edilmasinin nazarda tutulub tutulmamasi barada malumat. Bela bir
miraciatin edilmasi nazarde tutuldugu halda istigrazlarin ticarata buraxilacag
tanzimlanan bazar haqqinda malumat va ticarata buraxilma sartlari:

istigrazlarin ilkin yerlagdirilmasi, listingi ve tadaviilii Baki Fond Birjasinda aparilacaqdir.
istigrazlarin tanzimlanan bazarda ticarats buraxiimasi barada “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-ya
Emitent tarafindan miiraciat istigrazlar dovlat geydiyyatina alindigdan sonra edilacakdir.

Emissiyada istirak edan saxslarin maraqlari, o ciimladan maraqlarin toqusmasi barada
atrafli malumat:

“Baki Fond Birjasi” Qapali Sshmdar Comiyyati

Emissiya prosesinda istirak edan “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC yeni emissiya edilmis istigrazlarin
listinga daxil edilmasi, harrac vasitasils istigrazlarin ilkin yerlasdirilmasi, hamcinin takrar
bazarda algi-satqisi tigiin pesakar kiitlavi ticarati taskil edir.

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC 2000-ci ilda gapali sshmdar camiyyati formasinda tasis edilmis va
21 iyul 2000-ci il tarixli “fond birjasi faaliyyati” —ni hayata kegirmaya icaza versn 5 sayli
muiddatsiz lisenziya asasinda Azerbaycan Respublikasi srazisinds giymatli kagizlar ve
torama maliyys alatlari lizra kiitlavi ticaratin pesakar taskilatcisi kimi faaliyyst gostarir.
“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-da dovlat giymatli kagizlari bazari, korporativ giymatli kagizlar
bazari va térama maliyyas alstlari bazarlari mévcuddur.

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin faaliyyati AR Miilki Macallssi, Qiymatli Kagizlar Bazan
hagginda AR Qanunu, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin digar hiiqugi-normativ aktlar ve “Baki
Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin nizamnamasi va daxili Qaydalari ila tanzimlanir.

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi (bundan sonra- MDM) Qiymatli Kagizlar
Bazar hagqinda Qanunun 16.1-ci maddasina asasan tasis olunan qeyri-kommersiya
hliqugi sexsdir. MDM Azarbaycan Respublikasinin arazisinda depozitar sisteminin isini
taskil edan ve alagalandiran Markazi Depozitardir.

Emissiya Prossesinde MDM-in vazifalori asagidakilardir:

Baglanilmis aqdlar tzra kliringin aparilmasi.

Anderrayter



2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

2.18.
g.19.

“AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” QSC 06 yanvar 2016-ci il tarixinds Azarbaycan Respublikasi
Igtisadiyyat ve Senaye Nazirliyi tarafindsn verilmis 087907 sayli lisenziya asasinda
qiymatli kagizlar bazarinda ssas ve yardimgi investisiya xidmatlarini géstaran investisiya
sirkatidir. Bu emissiyanin anderrayteri kimi Emitentin bitiin satis sifarislorini harrac
zamani Birjaya taqdim edir, “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat sistemi vasitasi ila
istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasi xidmatlsrini gostarir.

Bu emissiyada istirak edan {iclincli saxslar arasinda emitentle aidiyyati saxs yoxdur.
Markazi Depozitar emissiyani geydiyyata aldigi zaman komissiya alds edir. Fond birjasi va
anderrayter isa istigraziar yerlasdirildikca emitentdan va invetorlardan komissiya alda
edir va bir basa maddi maraqlari vardir. Emissiyada istirak edan saxslar arasinda maraglar
togqusmasina yol agan hallar mévcud deyil.

istiqraz taklifinin sabablari va istiqrazlarin yerlasdiriimasindan alda edilan vasaitlarin
istifade edilmasi barada artafli malumat: Olks igtisadiyyatinin igtisadi artim prosesina
daxil olmasi va reyting agentliklarinin névbati illar Gzra iqgtisadi artim prognozlar
emitentin bu prosesds istirakini, faydalanmasini va iqgtisadiyyata toéhva vermasini
sortlondirir. lIstigrazlarin yerlasdiriimasinden alds edilan vasait Emitentin asas
faaliyyatinin inkisafina yénaldilacakdir.

dlda olunan vasaitlarin nazards tutulan layihalarinin maliyyslasdirmak miimkin
olmadig! taqdirda talab olunan alava pul vasaitlarinin manbalsri ve mablagi: Hazirda
taskilatin resurs manbalari xtisusi kapital (2884910 manat), bank 6hdaliklari (34 803
902,26 manat) va istigraz 6hdaliklaridir ( 0 manat). (01.09.2021 tarixa).

Slda olunan vasaitlarin istifadasi, digar miiassisalarinin alisini maliyyalagdirmak tgiin
va ya borclan qaytarmag, azaltmaq, restrukturizasiya etmak liclin va ya basqa aktivlari
alda etmak ligiin istifade olunmasi barade malumat: istiqrazlarin yerlasdirilmasindan
alde edilon vasait Emitentin asas faaliyyatinin genislandirilmasina va inkisafina
yonaldilacakdir. @lda olunan vasaitlarin digar miiassisalarin alisini maliyyslasdirmak,
borclari gaytarmag va ya restruktuzasiya etmak va ya emitentin asas faaliyyatina aidiyyati
olmayan aktivlari alda etmak Gglin istifads olunmasi nazarda tutulmamigdir.

istigrazlarin saxlanmasi va onlara hiiquglarin ugotunu aparan Markazi Depozitarin
oldugu yer:

Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Milli Depozit Markazi (bundan sonra-MDM) Qiymatli Kagizlar
Bazari haqqinda Qanunun 16.1-ci maddasina ssasan tasis olunan geyri-kommersiya
hiiqugi saxs olub, Azarbaycan Respublikasinin arazisinda depozitar sisteminin isini taskil
edoan va alagalandiran Markazi Depozitardir.

Huqugi tinvani: AZ1000, Baki sah., Bul-Bdl pr., 27;

Faktiki tinvani: Baki s., Yasamal r-nu, Hasan bay Zardabi kiligasi 2A (Sokolad Tower)
istigrazlar tizra galirliyin faiz daracasi : illik 12,5 faiz;

istigrazlarin va faizlerin 6danilmasi tarixi va miiddati: istigrazlarin faiz deracasi 12,5%
taskil edir, istigrazlarin faiz 6danisi istigrazlarin yerlasdirildiyi tarixdan hesablanaraq har 3
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2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

2.23.

2.24.

2.25.

2.26.

ayin (bir ay 30 giin oldugunu gabul etmak sarti ila) tamaminda édanilacakdir. istigrazlarin
nominal dayarinin 6danisi tadaviil miiddatinin sonunda édanilacakdir.

Odanislar iizra hesablasma agenti- “FINCA AZORBAYCAN” QEYRI-BANK KREDIT TOSKILATI
M3HDUD MaSULIYYSTLI COMIYYSTI;

istgirazlarin emissiyasi haqqinda gararin gabul edilmasi tarixi, nomrasi va garan gabul
etmis emitentin idarsetma organinin adi:

Emitentin idara heyatinin 28.10.2021-ci il tarixli Qarari.

Taklifin va yerlagdirmanin baslanma va basa ¢atma tarixlari-

Yerlasdirmanin baslanma tarixi: istiqrazlarin yerlasdirilmasi  kutlovi taklif wsulu ila
harracin kegirilmasi Gsulu ila “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat platformasinda hayata
kegirilacak. Istigrazlarin listings daxil olmasi ila baglh miiraciat Azarbaycan Respublikasi
Markazi Banki tarafinden buraxilis dovlst geydiyyatina alindigdan sonra edilacakdir.
Istigrazlar mahdudiyyat olmadan biitiin fiziki va hiiqugi saxslara taklif olunacaqdir.
investisiya giymatli kagizlarina abuna yazilisi va yerlasdirilmasi hagqinda” Qaydalarin
3.12-ci bandina asasan, istigrazlarin yerlagdirilmasina baglaniimasi tarixina an az1 2 is glinii
galmis yerlasdirilmasinin baslanmasi tarixi ve harracin kegirilmasi sartlari elan edacak va
fond birjasina bu barada yazili bildiris gdéndarilacakdir. istigrazlarin yerlasdiriimasina
onlarin fond birjasinda ticarata buraxilmasindan sonra baslanilacagq.

Yerlasdirmanin basacatma tarixi: Harrac gqaydalarina uygun olaraq “Baki Fond Birjas!”
QSC va anderrayter tarafindan elan edilan mivafiq harracin bas tutdugu giin.

Taklifin qlivvada oldugu miiddat arzinda prospekta diizalislarin edils bilacayi miiddat
va duzalislarin edilmasi gaydasi - Emissiya prospektinda dayisikliklarin  dévlat
geydiyyatina alinmasi lgtin arize mivafig gararin gabul edildiyi glindan 5 is glinii arzinds
AR Morkazi Bankina toqdim edilir. Emissiya prospektinds edilmis dayisikliklar déviat
geydiyyatina alindigi tarixdan bes is glini srzinds “Qiymatli kagizlar bazari hagqinda”
Qanunun 7.1-ci maddasi ila miiayyan edilmis vasitalarla agiglanir va aciglandigi tarixdan
on bes is giinii bitdikdan sonra glivvaya minir.

Taklifin dayandirilmasi va ya taxira salinmasi hallarinin izahi- Taklif “Qiymatli kagizlar
bazan hagqinda” Qanunun 9-cu maddasina asasan dayandirila bilsr.

istigrazlara abuna yazilisi kegirildikde asagidaki malumat- istigrazlar harrac Usulu ils
yerlasdirilacakdir;

istiqrazlar harrac vasitasila yerlagdirildikda, harracin kegirilmasi qaydasi- istigrazlar
birgiymatli harrac tsulu ila “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat platformasinda birja lizvii
tarafindon sifariglarin birjanin sistemina daxil edilmasi yolu ila algi-satqr aqdlari
baglaniimagla ilkin yerlasdirilacakdir. Istigrazlarin vyerlssdirilmasina onlarin fond
birjasinda ticarata buraxiimasindan sonra baslanilir. Harrac gilinii anderrayter va digar
birja lzvleri sifariglarin gabul edilmasi tglin elan olunmus middat arzindas istigrazlarin
alinmas giin sifariglsri “Baki Fond Birjas”” QSC-ya taqdim edir. investorlar tarafindan
taqdim edilmis sifarislerin comi emissiyanin Umumi hacmindsan gox olarsa, sifarislor
proporsional gaydada icra olunacaqdir. Harrac glinlindan gec olmayaragq, istigrazlarin
alinmas tictin pul vasaitlari investorlar tarafindan “AzFinance investisiya Sirkati” QSC-nin



2.27.

2.28.

2.29.

2.30.

hesablagma agentinds olan bank hesabina kogiriilmalidir. Harracin kecirilmasi tarixi
Emitent torafindan miiayyan edilir va harracin kegirilmasina an az1 2 ig glinli galmis “Baki
Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin internet saytinda (www.bfb.az) ve Emitentin internet saytinda
(www.finca.az) aciglanir.

istiqrazlarin dayarinin 6danilmasi va investorlarin istiqrazlarla tachizati sartlari va
qaydasi- istiqrazlarin dayarinin édanilmasi kégiirms yolu ils investisiya sirkati vasitasila
hayata - kegirilir. Kliring gaydalarina mivafiq olaraq, istigrazlan alds etmak istayan
investorlar istigrazlarin yerlagdirilmasi barada malumat acgiglandigi vaxtdan etibarsan 6z
tasdiq edilmis sifarislarini investisiya sirkatina tagdim edir va almaq istadiyi istigrazlarin
dayarini “AzFinance Investisiya Sirkati” QSC-nin hesablasma agentinda olan bank
hesabina kéglrir. Harrac basa ¢atdigdan sonra 1 is glinii arzinds investisiya sirkati harrac
zamani investor liclin aldigi istigrazlar barads rasmi malumati (hesabati) investora taqdim
edir. Mistari tarafindan hesab lizrs sarancam verildiyi andan investisiya sirkati miistarinin
“depo” hesabinda mdévcud olan va hamin sarancamda gdéstarilan giymatli kagizlar barads
malumat almaq hiiququna malikdir;

istiqrazlarin yerlasdirilmasinin baglanmasi barada investorlara bildirislarin gondarilmasi
gaydasi va satisin xabardarliq edilmazdan ©nca baslaya bilib-bilmamasi barada
malumat- Harracin kegirildiyi giin investorlara harracin baslanmasi saati elektron pogt
vasitasi ila bildirilacakdir. istigrazlarin satisi xabardarliq edilmadan baslanila bilmaz.
istiqrazlarin taklif giymati. Qiymatin malum olmadig taqdirda istiqraziarin giymatinin
muayyanlagdirilmasi metodunu géstarmakla bu prosesda istirak edan va masuliyyat
dasiyan saxslar barasinds malumat: istigrazlar 1 000 (bir min) manat giymatina taklif
olunur.

istiqraz alicisinin 6damali oldugu vergi va xarclarin mablagi:

Istiqrazlar lizre faiz &danisi zamani ganunvericilikds miiayyan edilmis qaydada édama
manbayindan vergi tutulur. Hiiqugi saxs olan istigraz milkiyyatgilarinin istigrazlar tizra
faiz galirindan Azarbaycan Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 123-cii maddasina mivafiq
olarag 6denis manbayindan 10 (on) faiz vergi tutulur (Vergi Macsllasinin 123.1-ci
maddasinda nazarda tutulan saxsler istisna olmagla.) Bununla yanasi, Azarbaycan
Respublikasinin Vergi Macallasinin 102.1.22-ci maddasina asasan, fiziki saxslar 1 fevral
2016-ci il tarixindan etibaran 7 (yeddi) il miiddatina yerli bank va xarici bankin Azarbaycan
Respublikasinda faaliyyat gostaran filiali tarafindan fiziki saxslarin amanati tizrs 6danilan
illik faiz galirleri, habele emitent tarafindan investisiya giymatli kagizlari iizra 6danilan
dividend, diskont (istigrazlarin nominalindan asag: yerlasdirilmasi naticasinds yaranmis
forq) ve faiz galirlarindan azaddirlar. Yani, istiqrazlar Gzra 6danilan faiz (kupon)
ddanisindan tutulan vergidan fiziki saxslar 2023-cii ilin fevral ayinin 1-dak azaddirlar.
istiqrazlarin dévriyyads oldugu miiddatda vergi ganunvericiliyi dayisarss, tatbiq edilacak
vergilar barade malumat emitent va ya anderrayter tarafinden kitlavi informasiya
vasitalari ils investorlarin diggatina ¢atdirilacagdir.

aqdin mablaginin 0,02%-i hacminda “Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC komissiyasi;



2.31.

2.32.

2.33.

2.34.

investisiya sirkatinin komisyon haqqi: investisiya sirkati ils investor arasinda baglanilmisg
miiqaviladan asili olaraq dayisir;

“depo” hesab agilmasi liglin 10 manat;

hesablagma agentinds olan bank hesabina pul kdgliriilmasi zamani bank-kéclirma xarci
(bankdan asil olaraqg dayisir).

istigrazlar ohdalik gotiirmakla va ya &hdalik gétirmadan yerlasdiran anderrayter
barada malumat (adi, lisenziyasi va tinvani). Xidmat haqqi-

istigrazlar “AzFinance investisiya Sirksti”Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati tarafindan 6hdalik
gotiriilmakla yerlasdirilacakdir.

“AzFinance Investisiya Sirkati” QSC 06 yanvar 2016-ci il tarixinds Azarbaycan
Respublikasinin igtisadiyyat ve Senaye Nazirliyi tarafindan verilmis 087907 sayli lisenziya
asasinda qiymatli kagizlar bazarinda asas va yardimgi investisiya xidmatlarini géstaran
pegakar investisiya sirkatidir.

Unvani: Baki sahari, Yasamal rayonu, Nariman Narimanov pr-ti 206, mahalls 466, AZ1065.
VOEN-i: 1303538081.

Telefon: + 994 (12) 310 33 30

Elektron poct tinvani: info@afi.az

Emitent Anderrayterla baglanilmis migavilays asasan agdin mablsginin 2%-i hacminda
komissiya 6dayacakdir.

Emitentin giymatli kagizlarinin ticarata buraxildigi tanzimlanan bazarlar barada
malumat- istigrazlarin yerlasdirilmasi kiitlavi taklif iisulu ila harracin kegirilmasi tisulu ila
“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin ticarat platformasinda hayata kecirilacak. istiqrazlarin listinga
daxil oimasti ilo bagl miiracist Azarbaycan Respublikasi Markazi Banki tarafindan buraxilis
dovlat geydiyyatina alindigdan sonra edilacakdir.

“Baki Fond Birjasi” Qapali Sshmdar Camiyyati

VOEN-i: 1700262271

Dovlat qeydiyyatinin tarixi va némrasi: 27.08.1997-ci il, Ne 3

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC miiddatsiz lisenziyaya malikdir. Faaliyyat istigamsti- Dévlat
giymatli kagizlari bazarinin, korporativ giymatli kagizlar bazarinin, térama maliyyas alstlari
bazarinin ticaratinin taskil va idara edilmasidir. Qiymatli kagizlarin ticarata buraxilimasi
“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC-nin “Baki Fond birjasinda giymatli kagizlarin listings daxil
olunmasi, listingda saxlanilmasi, delistingi ve ticaratinin taskili Qaydalari” na asasen
hayata kecirilir.

Market meyker(lar) barada malumat- Emitent tarsfindan galacakds istigrazlarin takrar
bazarda tadavili ticiin prosesa market meyker(lar) calb edila bilar.

Reyting prosesinda emitentin sorgusu va ya emitentla amakdashq naticasinda
emitent va ya onun borc giymatli kagizlan tGglin tayin olunmus kredit reytinqglari- taklif
edilan istigrazlara reyting alda edilmasi Uglin he¢ bir reyting agentliyina miiraciat
edilmayib.
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City Point Baku, 9" floor
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Baku, AZ1022, Azerbaijan
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office@bakertilly.az
www.bakertilly.az

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Founder and the Management Board of “FINCA Azerbaijan™ Limited Liability Non-Banking Credit
Organization (the “Company™):

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of “FINCA Azerbaijan™ Limited Liability Non-Banking Credit
Organization (the “Company™). which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020,
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the vear then ended and notes to the financial statements. including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Fthics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS. and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

ASSURANCE ADVISCORY TAX LEGAL

Baker Tilly Audit Azerbaijan CJSC trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd,, the members of
which are separate and independent legal entities
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
P

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management:

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However. future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern:

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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May 17, 2021
Baku. the Republic of Azerbaijan



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise [ndicated)

Notes December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 3.885 7,722
Loans to customers, net 7 10,556 7.155
Property. equipment and intangible assets 8 128 142
Right-of-use assets 9 248 351
Deferred income tax assets 16 287 323
Other assets 10 311 270
Total assets 15415 15,963
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Borrowed funds I 5.562 4.138
Lease liabilities 12 255 355
Other liabilities 13.17 478 476
Total liabilities 6.295 4.969
EQUITY:
Share capital 4.205 4.205
Retained earnings 26,468 28.342
Translation reserves (21.553) (21.553)
Total equity 9,120 10,994
TOTAL &IL[TIES AND EQUITY 15415 15,963

/

\;\\L V1

Muhamntzd Mobeen Yaqoob
Deputy Director

NS
May 17, EDZL‘fgL.HL__/ May 17, 2021
Baku, the RequﬁE‘ﬁf‘ﬁ'éerbaijan Baku. the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 8-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Interest income 14 3,229 1.016
Interest expense 14 (385) (34)
Net interest income before recovery of expected credit losses 2,844 982
Recovery of expected credit losses 7 511 7.224
Net interest income 3,355 8,206
Administrative and other operating expenses 15, 17 (3,235) (2,928)
Net fair value gain on financial instruments at initial

measurement 7.11 281 1.355
Loss from change in fair value of repossessed collaterals (8) (39)
Other income/(expense). net 39 (2)
Net non-interest loss (2.923) (1.614)
Profit before income tax 432 6,592
Income tax expense 16 (36) (74)
Net profit for the year 396 6,518
Totdl tomprehensive income for the year 6,518

J
i

({n behalf of the Management Board:

k/\

M uhamm&bMubeen Yaqoub
Deputy Director

May 17, 2021
Baku. the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on paues‘&-ﬁ:ﬁﬁrm an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Share Retained Translation Total
capital earnings reserve equity
January 1, 2019 4,205 21,824 (21,553) 4,476
Total comprehensive income for the
year - 6.518 - 6518
December 31,2019 4,208 28.342 (21,553) 10,994
Total comprehensive income for the
year B 396 - 396
Dividends deglared - (2.270) - (2.270)
4,205 26,468 (21.553) 9,120

NN

Muhammad Mobeen Yagoob~
Deputy Director

May 17. "0"’] \\ ; May 17. 2021
Baku. the Repubﬁgo}‘}k 2iF 39}"/ Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 8-63 forrn an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Recovery of expected credit losses 7
Depreciation and amortization 8.9, 15
Net change in accrued interest
Loss from disposal of property. equipment and intangible assets
(Gain)/loss from change in fair value of repossessed collaterals
Fair value gain on loans to customers and borrowed funds at

initial measurement 2,10

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Loans to customers, net

Other assets

Other liabilities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowed funds 11
Transaction cost paid on borrowed funds 11
Repayment of principal portion on lease liabilities 12

Dividends paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities

Year ended

Year ended

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

432 6,592
(511) (7.224)
266 203
251 (110)
1 18
8 39
(281) (1.355)
166 (1.837)
(2.790) 2,655
(52) (62)
3 43
(2,673) 799
(62) (135)
(62) (135)
1.360 5.295

(6) (2
(186) (92

(2,270)

(1,102) 5,177




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes Year ended
December 31,
2020
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3.837)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 6 7,722
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF THE YEAR 6 3,885

Year ended
December 31,
2019

5.841

1,881

7,722

Interest paid and received by the Company during the year ended December 31,
USD 40 thousand and USD 3,130 thousand. respectively,

received by the Company during the year ended December 31.
and USD 907 thousand, respectively.

Interest paid
USD 34 thoubar

2020 amounted to

2019 amounted to

L

Deputy Director

May 17, 2021

s May 17,2021
Baku. the Republi

The notes on pages 8-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Muhammad Mobeen Yaqoob

Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

INTRODUCTION

Company and its principal activity

“FINCA Azerbaijan™ LLC (the “Company™) was incorporated in the Republic of Azerbaijan in 1998.
Until November 19, 1999 it was registered as a representative office of FINCA International Inc. in
Azerbaijan. On November 19, 1999 the Company was registered with the Azerbaijan Ministry of

Justice and obtained the status of a legal entity. The Company w.
regulations of the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan, in

as reregistered to comply with the
accordance with which only legal

entities can perform lending activities on the territory of Azerbaijan. The new entity obtained a license
for lending activities from the Central Bank of Azerbaijan on February 29, 2000. The address of the

Company’s registered office is 44 Jafar Jabbarly Street, Baku AZ1065. Az

erbaijan.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial services including loans to representatives of micro.
small and medium sized businesses in the Republic of Azerbaijan and also to individuals and groups
of individuals engaged in sales and small-scale productive micro enterprises.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had 17 and 15 branches respectively operating in the
Republic of Azerbaijan. The Company had an average of 171 employees during 2020 (2019:

142 employees).

The Company is a subsidiary of FINCA Microfinance Codperatief U.A.. which has a registered office
in the Netherlands. The ultimate controlling party of the Company is FINCA International Inc., a not-
for-profit corporation, incorporated in New York, United States of America. In October 2010, FINCA

International Inc. formed FINCA Microfinance Holding Company LLC

owned holding company.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 the following shareholders owned the Company:

December 31,

(*FMH™) to become a 100%

December 31,

2020, % 2019, %
Shareholder of the Company (Shareholder of the first level)
FINCA Microfinance Cosperatief U.A. 100.0 100.00
Total 100.0 100.00
December 31, December 31,
2020, % 2019, %
Ultimate shareholders of the Company
FINCA International. Inc. 62.64 62.64
International Finance Corporation 14.38 14.38
Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau 8.94 8.94
FMO (Nederlandse Financierings Maatschappij voor
Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.) 7.31 7.31
Triple Jump. acting for ASN-NOVIB FONDS 1.68 1.68
Credit Suisse Microfinance Fund Management Company, acting for
responsibility Global Microfinance Fund 298 2.98
Triodos Investment Management, representing: (i) Triodos Custody
B.V.in its capacity as custodian of Triodos Fair Share Fund; and (ii)
Triodos SICAV 11 - Triodos Microfinance Fund 2.07 2.07
Total 100.00 100.00




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicateq)

Operating Environment of the Company
The Company’s operations are conducted in the Republic of Azerbaijan.

There were a number of significant changes in the operating and economic environment during the
year 2020, which had an impact on the Company’s business activities.

In March 2020 the World Health Organization (WHO) announced that the spread of the COVID-19
virus across the globe was a pandemic. Significant restrictions on travel and movement of individuals
and the closure of non-essential businesses have either been imposed in most countries or have
happened as a result of the pandemic. This has led to significant declines in GDP in most if not all
large economically strong countries in which the Republic of Azerbaijan is in a trade relationship. The
global economy was negatively impacted by the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) spread in the first
half of 2020. Starting from June 2020 many countries including the Republic of Azerbaijan
demonstrated improvement in the signs of pandemic and certain restrictions were lifted subsequently.
As a result. recovery in global financial and commodity markets observed. However, subsequently the
number of reported cases significantly increased in the Republic of Azerbaijan. and the government
introduced new restrictions from mid-December 2020.

The restrictive lock-down measures to combat COVID-19 in the country significantly reduced
economic activity and aggregate spending levels. Certain segments of the economy, such as hotels.
transport, travel. entertainment and many other businesses also international trade much affected by
these measures.

Qil prices have decreased significantly due to the substantial reduction in oil consumption in the
pandemic environment but demonstrated stable growth during the second quarter of 2020. The
government introduced support packages in the form of subsidized lending tools. payments to
unemployed individuals and other subsidies to the entrepreneurs during the year to compensate for the
economic slowdown caused by the pandemic.

On April 24, 2020, the Central Bank of Azerbaijan approved a package of additional measures
“Procedure for the Temporary Regulation of Credit Institutions in the Context of the Coronavirus
Pandemic™. This procedure is designed to reduce the possible negative impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the banking sector of the Republic of Azerbaijan and determines the classification of
loans and risk groups, capital adequacy ratio and its calculation in banks and non-bank credit
organizations operating in the Republic of Azerbaijan. According to the rules. concessions should be
considered during the classification of loans and credit restructuring cases that meet the criteria. In
addition, the total capital adequacy ratio for banks which are having special importance for the banking
system was set at a minimum of 11%, and for other banks at 9% until April 1, 2021. According to the
rule. dividend payments based on the results of previous years should be postponed until April 1. 2021,
in order to protect the capital position and financial stability of banks.

The Company’s operations are conducted mainly in the Republic of Azerbaijan. Azerbaijan continues
economic reforms and development of its legal. tax and regulatory frameworks. The future stability of
the Azerbaijan’s economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and developments and the
effectiveness of economic. financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government as well as
crude oil prices and stability of Azerbaijani Manat. Although the economy of the Republic of
Azerbaijan is particularly sensitive to oil and gas prices, during recent years the Government of the
Republic of Azerbaijan initiated major economic and social reforms to accelerate the transition to a
more balanced economy and reduce dependence on the oil and gas sector. GDP in Azerbaijan was
USD 42.6 billion during the year 2020, according to the State Statistical Committee of the Republic

of Azerbaijan. In the long-term. the Azerbaijan GDP is projected to trend around USD 50 billion in
2021 and USD 51 billion in 2022, according to our econometric models.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US doallars, unless otherwise indicated)

The government continued its monetary policy with respect to the stability of Azerbaijani Manat as
well as allocated foreign currency resources which stabilized Azerbaijani Manat. This policy continued
in 2020 with the aim of maintaining macroeconomic stability. The Central Bank of the Republic of
Azerbaijan has changed the refinancing rate several times during the vear and the range was between
7.25% - 6.25% with a steady decrease in rates.

The Company’s management is monitoring changes in the macroeconomic environment and taking
precautionary measures it considers necessary in order to support the sustainability and development
of the Company’s business in the foreseeable future.

International credit rating agencies regularly evaluate the credit rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan.
Fitch and S&P evaluated the rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan as “BB+". Moody’s Investors
Service set “Ba2” credit rating for the country.

The future economic growth of the Republic of Azerbaijan is largely dependent upon the effectiveness
of economic. financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government, together with tax. legal.
regulatory and political developments. The Management is unable to predict, all developments in the
economic environment which would have an impact on the Company’s operations and consequently
what effect, if any. they could have on the financial position of the Company. The management is
currently performing sensitivity analyses under different oil price scenarios and elaborating relevant
action plans for maintaining the sustainability of the business.

In September 2020, the escalation of unresolved conflict in Karabakh region (located in the southwest,
which is internationally recognized as part of the Republic of Azerbaijan) resulted in clashes between
the Republic of Azerbaijan and Armenian forces in occupied territories. In response. both countries
introduced a curfew and military mobilization. Although the military actions mainly occurred in the
western part of the Republic of Azerbaijan. some businesses were affected by the curfew which
covered all the territories of the Republic of Azerbaijan including the capital Baku. to a certain degree.
A complete ceasefire and a cessation of all hostilities in the zone of the Karabakh conflict was achieved
on November 10. 2020. The level of macroeconomic effects in which the state involvement in liberated
regions is uncertain as of reporting date.

These events and conditions described above created a level of uncertainty and risk that companies
have not encountered before. The above-mentioned events had a significant effect on the financial
results of the Company during the year ended December 31. 2020 and in the subsequent period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB™) and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™).

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company is a going concern
and will continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Management views the Company as continuing in business for the foreseeable future with neither the
intention nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking protection from creditors pursuant to
laws or regulations of the Republic of Azerbaijan. Accordingly, assets and liabilities are recorded on the
basis that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Some financial reporting frameworks contain an explicit requirement for management to make a
specific assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. and standards regarding
matters to be considered and disclosures to be made in connection with going concern.

10



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Management’s assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a judgment, at a
particular point in time. about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain.

Other basis of presentation criteria

These financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars (*USD™). unless otherwise
indicated. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments.

The Company maintains its accounting records in accordance with the laws of the Republic of
Azerbaijan. These financial statements have been prepared from the statutory accounting records and
have been adjusted to conform to IFRS. These adjustments include certain reclassifications to reflect
the economic substance of underlying transactions including reclassifications of certain assets and
liabilities. income and expenses to appropriate financial statement captions.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis. or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expense is not offset in the statement of profit or loss unless required or permitted by an accounting standard
or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

Financial instruments - key measurement terms.

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or amortized cost as
described below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is the
price in an active market. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quoted
price for the individual asset or liability and the number of instruments held by the entity. This is the
case even if a market’s normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity held and
placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s length
transactions or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to measure fair value of certain
financial instruments for which external market pricing information is not available. Fair value
measurements are analyzed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are
measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. (ii) level
two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is. derived from prices), and (iii) level
three measurements are valuations not based on solely observable market data (that is. the
measurement requires significant unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 18.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition. issue or disposal
of a financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the
transaction had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents
(including employees acting as selling agents), advisors. brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt
premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

11



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial recognition
less any principal repayments. plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for
incurred impairment losses. Accrued interest includes amortization of transaction costs deferred at
initial recognition and of any premium or discount to the maturity amount using the effective interest
method. Accrued interest income and accrued interest expense. including both accrued coupon and
amortized discount or premium (including fees deferred at origination, if any). are not presented
separately and are included in the carrying values of the related items in the statement of financial
position.

The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the
carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period. if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument.
The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest
repricing date. except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating
rate specified in the instrument. or other variables that are not reset 1o market rates. Such premiums or
discounts are amortized over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial
recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which can
be evidenced by either observable current market transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation
technique whose inputs include only data from observable markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which
is the date when the Company comm its to deliver a financial instrument. All other purchases and sales
are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification of financial instruments

A financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost. fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCTI™) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows: and

+  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets: and

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading. the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis,

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVPL.

In addition. on initial recognition. the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI at FVPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held ata
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

» the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the sale of
the assets:

+  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
«  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed:

+  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and

+  the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods. the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective
for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment. the Company considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows:
= leverage features:
* prepayment and extension terms;



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

« terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

«  features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. The reclassification has a
prospective effect.

Financial assets impairment — credit loss allowance for ECL

The Company assesses. on a forward-looking basis, the ECL for debt instruments measured at AC and
FVOCI and for the exposures arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The
Company measures ECL and recognizes credit loss allowance at each reporting date. The measurement
of ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes. (ii) time value of money and (iii) all reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost and effort at the end of each reporting period about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions.

Debt instruments measured at AC are presented in the statement of financial position net of the
allowance for ECL. For loan commitments and financial guarantees, a separate provision for ECL is
recognized as a liability in the statement of financial position. For debt instruments at FVOCI. changes
in amortized cost, net of allowance for ECL. are recognized in profit or loss and other changes in
carrying value are recognized in OCI as gains less losses on debt instruments at FVOCIL.

The Company applies a three stage model for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified
in Stage 1. Financial assets in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime ECL that results from default events possible within the next 12 months or until contractual
maturity, if shorter (12 months ECL™). If the Company identifies SICR since initial recognition, the
asset is transferred to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis, that is, up
until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments. if any (“Lifetime ECL”). Refer to
Note 21 for a description of how the Company determines when a SICR has occurred. If the Company
determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and its ECL is
measured as a Lifetime ECL. The Company’s definition of credit impaired assets and definition of
default is explained in Note 21. For financial assets that are purchased or originated credit-impaired
(“POCI Assets™). the ECL is always measured as a Lifetime ECL. POCI assets are financial assets that
are credit-impaired upon initial recognition. such as impaired loans acquired. Note 21 provides
information about inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL. including
an explanation of how the Company incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL models.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

« financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

+  loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally. as a provision:

+  where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Company
cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Company presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined
amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any
excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a
provision; and

14



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

« debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial
position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash
flows from the assets otherwise expire or (b) the Company has transferred the rights to the cash flows
from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement whilst (i) also
transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither transferring
nor retaining substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Control is
retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with Companys. and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at AC because: (i) they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
those cash flows represent SPPI. and (ii) they are not designated at FVTPL. Features mandated solely
by legislation, such as the bail-in legislation in certain countries. do not have an impact on the SPPI
test, unless they are included in contractual terms such that the feature would apply even if the
legislation is subsequently changed.

Loans to customers, net

Loans to customers are recorded when the Company advances money to purchase or originate a loan
due from a customer. Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the Company
classifies loans and advances to customers into one of the following measurement categories:

(1) AC: loans that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent
SPPI and loans that are not voluntarily designated at FVTPL, and

(i1) FVTPL: loans that do not meet the SPPI test or other criteria for AC or FVOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting
from the Company’s enforcement activities will result in gain from reversal of ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with

the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
Or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Borrowed funds

Borrowed funds are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received. net
of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition. interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement. Gains
and losses are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired,
as well as through the amortization process.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c.. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred.
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term.

If the ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
re-measured if there is a modification. a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g..
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of property
and equipment. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount, which is
determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount of property and equipment is greater than their estimated recoverable amount. it is
written down to their recoverable amount and the difference is charged as an impairment loss to the
statement of profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amount and recorded as gain/(loss) in the statement of profit or loss.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss when the expense is incurred.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives. using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis at the following annual rates:

Furniture and office equipment 20-33%
Computer equipment 33%
Vehicles 20%
Other assets 20%
Right-of-use assets over the term of the

underlying lease

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include investment into software license and its customization.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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De-recognition of intangible assets. An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal. or when no future
cconomic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset. and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill. At the end of each reporting period,
the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(ifany). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset. the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually. and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Repossessed collateral

The Company obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered appropriate.
The collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives the Company a
claim on these assets for both existing and future customer liabilities.

In certain circumstances, assets are repossessed following the foreclosure on loans that are in default.
Repossessed collateral is initially recognized at an amount equal to the carrying amount of a loan for
which it was pledged. Repossessed assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recorded for debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI
on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as part of interest income
or expense, all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity relating
to the creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability. for example fees
for evaluating creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the
terms of the instrument and for processing transaction documents.

Commitment fees received by the Company to originate loans at market interest rates are integral to
the effective interest rate if it is probable that the Company will enter into a specific lending
arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination. The Company does
not designate loan commitments as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

For financial assets that are originated or purchased credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is the
rate that discount the expected cash flows (including the initial expected credit losses) to the fair value
on initial recognition (normally represented by the purchase price). As a result, the effective interest is
credit-adjusted.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets, except for:

i) financial assets that have become credit-impaired (Stage 3). for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to their AC (net of the ECL provision); and

ii) financial assets that are purchased or originated credit-impaired. for which the original credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the AC.

Recognition of fee and commission income

Loan origination fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate of the loan. Where it is probable that a loan commitment will lead to a specific
lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs. and
recognized as an adjustment to the rate of the resulting loan. Where it is unlikely that a loan commitment
will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are recognized in profit or loss
over the remaining period of the loan commitment. Where a loan commitment expires without resulting
in a loan, the loan commitment fee is recognized in profit or loss on expiry. Loan servicing fees are
recognized as revenue as the services are provided. All other commissions are recognized when services
are provided.

Retirement and other benefit obligations

In accordance with the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan state pension
system provides for the calculation of current payments by the employer as a percentage of current
total payments to staff. This expense is charged in the period the related salaries are earned. Upon
retirement all retirement benefit payments are made by pension funds selected by employees. The
Company does not have any pension arrangements separate from the state pension system of the
Republic of Azerbaijan. In addition. the Company has no post-retirement benefits or other significant
compensated benefits requiring accrual.
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Operating taxes

The Republic of Azerbaijan also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Company’s
activities. These taxes are included as a component of operating expenses in the statement of profit or
loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Company
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

The results and financial position of the Company are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

a) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the respective reporting period:

b) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions):

¢) Components of equity are translated at the historic rate: and

d) All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When control over a foreign operation is lost, the previously recognized exchange differences on
translation to a different presentation currency are reclassified from other comprehensive income to
profit or loss for the year as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

The exchange rates at the year-end used by the Company in the preparation of the financial statements
are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
AZN 1/USD 0.5882 0.5882
EUR 1/USD 1.2288 1.1197
AZN 1/USD (average rate for the year) 0.5882 0.5882
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3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY UNDER GOING CONCERN BASIS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and
Judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics at the reporting date and the reported
amount of income and expenses during the period ended. Management evaluates its estimates and
Jjudgments on an ongoing basis. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience
and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The following estimates and
Judgments are considered important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition.

Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year include:

Measurement of ECL allowance

Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology, models
and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note 21. The following
components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definition of default, SICR. probability of
default (“PD7), exposure at default (“‘EAD™). and loss given default (*LGD"), as well as models of
macro-economic scenarios.

The Company regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any
differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience. For details of ECL
measurement including incorporation of forward-looking information refers to Note 21.

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR")

In order to determine whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring over the life of a financial instrument at the end of the reporting
date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers relative increase
in credit risk rather than achieving a specific level of credit risk at the end of the reporting period. The
Company considers all reasonable and supportable forward looking information available without
undue cost and effort, which includes a range of factors. including behavioral aspects of particular
customer portfolios. The Company identifies behavioral indicators of increases in credit risk prior to
delinquency and incorporated appropriate forward looking information into the credit risk assessment.
either at an individual instrument. or on a portfolio level. Refer to Note 21.

Modification and de-recognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the
financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date.

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. Loan terms are modified in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default
has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised
terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of
the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment). reduction in the amount of cash flows
due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to other terms. When a financial asset is
modified. the Company assesses whether this modification results in de-recognition. In accordance
with the Company’s policy a modification results in de-recognition when it gives rise to substantially
different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original
contractual terms the Comnanv canciders the fallawina:
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U Quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual

cash flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both
amounts discounted at the original EIR. If the difference in present value is greater than 10% the
Company deems the arrangement is substantially different leading to de-recognition.

If the terms are substantially different. the Company derecognizes the original financial asset and
recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new EIR for the asset. The date of renegotiation
is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes.
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

If the terms are not substantially different. the renegotiation or modification does not result in de-
recognition. and the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows
of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying
amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR (or credit-adjusted
EIR for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows
expire (including expiry arising from modification with substantially different terms), or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to
another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset.

Valuation of lease liabilities and right of use assets

The application of IFRS 16 requires to make judgements of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. In
determining the lease term, the Company considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise renewal options (or not to exercise termination options). Assessing whether a
contract includes a lease also requires judgement. Estimates are required to determine the appropriate
discount rate used to measure lease liabilities.

Recoverability of deferred income tax assets

The management of the Company created valuation allowance against deferred income tax asset in the
amount of USD 1.622 thousand and USD 865 thousand as at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The
carrying value of deferred income tax assets amounted to USD 288 thousand and USD 323 thousand
as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively.

The management of the Company is confident that the carrying amount of deferred income tax asset
will be fully realized in the future.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In the current year, the Company has adopted all of the applicable new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the IASB and the IFRIC of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and
effective for annual reporting periods ending in December 31. 2020.
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IASB has published “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and
IFRS 7)” as a first reaction to the potential effects the IBOR reform could have on financial reporting.
A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount
of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have
no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it does not have any interest rate hedge
relationships.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Amendment of the definition of “Business” — The amendments
will help companies determine whether an acquisition made is of a business or a group of assets.

I'he amended definition emphasizes that the output of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, whereas the previous definition focused on returns in the form of dividends. lower costs or
other economic benefits to investors and others. Distinguishing between a business and a group of
assets is important because an acquirer recognizes goodwill only when acquiring a business.

According to the amendment new definition a “business™ is an integrated set of activities and assets
that is capable of being conducted and managed for the purpose of providing goods or services to
customers. generating investment income (such as dividends or interest) or generating other income
from ordinary activities.

New definition of “Material” — The IASB has issued amendments to its definition of material to make
it easier for companies to make materiality judgements. The updated definition amends IAS |
Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

The amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by including in the
definition guidance that until now has featured elsewhere in IFRS Standards. According to the new
definition, information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence the decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.

On May 15, 2020 IASB has published “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to
IFRS 16)” amending the standard to provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a

COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.

The changes in Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) amend IFRS 16 to:

. provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession
is a lease modification;
. require lessees that apply the exemption to account for COVID-19-related rent concessions as if

they were not lease modifications;

. require lessees that apply the exemption to disclose that fact: and

. require lessees to apply the exemption retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8. but not require
them to restate prior period figures.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1. 2020. Earlier
application is permitted. The impact of adoption of this standard had no effect on the financial
statements.
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED AND NOT YET ADOPTED

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, other than the Standards and Interpretations
adopted by the Company in advance of their effective dates. the following Interpretations were in issue
but not yet effective.

IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts™ was issued in May 2017 and replaced IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts™.
The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition. measurement. presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. An entity shall apply IFRS 17
“Insurance Contracts™ to insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts, it issues: reinsurance
contracts it holds: and investment contracts with discretionary participation teatures it issues, provided
the entity also issues insurance contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2023. Earlier
application is permitted if both IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments have also been applied.

Amendments to IAS 1 to clarify the classification of liabilities — In January 2020 the IASB has
issued “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)”
providing a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under IAS 1 based on the
contractual arrangements in place at the reporting date. The amendments in Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1) affect only the presentation of liabilities in the
statement of tinancial position — not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset. liability income
or expenses, or the information that entities disclose about those items.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2023 and
are to be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3 — In May 2020, the IASB
issued Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements. issued in 1989. with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing
its requirements. The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid
the issue of potential *day 2" gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies. if incurred separately. At the same time. the Board
decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not be affected by
replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and
apply prospectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16 — In
May 2020. the IASB issued Property. Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use. which
prohibits entities deducting from the cost of an item of property. plant and equipment, any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead. an entity recognizes the
proceeds from selling such items. and the costs of producing those items. in profit or loss. The
amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and must
be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.
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Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37 — In May 2020, the
IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing
whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost
approach”, The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both
incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1. 2022.

IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards™ — Subsidiary as a
first-time adopter. As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process, the IASB
issued an amendment to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards™.
The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS I to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent. based on the parent’s date
of transition to IFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or joint venture that elects to
apply paragraph D16 (a) of [FRS 1. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the “10 per cent” test for derecognition of financial
liabilities. As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued
amendment to IFRS 9. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender. including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier
adoption permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment.

“JAS 41 Agriculture” — Taxation in fair value measurements — As part of its 2018-2020 annual
improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued amendment to 1AS 41 Agriculture. The
amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of IAS 41. An entity applies the
amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — The amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the
loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method. are recognized in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors” interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly. gains
and losses resulting from the re-measurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognized in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has vet to be set by the IASB: however. earlier application of
the amendments is permitted.
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Unless otherwise disclosed. the new standards are not expected to have material effect on the financial
statements of the Company.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Cash on hand 7 6
Current accounts with resident banks 3,164 4,704
Term placements with resident banks 588 2,942
Cash in transit 126 70
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,885 7,722

For the purpose of ECL measurement cash and cash equivalents balances are included in Stage 1. The
ECL for these balances represents an insignificant amount: therefore the Company did not recognize
any credit loss allowance for cash and cash equivalents.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Agriculture loans 6,994 4.256
Service loans 2.563 1.879
Trade loans 1.680 1.479
Other loans 198 175

Gross loans to customers 11.435 7.789
Less: allowance for expected credit loss (879) (634)

Total loans to customers, net 10,556 7,155

As at December 31. 2020 and 2019, all loans are granted to customers operating in the Republic of
Azerbaijan, which represents a significant geographical concentration in one region.

The Company received compensation from the government in the amount of USD 6.881 thousand for
the problematic loans under the Decree during the year ended December 31. 2019. Additionally, the
Company restructured loans in the amount of USD 6,895 thousand under the Decree with 1% of
interest and 5 years of maturity. Before restructuring these loans were either written off or presented
in Stage 3. The restructured loans were also granted with 1 year of grace period for payment of
principal amount as stipulated in the Decree. As the modification of terms of these loans were
substantially different from their original conditions, the Company applied derecognition approach
regarding these loans. These loans were recognized as new loans at initial recognition with fair value
of USD 255 thousand taking into account prevailing market rate of 24% and classified as POCI. The
Company recognized gain in the amount of USD 225 thousand from modification at initial recognition
of these loans for the year ended December 31. 2019.

For the purpose of excepted credit loss, the C ompany groups its loans into small and large customers. The

following tables disclose the movements in the gross carrying amounts of loans to customers between
the beginnine and the end nf the renartina nariade-
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
originated
credit-
impaired
(POCI)
Large leans (o customers
As at January 1, 2020 3,720 61 538 120 4,439
Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2 (3.544) 3,544 - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 1 812 (812) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 - (620) 620 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - 4 (4) - B
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 9.550 1.360 219 29 11,158
Other movements (6.081) (1.148) (172) (54) (7.455)
Write-offs (1) = (479) = (480)
As at December 31,2020 4,456 2,389 722 95 7,662
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
originated
credit-
impaired
(POCI)
Small loans (o customers
As at January 1, 2020 3.119 50 76 105 3,350
Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2 (1.742) 1.742 E - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage | 446 (446) - = =
Transfer from Stage 2 1o
Stage 3 - 278) 278 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - 2 (2) - B
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 9.184 539 549 25 10,297
Other movements (8.414) (334) (682) (92) (9.722)
Write-ofts (7) - (145) - (152)
As at December 31, 2020 2,586 1.075 74 38 3,773




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(In thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
originated
credit-
impaired
(POCI)
Large loans 1o customers
As at January 1, 2019 4 1,006 1.967 - 2.977
Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2 (472) 472 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage | 763 (765) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 - (406) 406 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - 36 (36) - -
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 4.676 80 1.655 120 6.531
Other movements (1.253) (362) (2.720) = (4.335)
Write-ofTs - = (734) - (734)
As at December 31, 2019 3,720 61 538 120 4,439
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
originated
credit-
impaired
(POCT)
Small loans to customers
As at January 1, 2019 141 160 288 - 589
Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2 (232) 232 - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 1 217 (217) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 - (77) 77 = s
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - 7 (7) - -
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 6.063 10 619 105 6,797
Other movements (3,070) (65) (825) - (3.960)
Write-offs 5 - (76) - (76)

As at December 31, 2019 3,119 50 76 105 3,350




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

The following tables disclose the movements in the credit loss allowance amounts of loans to

customers between the beginning and the end of the reporting periods:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired)

Large loans to customers
As at January 1, 2020 60 12 476 548
Transfer from Stage | to

Stage 2 (58) 70 - 12
Transfer from Stage 2 to

Stage | 9 (61) - (52)
Transfer from Stage 2 to

Stage 3 - (137) 346 209
Transfer from Stage 3 to

Stage 2 - | (2) (1)
New financial instruments

originated or purchased 74 138 51 263
Other movements 40 118 (827) (669)
Recoveries of loans

previously written-off - - 793 793
Unwinding of discount

(recognized in interest

income) - - 3 39
Write-offs (1) - (479) (480)
As at December 31, 2020 124 141 397 662

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired)

Small loans to customers
As at January 1, 2020 19 2 65 86
Transfer from Stage | to

Stage 2 (10) 21 - 11
Transfer from Stage 2 to

Stage | 3 (16) = (13)
Transfer from Stage 2 to

Stage 3 - (34) 153 119
Transfer from Stage 3 to

Stage 2 - - (1) (1)
New financial instruments

originated or purchased 43 32 8 83
Other movements 6 140 (515) (369)
Recoveries of loans

previously written-off - . 421 421
Unwinding of discount

(recognized in interest

income) - - 32 32
Write-offs (7) = (143) (152)
As at December 31, 2020 54 145 18 217




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

arge oans CHSTamer.
Large loans to customers

As at January 1, 2019

Transfer from Stage | to
Stage 2

Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage |

Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3

Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2

New financial instrument
originated or purchased

Other movements

Recoveries of loans
previously written-off

Unwinding of discount
(recognized in interest
income)

Write-offs

As at December 31, 2019

Small loans to customers

As at January 1, 2019

Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2

Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 1

Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3

Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2

New financial instrument
originated or purchased

Other movements

Recoveries of loans
previously written-off

Unwinding of discount
(recognized in interest
income)

Write-offs

As at December 31, 2019

Stage 1
(12-months
ECL)

Stage 2
(lifetime
ECL)

182

Stage 3
(lifetime
ECL-impaired)

975

Total

1.157

100

(136)

(133)

(16)

155
(24)

362
(1,181)

911

12

(734)

32

(51)
22

(7

461
(1.245)

911

12
(734)

60

12

476

548

Stage 1
(12-months
ECL)

Stage 2
(lifetime
ECL)

Stage 3
(lifetime
ECL-impaired)

132

Total

42
(24)

2

(4)

28
(648)

601

(76)

10

(14)

(3)

70
(670)

601

(76)

19

65

86




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

The tables below show the credit quality analysis of the Company’s loans to customers as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. Explanation of the terms 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL is disclosed

in Note 21. Credit quality in the table below is based on the scale developed internally by the Company.
The scale is described in Note 21.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL- credit-
impaired) impaired
(POCI)
Large loans to
custamers
Current 4,456 1.798 11 3 6.268
Past due 1-30 days - 253 16 3 272
Past due 31-60 days - 172 7 | 180
Past due 61-90 days - 166 29 1 196
Past due more than
90 days - - 659 87 746
Total gross loans to
customers 4,456 2,389 722 95 7,662
Less: Expected credit
losses (124) (141) (397) - (662)
Total net loans to
customers as at
December 31,
2020 4,332 2,248 325 95 7,000
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL- credit-
impaired) impaired
(POCI)
Small loans to
customers
Current 2,586 791 - - 3.377
Past due 1-30 days - 123 1 - 124
Past due 31-60 days - 74 4 - 78
Past due 61-90 days - 87 3 1 91
Past due more than
90 days - - 66 37 103
Total gross loans to
customers 2,586 1,075 74 38 3,773
Less: Expected credit
losses (54) (145) (18) - (217)

Total net loans to
customers as at
December 31,
2020 2,532 930 56 38 3,556




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL- credit-
impaired) impaired
(POCI)

Large loans 1o
customers

-
3

18
11

Current 3,697
Past due 1-30 days 23
Past due 31-60 days -
Past due 61-90 days -
Past due more than

90 days - - 525 57

— s )
_—Lh Lh
8 S I o5 BN

Total

3.734
78
28
L7

Total gross loans
to customers 3,720 61 538 120

4,439

Less: Expected
credit losses (60) (12) (476) =

(548)

Total net loans to
customers as at
December 31,
2019 3.660 49 62 120

3.891

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL- credit-
impaired) impaired
(POCI)

Small loans 1o
custoners

Current 3118 -
Past due 1-30 days 4 34
Past due 31-60 days - 8
Past due 61-90 days - 8
Past due more than

90 days - - 73 6l

——
4

Total

3.139
49
13
15

Total gross loans
to customers 3,119 50 76 105

3,350

Less: Expected
credit losses (19) (2) (65) b

(86)

Total net loans to
customers as at
December 31,
2019 3,100 48 11 105

3,264




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN" LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Collateralization of loans. The table below summarizes carrying value of loans to customers analyzed
by type of collateral obtained by the Company:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Unsecured loans 10,508 2,727
Loans collateralized by guarantee 879 4.889
Loans collateralized by pledge of inventories 26 92
Loans collateralized by pledge of real estate 14 41
Loans collateralized by pledge equipment 1 20
Loans collateralized by pledge of motor vehicles 3 16
Loans collateralized by households 3 4
Loans collateralized by pledge of gold 1 -

Gross loans to customers 11,435 7,789
Less: allowance for expected credit loss (879) (634)

Total loans to customers, net 10,556 7,155
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

9.

10.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At initial cost
January 1, 2019
Additions
December 31,2019
Additions
December 31, 2020
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2019
Depreciation charge
December 31, 2019
Depreciation charge
December 31, 2020
Net book value
December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets comprise:

Other financial assets:
Settlement receivables

Receivables from shareholder

Total other financial assets

Other non-financial assets:
Prepayments for services
Repossessed collaterals*

Prepaid taxes other than income tax

Total other non-financial assets

Total other assets

Office Total right-of-
buildings use assets

270 270

228 228

498 498

89 89

587 587
(147) (147)
(147) (147)
(192) (192)
(339) (339)

248 248

351 351

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

1 46

119 -

120 46

119 97

48 52

24 75

191 224

311 270




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

B

*As at December 31. 2020 and 2019. the fair value of repossessed collaterals approximates to USD 48
thousand and USD 52 thousand. respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2020 the Company
recognized loss on change of fair value of repossessed collaterals in the amount of USD 8 thousand
(2019: loss in the amount of USD 39 thousand).

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Residential property 38 42
Business property 10 10
Total repossessed collaterals 48 52

Management of the Company intends to sell these assets. however no active program to locate a buyer
and complete plan have been initiated as at the date of report.

BORROWED FUNDS
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Loan from Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan 5518 4,138
Loan from Agrarian Credit and Development Agency under the
Ministry of Agriculture of the Republic of Azerbaijan 4 -
Total borrowed funds 5,562 4.138

During the vear ended December 31, 2020, the Company received borrowings from CBAR in the
amount of USD 1.316 thousand with annual interest rate of 0.1% per annum for 5 years under the
Decree (2019: USD 5,295 thousand). The interest rate of borrowings received from the CBAR for the
purpose of financing the restructured loans were below market rate as at the date of origination,
therefore the Company recognized gain in the amount of USD 281 thousand during the year ended
December 31, 2020 (2019: USD 1.131 thousand) at initial recognition of these borrowings.

In accordance with the agreement signed between the Company and the Ministry of Finance of
Azerbaijan who act as a guarantor on behalf of the Republic of Azerbaijan. the Company paid a
guarantee fee in the amount of 0.5% of received borrowings.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company borrowed USD 44 thousand from Agrarian
Credit and Development Agency under the Ministry of Agriculture of the Republic of Azerbaijan with
annual interest rate of 2.5% per annum for the purpose of issuing loans to customers.

In estimating the discount rates for term borrowings from Agrarian Credit and Development Agency
under the Ministry of Agriculture of the Republic of Azerbaijan (the “Agency™) the Company
considers this market as a separate market from other commercial borrowing business as these loans
are issued to the whole banking sector of Azerbaijan at the same terms, purposes, conditions and credit
risk exposures.



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)

(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of borrowed funds with relevant cash and non-
cash changes from financing activities is stated below:

January 1, 2019

Cash flows
Proceeds
Transaction costs paid

Non-cash changes
Fair value adjustment at initial recognition

December 31, 2019
Cash flows
Proceeds

Transaction costs paid
Interest paid

Non-cash changes
Interest expense
Fair value adjustment at initial recognition

December 31, 2020

12. LEASE LIABILITIES

Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Total lease liabilities

Amount

n
— b2

(1.131)
4,138

1.360
(6)
(6)

.
e B

th
th
=
[+

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
111 182
144 173
2558 355

Future minimum lease payments as at December 31. 2020 were as follows:

Lease payments
Finance charges

Net present value as at December 31, 2020

Minimum lease payments due

Within one One to five Total
year vears
133 164 297
(22) (20) (42)
111 144 255




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN" LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Future minimum lease payments as at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

Minimum lease payments due

Within one One to five Total
vear years
Lease payments 211 192 403
Finance charges (29) (19) (48)
Net present value as at December 31, 2019 182 173 355

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of lease liabilities with relevant cash and non-
cash changes from financing activities is stated below:

Amount
January 1, 2019 245
Cash fMlows
Repayment of principal (92)
Interest paid (34)

Non-cash changes

New leases 202
Interest expense 34
December 31, 2019 355
Cash flows

Repayment of principal (186)
Interest paid (28)

Non-cash changes

New leases 86
Interest expense 28
December 31, 2020 255



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

13.

14.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities comprise:

Other financial liabilities:

Payable to employees

Professional service fee payable
Payables to customers

Service fee payable to a related party
Others

Total other financial liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities:
Taxes other than income tax payable
Others

Total other non-financial liabilities

Total other liabilities

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized cost
- interest income from loans to customers
- interest income from deposit placed with bank

Total interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized
cost

Interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
- interest expense on borrowed funds
- interest expense on lease liabilities

Total interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at
amortized cost

Net interest income

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
230 232
141 100
30 22
16 45
19 14
436 413
40 11
2 52
42 63
478 476
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

3.170 962

39 54

3229 1,016

(357) -
(28) (34)
(385) (34)

2,844 982




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

15

16.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative and other operating expenses comprise the following items:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Wages and salaries 1,772 1,447
Compulsory social security obligations 306 275
Depreciation and amortization 266 203
Allowances. incentives and other benefits 229 412
IT professional fees 106 79
Professional fees 142 157
Bank charges 94 39
Communication expenses 66 69
Consumables and office supply* 44 89
Taxes. other than income tax 26 22
Business trip expenses 25 54
Vehicle running costs 24 13
Marketing expenses 18 41
Others 27 28

Total administrative and other operating expenses 3,235 2,928

*Consumables and office supply expenses consist of COVID-19 related expenses in the amount of
USD 2 thousands for the year ended December 31, 2020.

INCOME TAXES

The Company measures and records its current income tax payable and its tax bases in its assets and
liabilities in accordance with the tax regulations of the Republic of Azerbaijan where the Company
operates, which may differ from IFRS.

The Company is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of certain
expenses and certain income being treated as non-taxable for tax purposes.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.

Temporary differences as at December 31. 2020 and 2019 relate mostly to different methods/timing
of income and expense recognition as well as to temporary differences generated by tax — book bases’
differences for certain assets.

The tax rate used for the reconciliations below is the corporate tax rate of 20% payable by corporate
entities in the Republic of Azerbaijan on taxable profits (as defined) under tax law in that jurisdiction.



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN" LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Loans to customers, net

Tax loss carried forward

Other assets

Property and equipment and intangible assets
Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowed funds

Provision for tax losses

Right-of-use assets

Not recognized deferred tax asset

Net deferred income tax asset

December 31,
2020

_.._..—".Jll-l-'-

b2 bd S0 b
2 b o= ) —

—_——
b b
(SO = S Y
b WO ot b —
et

o~

December 31,
2019

3
o0
-1

When estimating the deductible difference for loans to customers the Company has analyzed the

following circumstances:

. in accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan expected credit losses for a loan

to customer is a non-deductible expense:

*  losses arising from sale of loan to customer is a deductible expense;

The effective tax rate reconciliation is as follows for the years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019:

Profit before income tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate (20%)
Tax effect of permanent differences and changes in not recognized
deferred income tax assets

Income tax expense
Deferred income tax expense

Income tax expense

As at year beginning — deferred income tax assets
Change in deferred income tax balances

As at year end — deferred income tax assets

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
432 6.592
(86) (1.318)
50 1.244
(36) (74)
(36) (74)
(36) (74)
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
323 397
(36) (74)
287 323




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

17. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties or transactions with related parties. as defined by IAS 24 “Related party disclosures™,

represent:

(a) Parties that directly. or indirectly through one or more intermediaries: control, or are controlled

(b)

by. or are under common control with, the Company (this includes parents. subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries): have an interest in the Company that gives then significant influence over
the Company: and that have joint control over the Company:

Associates — enterprises on which the Company has significant influence and which is neither a

subsidiary nor a joint venture of the investor:
(¢c) Joint ventures in which the Company is a venture;

(d) Members of key management personnel of the Company or its parent:

(e) Close members of the family of any individuals referred to in (a) or (d):

(f) Parties that are entities controlled. jointly controlled or significantly influenced by. or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred

to in (d) or (e): or

(2) Post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of employees of the Company, or of any entity that

is a related party of the Company.

The Company’s policy does not allow issuing loans to employees. board members, their family members
and close relatives. and other persons involved in the management. control or supervision of the
Company. The Company had the following transactions outstanding as at December 31, 2020 and

2019 with related parties:

December 31,
2020

Related party

Total category

December 31,
2019

Related party Total category

balances as per financial balances as per financial
statements statements
caption caption
Other assets
- receivables from shareholder 119 309 - 270
Other liabilities
- Parent 16 478 45 476

Included in the statement of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
are the following amounts which arose due to transactions with related parties:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Related party

Total category

Related party  Total category

transactions as per financial transactions as per financial
statements statements
caption caption
Key management personnel
compensation
- shori-term employee benefits 353 2,307 450 2,134




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Related party  Total category Related party Total category
transactions  as per financial transactions as per financial

statements statements
caption caption
Administrative and other
operating expenses (excluding
staff related costs)
- the Parent 232 928 108 794

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance
sheet risk in order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of
credit risk. are not reflected in the statement of financial position.

The Company’s uses the same credit control and management policies in undertaking off-balance sheet
commitments as it does for on-balance operations.

The Company is received from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no
material un-accrued losses will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

Taxation — Laws and regulations affecting business in the Republic of Azerbaijan continue to change
rapidly. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the activity of the Company may
be challenged by the relevant regional authorities. Recent events suggest that the tax authorities are
taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments and as a result.
it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past may be
challenged. Fiscal periods generally remain open to tax audit by the authorities in respect of taxes for
three calendar years preceding the year of tax audit. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover
longer periods.

The taxation system in the Republic of Azerbaijan continues to evolve and is characterized by frequent
changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes
contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to
review and investigation by a number of authorities who have the authority to impose severe fines,
penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during the
three subsequent calendar years: however. under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open
longer. Recent events within the Azerbaijan Republic suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more
assertive position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation.

These circumstances may create tax risks in Azerbaijan that are substantially more significant than in
other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its
interpretations of applicable Azerbaijan tax legislation. official pronouncements and court decisions.
However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on the financial
statements. if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.
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19. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy. which reflects the

significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

* Level 1: quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

* Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

* Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had no financial instruments measured at fair value.

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and
analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is

categorized.

Assets for which fair values
are disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans to customers. net

Other financial assets

Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed

Borrowed funds

Lease liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Date of valuation

December 31, 2020
December 31, 2020
December 31, 2020

December 31. 2020
December 31, 2020
December 31, 2020

Quoted prices
in active
markets
{Level 1)

3.885

Fair value measurement using

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
= 10.556
- 120
- 5,562
- 255
- 436

Total

3.885
10,556
120

5,562
255
436
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Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Quoted prices Significant Significant Total
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets for which fair values
are disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents December 31, 2019 7,722 - 7,722
Loans to customers. net December 31. 2019 - 7.155 7,155
Other financial assets December 31, 2019 - 46 46
Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed
Borrowed funds December 31. 2019 - 4.138 4,138
Lease liabilities December 31, 2019 . 355 355
Other financial liabilities December 31, 2019 - 413 413

20.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company s financial
mstruments that are not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. The table does not
include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or having a short term maturity (less than three
months) it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also
applied to demand deposits, without a specific maturity and variable rate financial instruments.

Fixed and variable rate financial instruments

For quoted debt instruments the fair values are determined based on quoted market prices. The fair values
of unquoted debt instruments are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for debt on similar terms. credit risk and remaining maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance. According to the verdict # 01/2 para 4.3.1 of the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan
dated on January 21, 2015 and the requirement of the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan, the
Company has to meet the minimum regulatory total capital requirement of AZN 300 thousand.

Management’s focus in respect of the Company’s capital management has the following objectives:
ensuring the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern and maintain balances in order to comply
with covenants of lenders and investors. This is exercised daily in respect of the projected and actual
data and on the basis of monthly reports with the corresponding calculations that are verified and
signed by the management board and chief accountant of the Company.
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21.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the Company’s Companying business and is an essential
element of the Company’s operations.

The main risks inherent to the Company s operations are those related to:

®  Credit exposures;
e  Liquidity risk:
*  Market risk.

The Company recognizes that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes
in place. To enable this, the Company has established a risk management framework, whose main
purpose is to protect the Company from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives.

Structure of risk management. The Management Board is ultimately responsible for identifying and

controlling risks: however. there are separate independent bodies responsible for managing and
monitoring risks.

Management board. The Management Board is responsible for the overall risk management approach
and for approving the risk strategies and principles.

Audit committee. On a quarterly basis, the Audit Committee examines reports related to risk issues
presented by Internal Audit and follows measures undertaken by the management to resolve discovered
issues, The Audit Committee is also involved in discussion of findings discovered by external auditors.

Other Committees. In order to provide additional measures in terms of risk management, permanent
working committees are created within the Company:

*  Assetand Liability Management Committee (“ALMC”) — the committee reviews every month
the projected liquidity for the following 12 months. Liquidity forecasts are based on expected
loan disbursement levels, expected funding plans and other expected cash movements. ALMC
takes decisions related to new borrowings, sets open currency position and counterparty limits
for operations with companies and financial institutions, monitors covenants with lenders,
examines issues related to maturities of assets and liabilities. and gives recommendations to the
Finance Department concerning the elimination of divergences.

®  Credit Departments — the departments evaluate quality of loans of the Company and prepares
recommendations concerning allowances for impairment and provisions. Credit Department
supervises the realization of methodology concerning credit risk management, takes measures
towards credit risk minimization and makes decisions concerning operations bearing credit risk.
This department places credit limits for branches, performs analysis and controls credit risk.

Finance department. Finance department is responsible for day-to-day management of assets and
liabilities of the Company, computation and planning of liquidity position of the Company. redistribution
of cash and cash equivalents between operating sites of the C ompany. The Finance Department controls
the application of limits and liquidity ratios set by ALMC and the implementation of decisions taken
by ALMC in regard to liquidity risk optimisation.

Internal audit. Internal Audit performs an independent review of the risk management process,
informs management about the revealed shortcomings, and gives appropriate recommendations
concerning the improvement of the risk management process.
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Risk measurement and reporting systems. The choice of the risk management method depends on
risk factors, which determine the relative importance or probability of the risks, which may adversely
affect the financial position of the Company. The Company not only analyses and measures each risk
separately, but also determines the level of cumulative risks. Thus, for ecach kind of risk. the following
methods of risk measurement are applied:

credit risk analysis of a credit portfolio and credit risk ratios:
off-balance sheet risk;

s interest-rate risk maturity and interest rate gap analysis of assets and liabilities:

*  liquidity risk gap analysis of payments in local and foreign currencies: analysis of liquidity ratios,
determination of liquidity reserve;
currency risk gap analysis of payments in foreign currency: analysis of currency position:
operational risk for all operations having impact on the Company’s financial position. systems
assuring separation of activities (such as initiation. execution and control) necessary for the
finalisation of operations have been implemented.

Risk measurement methods reflect expected loss, which the Company might incur when performing
its activities. Every month, based on the analysis of the separate risks, the Finance Department prepares
conclusions concerning the current state of the risks, and their main drivers.

In particular, at the monthly ALMC, the status of the interest rate. liquidity. currency, and other market
risks are reported.

The status of functional risks (operational — technological. legal, strategic. reputation risk) is also
reported to Management Board each month. These reports are examined at the Management Board
and Audit Committee meetings held each quarter.

Risk mitigation. The Company uses the following methods. inter alia. for risk minimisation:

¢  Reception of guarantees and collateral for credit risk mitigation;
. Diversification — selection of assets. which are not connected between each other.

Credit risk
Credit risk measurement for loans to customers

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of
models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions. expected cash flows and the passage
of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the
likelihood of defaults occurring. of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between
counterparties. For risk management reporting purposes, the Company considers and consolidates loan
size as an element of credit risk exposure. The Company measures credit risk using Probability of
Default (PD). Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the
approach used for the purposes of measuring ECL under IFRS 9.

Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition as summarized below:

¢ A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in
‘Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Company:
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* If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to *Stage 2° but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired:

* Ifthe financial instrument is credit-impaired. the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3°;
Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis:

* A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider
forward-looking information:

* Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those nancial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment
and including forward-looking information. The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

® The remaining lifetime PD as at the reporting date; with
*  Theremaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition
of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).

The Company uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk:

¢ Quantitative test based on movement in PD:
¢ Forbearance status; and
* A backstop of 30 days past due.

“Forbearance™ occurs upon restructuring, i.e. prolongation in payment terms of pavment of interest or
principal arising from a deterioration of a borrower’s financial condition such that it is not the same as
it was at the time of loan origination and a borrower has applied for a change in the payment schema
of the loan. Restructuring only occurs when the appropriate division of the Company is reasonably
confident that a borrower is able to service the renewed payment schedule,

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the PD at initial recognition and at
subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different PD. It is the weighting
of these different scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average PD that is used to determine
whether credit risk has significantly increased. Forward-looking information includes the future
prospects of Azerbaijan economy obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies. relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration of
various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic information.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in
measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-
month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects both
the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.
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The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

o The contract is past due more than 90 days: or
e The credit obligations reflected in the contract is unlikely to be paid to the Company in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types
of assets. When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes
into account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status
and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The
Company uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either developed
internally or obtained from external sources.

The following diagram summarizes the impairment requirements under IFRS 9 (other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets):

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Initial recognition)  (Significant increase (Credit-impaired
in credit risk since assets)
initial recognition)
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
credit losses credit losses credit losses

Credit-impaired assets in Stage 3 undergo a probationary period of 6 months after the material credit
obligations of the Contract are met before moving to Stage 2.

Write-off

When periodic collective historical recovery analysis indicates that the Company does not expect
significant additional recoveries after certain months in default (“MID™), it is the policy of the
Company to write-off loans on a collective basis.

Amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the reporting period and are still
subject to enforcement activity is USD 624 thousand.

Grouping with similar credit risk characteristics
Financial assets are split into three segments for the purposes of PD calculation:

e Small (for loan amounts up to USD 2.000):
e Large (for loan amounts greater than USD 2.001).

The segments above reflect the level of assessment of client creditworthiness, with the large segment
exhibiting a comparatively stricter assessment. The historical default rate is utilized as an indicator of
strictness. such that the difference in default rates is maximized between the segments.

Rating Model

All available information (product groups, industries. etc.) are used to derive internal ratings for each
segment. In such a way groups with the same risk characteristics are created and used afterwards to
adjust the PD curve of the segment.
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Significant increase in credit risk

The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
when the remaining Lifetime PD at the reporting date has increased by 20%. compared to the residual
Lifetime PD expected at the reporting date when the exposure was first recognized.

The following table shows the impact on the December 31. 2020 and 2019 ECL allowance of changing
the PD thresholds for SICR. Increases in ECL (positive amounts) represent higher impairment

allowances that would be recognized.

Impact on December 31. 2020

HEL
ECL sensitivity on the threshold
for PD change
Actual Change  Change Lower No Higher
threshold in in threshold change threshold
applied threshold  threshol
(%) (+%) d (-%)
SMALL 150 217
LARGE 150 662
Impact on December 31, 2019
ECL
ECL sensitivity on the threshold
for PD change
Actual Change Change Lower No Higher
threshold in in threshold change threshold
applied threshold  threshol
(%) (+%) d (-%)
SMALL 150 86
LARGE 150 548

Measurement of ECL
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

e Probability of default (PD);
e Loss given default (LGD);
e Exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other
historical data.

Probability of default (PD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition
of default and credit-impaired™ above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the
same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.
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Probability of Default is modeled by survival function, which is based on hazard rates.

Hazard rates are obtained by Cox proportional-hazards model, which is a semi-parametric model. it
uses assumed simple form for effect of covariates and the exact value of free parameters is estimated
with partial likelihood. The baseline is obtained by non-parametrical methods. A macroeconomic
overlay can be directly included into the hazard function through a time-dependent variable. From
obtained hazard rates. then Point-in-Time (“PiT™) PD is derived. i.e. marginal PDs assigned to a
respective date.

Observation period for modeling cox hazard rates is 5 years.
Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 that would result from

reasonably possible changes in the macroeconomic parameter from the actual assumptions used in the
Company's economic variable assumptions.

2020
Macro parameter used GDP
% change of macro parameter for the
sensitivity test  50%
+ 50% No change -50%
SMALL 216 217 218
LARGE 659 662 665
Total 875 879 883
2019
Macro parameter used GDP
% change of macro parameter for the
sensitivity test  50%
+50% No change -50%
SMALL 85 86 87
LARGE 547 548 549
Total 632 634 636

Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD parameters
based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD model
considers cash recoveries only. LGD is calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the EIR as
the discounting factor.

Secured loans utilize collateral values, whereas unsecured and guaranteed loans are using recovery
rates.
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Exposure at default (EAD)

EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit

risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of
ECL.

The Company has identified and documented the key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for the
portfolio using an analysis of historical data. has assessed the impact of macro-economic variables on
PD and recovery rate. The macro-economic variable which was involved in the analysis is a real
growth rate of GDP.

Maximum exposure of credit risk. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk varies
significantly and is dependent on both individual risks and general market economy risks.

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance
sheet financial assets. For financial assets in the balance sheet. the maximum exposure is equal to
the carrying amount of those assets prior to any offset or collateral. The Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk under contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit, in the event of
non-performance by the other party where all counterclaims. collateral or security prove valueless,
is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.

Maximum exposure of credit risk table is as below:

Maximum Collateral Net
exposure pledged exposure
December 31, 2020
Cash at banks 3.878 - 3.878
Loans to customers. net 10,556 - 10.556
Other financial assets 120 - 120
December 31, 2019
Cash at banks 7.646 - 7.646
Loans to customers, net 744 - 7,185
Other financial assets 46 - 46

Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements

The Company closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired
excluding POCI loans, as it becomes more likely that the Company will take possession of collateral
to mitigate potential credit losses. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held
in order to mitigate potential losses are shown below:

Gross Loss Amortized Fair value
carrying allowance Cost of
December 31, 2020 amount collateral
Loan portfolio in default (Stage 3)
Large loans 722 (397) 325 -
Small loans 74 (18) 56 -

Total 796 (415) 381 >
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Gross Loss Amortized Fair value
carrying allowance Cost of
December 31, 2019 amount collateral
Loan portfolio in default (Stage 3)
Small loans 76 (65) 11 -
Large loans 538 (476) 62 -
Total 614 (541) 73 -

The following tables stratify credit exposures from loans to customers by ranges of loan-to-value
(LTV) ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the loan — or the amount committed

for loan commitments — to the value of the collateral. The valuat
adjustments for obtaining and selling the collateral.

ion of the collateral excludes any

The following table shows the distribution of LTV ratios for the Company’s credit-impaired portfolio

of small loans:

2020
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio
(stage 3)
Gross carrying Loss Gross Loss
Loan to Value (LTV) ratio amount allowance carrying allowance
No Collateral 3,773 (217) 74 (18)
Total 3,773 (217) 74 (18)

2019
Total loan partfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio
(stage 3)
Gross carrying Loss Gross Loss
Loan to Value (LTV) ratio amount allowance carrying allowance
No Collateral 3.350 (86) 76 (63)
Total 3,350 (86) 76 (65)

The following table shows the distribution of LTV ratios for the Company's credit-impaired portfolio

of large loans:

2020
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio
(stage 3)
Gross carrying Loss Gross Loss
Loan to Value (LTV) amount allowance carrying allowance
ratio amount
No Collateral 7.662 (662) 722 (397)
Total 7,662 (662) 722 (397)
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2019
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio
(stage 3)
Gross carrying Loss Gross Loss

Loan to Value (LTV) amount allowance carrying allowance
ratio amount

No Collateral 4.439 (548) 538 (476)
Total 4,439 (548) 538 (476)

Off-balance sheet risk. The Company applies fundamentally the same risk management policies for
off-balance sheet risks as it does for its on-balance sheet risks. In the case of commitments to lend.
customers and counterparties will be subject to the same credit management policies as for loans and
advances. Collateral may be sought depending on the strength of the counterparty and the nature of
the transaction.

Geographical concentration. The geographical concentration of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities as at December 31, 2020 is set out below:

The Republic of OECD Non-OECD Total
Azerbaijan countries countries
Cash and cash equivalents 3.885 - - 3.885
Loans to customers, net 10.556 - - 10.556
Other financial assets 1 119 - 120
Total financial assets 14,442 119 - 14.561
Borrowed funds 5,562 - - 5.562
Lease liabilities 255 - - 255
Other financial liabilities 367 69 - 436
Total financial liabilities 0,184 69 - 6,253
Net position 8,258 50 B 8,308

The geographical concentration of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at December 259
2019 is set out below:

The Republic of OECD Non-OECD Total
Azerbaijan countries countries
Cash and cash equivalents 7.722 - - 7,722
Loans to customers, net 7,155 - - T ES5
Other financial assets 46 - - 46
Total financial assets 14,923 - - 14,923
Borrowed funds 4.138 - - 4,138
Lease habilities 353 - - 355
Other financial liabilities 304 107 2 413
Total financial liabilities 4,797 107 2 4,906

Net position 10.126 (107 (2) o7
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Market risk. Market risk is that the risk that the Company’s earnings or capital or its ability to meet
business objectives will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or
prices.

Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk, credit spreads. commodity prices and equity prices
that the Company is exposed to. There have been no changes as to the way the Company measures
risk or to the risk it is exposed or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risks as entities in the Company borrow funds at both fixed
and floating rates. The risk is managed by the Company maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and floating rate borrowings.

The ALMC also manages interest rate and market risks by matching the Company’s interest rate
position. which provides the Company with a positive interest margin. The Finance Department
conducts monitoring of the Company’s current financial performance, estimates the Company’s
sensitivity to changes in interest rates and its influence on the Company’s profitability.

Some of the Company’s financial liabilities that bear interest are either variable or contain clauses
enabling the interest rate to be changed at the option of the lender. The Company monitors its interest
rate margin and consequently does not consider itself exposed to significant interest rate risk or
consequential cash flow risk.

Currency risk. Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The ALMC controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated basis of
USD fluctuation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Company an opportunity to

minimize losses from significant currency rates fluctuations toward its national currency.

The Company is exposed to effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on
its financial position and cash flows.

As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is as follows:

AZN USD EUR Total
Cash and cash equivalents 2.693 1.189 3 3.885
Loans to customers, net 10.549 7 - 10.556
Other financial assets 1 119 - 120
Total financial assets 13,243 1,315 3 14,561
Borrowed funds 5,562 - - 5.562
Lease liabilities 255 - - 2355
Other financial liabilities 184 252 - 436
Total financial liabilities 6,001 252 - 6.253

OPEN POSITION 7,242 1,063 3 8,308
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As at December 31. 2019, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is as follows:

AZN USD EUR Total
Cash and cash equivalents 6,688 1.034 - 1.722
Loans to customers, net 7127 28 - 7.155
Other financial assets 46 - - 46
Total financial assets 13,861 1,062 - 14,923
Borrowed funds 4,138 - - 4.138
Lease liabilities 355 - - 355
Other financial liabilities 399 14 - 413
Total financial liabilities 4.892 14 - 4,906
OPEN POSITION 8,969 1,048 - 10,017

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the AZN
against the relevant foreign currencies as at December 31. 2020 and 2019. respectively. 10% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

2020
Effect on profit Effect on
or loss before equity
taxation
USD appreciation by 10% 106 85
USD depreciation by 10% (106) (83)
2019
Effect on profit Effect on
or loss before equity
taxation
USD appreciation by 10% 105 84
USD depreciation by 10% (105) (84)

Interest rate risk. Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect
the fair value of the financial instruments or the future cash flows on financial instruments. The
Company’s interest rate policy is reviewed periodically by the Management Board in order to place
and attract funds based on market conditions. Interest rate risk is managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps.

The Company manages fair value interest rate risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could
arise from adverse changes in market conditions. The Finance Department conducts monitoring of the
Company’s current financial performance, estimates the Company’s sensitivity to changes in fair value
interest rates and its influence on the Company’s profitability.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. A 50 (0.5%) basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

If interest rates had been 50 (0.5%) basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Company’s:

2020 2019
Effect on profit Effect on Effect on profit Effect on
or loss before equity or loss before equity
taxation taxation
Interest rate increase on 0.5% 27 22 28 22
Interest rate decrease on 0.5% (27) (22) (28) (22)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis. The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key
assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the
assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or
smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements
to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Company’s view of possible near-term market
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty: and the assumption that all interest rates move in
an identical fashion.

Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet financial
commitments associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due. In order to manage
liquidity risk. the Company performs daily monitoring of existing cash balances and monthly analysis
of future expected cash flows on clients’ and other financial operations, which is a part of
assets/liabilities management process.
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Credit ratings analysis. The following table details credit ratings of financial assets held by the Company
that are neither past due nor impaired:

December 31, 2020 BB- Bl Ba3 Ba2 Not rated Total

Cash at banks 1.736 68 1.669 - 405 3.878
Loans to customers. net - - - - 10.556 10,556
Other financial assets 120 120
December 31, 2019 AA- B3 Bal Ba2 Not rated Total

Cash at banks 6.577 34 744 - 291 7.646
Loans to customers, net - - - - 7.155 7. 135
Other financial assets - - - 46 - 46

The Company enters into numerous transactions where the counterparties are not rated by international
rating agencies. The Company has developed internal models. which allow it to determine the rating
of counterparties, which are comparable to rating of international rating agencies.

A model of the borrower’s scoring assessment has been developed in the Company to assess and decide
on loans customers. The scoring model is developed relating to loan products and includes key
performance indicators of borrowers: financial situation, relations with the borrower, management
quality. target use. location, credit history, collateral, etc.

The scoring assessment based on the borrower’s parameters is one of the main factors for the decision-
making process relating to loans.

A methodology of evaluation of borrowers is based on following criteria: education. occupancy.
financial position, credit history. property owned by the borrower. Based on information obtained the
maximum limit of a loan is calculated. The maximum limit of a loan is calculated using a ratio of debt
pressure on a borrower.

Financial assets other than loans to customers are graded according to the current credit rating they
have been issued by an internationally regarded agency such as Fitch, Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s
be advised that rating titles and therefore rating meanings are different from agency to agency. The
highest possible rating is AAA. Investment grade financial assets have ratings from AAA to BBB.
Financial assets which have ratings lower than BBB are classed as speculative grade.

Operational risk. Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud
or external events. When controls fail to perform. operational risks can cause damage to reputation,
have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate
all operational risks. but it endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access.
authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.
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@ bakertilly

City Point Baku, 9" floor
J. Mammadguluzadeh str,, 102A
Baku, AZ1022, Azerbaijan

T:+094 (12) 404 7 666
F: +994 (12) 404 7 667

office@bakertilly.az
www.bakertilly.az

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Founder and the Management Board of “FINCA Azerbaijan” Limited Liability Non-Banking
Credit Organization (the “Company”):

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of “FINCA Azerbaijan” Limited Liability Non-Banking Credit
Organization (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2019, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

ASSURANCE ADVISORY TAX LEGAL

Baker Tilly Audit Azerbaijan CJSC trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of
which are separate and independent legal entities.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

< Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern;

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

March 10, 2020
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans to customers, net

Property, equipment and intangible assets

Right-of-use assets
Deferred income tax assets
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Borrowed funds

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY:

Share capital

Retained earnings

Translation reserves

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

On behalflof the Management Board:

Aarsi 10, 2020
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

Notes December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

6 7,722 1,881

7 7,155 2,252

8 142 81

9 351 -
16 323 397
10 270 298
15,963 4,909

11 4,138 -
12 355 -
13,17 476 433
4,969 433

4,205 4,205

28,342 21,824
(21,553) (21,553)

10,994 4,476

15,963 4,909

AN

Muhammad Mobeen Yaqoob
Deputy Director

March 10, 2020
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 8-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income before recovery of expected credit losses

Recovery of expected credit losses

Net interest income

Administrative and other operating expenses

Fair value gain on loans to customers and borrowed funds at
initial measurement

Loss from change in fair value of repossessed collaterals

Net gain on foreign exchange operations

Other (expense)/income, net

Net non-interest loss

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax (expense)/benefit

Net profit for the year

Total compyehensive income for the year
/

On behalf{o the Management Board:

Timothy Tagrant
hief Ex iv

Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

14 1,016 569
14 (34) (566)
982 3

7 7,224 2,628
8,206 2,631
15,17 (2,928) (2,744)
7, 11 1,355 -
(39 -

- 5

(2) 15
(1,614) (2,724)
6,592 93)

16 (74) 176
6,518 83

6,518 83

g PN
MuhamwadWipbéen Yagoob
Deputy Director \

March 10, 2020
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 8-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Share Retained Translation Total
capital earnings reserve equity
January 1, 2018 3,705 21,741 (21,553) 3,893
Total comprehensive income for the
year - 83 - &3
Increase in share capital 500 - - 500
December 31, 2018 4,205 21,824 (21,553) 4,476
Total comprehensive income for the
year - 6,518 - 6,518
Decemberj31, 2019 4,205 28,342 (21,553) 10,994

On behalf of the Management Board:

Timothy Tarrant ‘
Chief Executive Q#f1Cer
{0, 2020
7 the Republic of Azerbaijan

arc,

J

d
Muhammad Mobden Ydqoob
Deputy Director W

March 10, 2020
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 8-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.



“EINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) before income tax 6,592 (93)
Adjustments for:
Recovery of expected credit losses 7 (7,224) (2,628)
Depreciation and amortization 8,9,15 203 48
Net change in accrued interest (110) 741
Loss/(gain) from disposal of property, equipment and intangible

assets 18 (15)
Fair value gain on loans to customers and borrowed funds at

initial measurement 7,11 (1,355) -
Loss from change in fair value of repossessed collaterals 39 -
Net gain on foreign exchange operations - (5)
Cash outflow from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities (1,837) (1,952)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
1 oans to customers, net 2,655 7,862
Other assets (62) 436
Other liabilities 43 (629)
Cash inflow from operating activities before taxation and

interest 799 5,717
Income tax paid - (1,947)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 799 3,770
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (135) (19)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and

intangible assets - 21
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities (135) 2
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowed funds 11 5,295 -
Repayment of borrowed funds 11 - (6,540)
Transaction cost paid on borrowed funds 11 (26) -
Repayment of principal portion on lease liabilities 12 (92) -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 500
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 5,177 (6,040)




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash

equivalents held in foreign currencies - 5
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,841 (2,263)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 6 1,881 4,144
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 6 7,722 1,881

Interest paid and received by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2019 amounted to
USD 34 thousand and USD 907 thousand, respectively.

Interest paid and received by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to nil and
USD 743\thousand, respectively. ,

On behkIf pf the Management Board: \

Timothy Tarrant Muhasuhad¥obeen Yagoob
Deputy Director

)R March 10, 2020
4, tHe Republic of Azerbaijan Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 8-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

1. INTRODUCTION
Company and its principal activity

“FINCA Azerbaijan” LLC (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Republic of Azerbaijan in 1998.
Until November 19, 1999 it was registered as a representative office of FINCA International Inc. in
Azerbaijan. On November 19, 1999 the Company was registered with the Azerbaijan Ministry of
Justice and obtained the status of a legal entity. The Company was reregistered to comply with the
regulations of the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan, in accordance with which only legal
entities can perform lending activities on the territory of Azerbaijan. The new entity obtained a
license for lending activities from the Central Bank of Azerbaijan on F ebruary 29, 2000. The address
of the Company’s registered office is 44 Jafar Jabbarly Street, Baku AZ1065, Azerbaijan. :

The Company’s objective is to provide financial services including loans to representatives of micro,
small and medium sized businesses in the Republic of Azerbaijan and also to individuals and groups
of individuals engaged in sales and small-scale productive micro enterprises.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Company had 15 and 4 branches respectively operating in the
Republic of Azerbaijan. The Company had an average of 142 employees during 2019 (2018:
118 employees). i

The Company is a subsidiary of FINCA Microfinance Cobperatief U.A., which has a registered
office in the Netherlands. The ultimate controlling party of the Company is FINCA International
Inc., a not-for-profit corporation, incorporated in New York, United States of America. In October
2010, FINCA International Inc. formed FINCA Microfinance Holding Company LLC (“FMH”) to
become a 100% owned holding company.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the following shareholders owned the Company:

December 31,

December 31,
2019, % 2018, %
Shareholder of the Company (Shareholder of the first level) :
FINCA Microfinance Codperatief U.A. 100.00 100.00
Total 100.00 100.00
December 31, Decembef 31,
2019, % 2018, %
Ultimate shareholders of the Company ‘f
FINCA International, Inc. 62.64 62.64
International Finance Corporation 14.38 1438
Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau 8.94 8.94
FMO (Nederlandse Financierings Maatschappij voor i
Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.) 7.31 7.31
Triple Jump, acting for ASN-NOVIB FONDS 1.68 1.68
Credit Suisse Microfinance Fund Management Company, acting for ‘
responsibility Global Microfinance Fund 2.98 298
Triodos Investment Management, representing: (i) Triodos Custody
B.V. in its capacity as custodian of Triodos Fair Share Fund; and (ii)
Triodos SICAV 1I — Triodos Microfinance Fund 2.07 2.07
Total 100.00 100.00
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Operating Environment of the Company

The Company’s operations are conducted in the Republic of Azerbaijan. Azerbaijan continues
economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks. The future stability
of the Azerbaijan’s economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and developments and the
effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government as well
as crude oil prices and stability of Azerbaijani Manat.

The Azerbaijan’s economy has been negatively impacted by decline of oil prices and devaluation of
Azerbaijani Manat during 2015. This resulted in reduced access to capital, a higher cost of capital,
inflation and uncertainty regarding economic growth. In response to these challenges, Azerbaijani
government announced plans to accelerate reforms and support financial system. On December 6,
2016 President of the Republic of Azerbaijan approved “Strategic road maps for the national
economy and main economic sectors of Azerbaijan”. The road maps cover 2016-2020 development
strategy, long-term outlook up to 2025 and vision beyond. ‘

Furthermore, during 2018 the government continued its monetary policy with respect to stability of
Azerbaijani Manat as well as allocated foreign currency resources which stabilized Azerbaijani
Manat. This policy continued in 2019 with the aim of maintaining macroeconomic stability.

On February 28, 2019, the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan signed a decree “On the
additional measures related to the solution of problematic loans of individuals in the Republic of
Azerbaijan™ (“the Decree”). According to the Decree the increase in loan balances denominated in
foreign currency resulted from devaluations of the national currency on February 21, 2015 and
December 21, 2015 with total exposure up to USD 10 thousand in all banks had to be compenseited
by the government and CBAR had to provide loans to the banks with 0.1% interest rate and for
5 years under the state guarantee in order to restructure loans to individuals with overdue days more
than 360 as at the date of the Decree and issued starting January 1, 2012 till the date of the Decree
with exposure of up to USD 10 thousand or AZN 17 thousand.

The Company received compensation for such problematic loans from the government in the amaunt
of USD 6,881 thousand during the year ended December 31, 2019. Additionally, the Company
obtained loan from CBAR under favorable conditions in the amount of USD 5,295 thousand with
0.1% for 5 years and restructured the overdue loans in the amount of USD 6,895 thousand under the
Decree.

The Company’s management is monitoring changes in macroeconomic environment and taking
precautionary measures it considers necessary in order to support the sustainability and development
of the Company’s business in the foreseeable future. :

International credit rating agencies regularly evaluate credit rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan.
Fitch and S&P evaluated rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan as “BB+”. Moody’s Investors Service
set “Ba2” credit rating for the country. '

The future economic growth of the Republic of Azerbaijan is largely dependent upon the
effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government, together
with tax, legal, regulatory and political developments. The Management is unable to predict, all
developments in the economic environment which would have an impact on the Company’s
operations and consequently what effect, if any, they could have on the financial position of the
Company. The management is currently performing sensitivity analyses under different oil prices
scenarios and elaborating relevant action plans for mainlining sustainability of the business.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB™) and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). ' f

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company is a going
concern and will continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Management views the Company as continuing in business for the foreseeable future with neither the
intention nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking protection from creditors
pursuant to laws or regulations of the Republic of Azerbaijan. Accordingly, assets and liabilities are
recorded on the basis that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilitieq in
the normal course of business. Some financial reporting frameworks contain an explicit requirement
for management to make a specific assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, and standards regarding matters to be considered and disclosures to be made in connection
with going concern. "

Management’s assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a judgment, at a
particular point in time, about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain.

Other basis of presentation criteria

These financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars (“USD”), unless otherwise
indicated. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments.

The Company maintains its accounting records in accordance with the laws of the Republic of
Azerbaijan. These financial statements have been prepared from the statutory accounting records and
have been adjusted to conform to IFRS. These adjustments include certain reclassifications to reflect
the economic substance of underlying transactions including reclassifications of certain assets and
liabilities, income and expenses to appropriate financial statement captions.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in the statement of profit or loss unless required or
permitted by an accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting

policies of the Company.

Financial instruments - key measurement terms.

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or amortized cosft as
described below. '
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair
value is the price in an active market. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the
quoted price for the individual asset or liability and the number of instruments held by the entity.
This is the case even if a market’s normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the
quantity held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted
price.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s length
transactions or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to measure fair value of
certain financial instruments for which external market pricing information is not available. Fair
value measurements are analyzed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are
measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (ii)
level two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii) level
three measurements are valuations not based on solely observable market data (that is, the
measurement requires significant unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 18.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if
the transaction had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents
(including employees acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include
debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs. "

Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial recogniﬁion
less any principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for
incurred impairment losses. Accrued interest includes amortization of transaction costs deferred at
initial recognition and of any premium or discount to the maturity amount using the effective interest
method. Accrued interest income and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and
amortized discount or premium (including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented
separately and are included in the carrying values of the related items in the statement of financial
position. .

The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period, so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the
carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument.
The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest
repricing date, except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating
rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums
or discounts are amortized over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial
recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which
can be evidenced by either observable current market transactions in the same instrument or by a

valuation technique whose inputs include only data from observable markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date,
which is the date when the Company commits to deliver a financial instrument. All other purchases
and sales are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. *

Classification of financial instruments

A financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). «

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and "'

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is @mt
designated as at FVTPL: '

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and \
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. '

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI at FVPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the sale of
the assets;
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«  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

«  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

»  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

o the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset:on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:

. contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

o leverage features;

«  prepayment and extension terms;

»  terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and ' \

o features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. The reclassification has a
prospective effect.

Financial assets impairment — credit loss allowance for ECL ‘
I
The Company assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the ECL for debt instruments measured at iAC
and FVOCI and for the exposures arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Company measures ECL and recognizes credit loss allowance at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determinegi by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, (ii) time value of money and (iii) all reasonable land
supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the end of each reporting
period about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions. 3

Debt instruments measured at AC are presented in the statement of financial position net of}lfhe
allowance for ECL. For loan commitments and financial guarantees, a separate provision for ECL is
recognized as a liability in the statement of financial position. For debt instruments at FVOCI,
changes in amortized cost, net of allowance for ECL, are recognized in profit or loss and other
changes in carrying value are recognized in OCI as gains less losses on debt instruments at FVOCL

13
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The Company applies a three stage model for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition| is
classified in Stage 1. Financial assets in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events possible within the next 12 months or until
contractual maturity, if shorter (“12 months ECL”). If the Company identifies SICR since initial
recognition, the asset is transferred to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime
basis, that is, up until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any (“Lifetime
ECL”). Refer to Note 21 for a description of how the Company determines when a SICR has
occurred. If the Company determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred
to Stage 3 and its ECL is measured as a Lifetime ECL. The Company’s definition of credit impaired
assets and definition of default is explained in Note 21. For financial assets that are purchased!or
originated credit-impaired (“POCI Assets™), the ECL is always measured as a Lifetime ECL. PQCI
assets are financial assets that are credit-impaired upon initial recognition, such as impaired loans
acquired. Note 21 provides information about inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in
measuring ECL, including an explanation of how the Company incorporates forward-looking
information in the ECL models.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

o loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision; |

«  where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Company cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those|on
the drawn component: the Company presents a combined loss allowance for both compone*xts.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn componer is

presented as a provision; and |
« debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of

financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the
Joss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve. :

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash
flows from the assets otherwise expire or (b) the Company has transferred the rights to the cash
flows from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement whilst (i) ilso
transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neiiher
transferring nor retaining substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but not retaiﬂing
control. Control is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in
its entirety to an unrelated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the salé.

i

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at AC because: (i) they are held for collection of contractual cash flows jand
those cash flows represent SPPI, and (ii) they are not designated at FVTPL. Features mandated
solely by legislation, such as the bail-in legislation in certain countries, do not have an impact on the
SPPI test, unless they are included in contractual terms such that the feature would apply even if the
legislation is subsequently changed. 1
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Loans to customers, net ,,
|
Loans to customers are recorded when the Company advances money to purchase or originate a loan
due from a customer. Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the Company

classifies loans and advances to customers into one of the following measurement categories:

i) AC: loans that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash fldws
represent SPPI and loans that are not voluntarily designated at FVTPL, and

(i) FVTPL: loans that do not meet the SPPI test or other criteria for AC or FVOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recoveringthe
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The
Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting fiom
the Company’s enforcement activities will result in gain from reversal of ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at |the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of|the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. '

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a pew
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Borrowed funds

Borrowed funds are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received, net
of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.
Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognized|or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

IFRS 16 “Leases”
IFRS 16 “Leases” replaces IAS 17 “Leases” along with three Interpretations (IFRIC 4 “Determining

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, SIC 15 “Operating Leases-Incentives” and SIC 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease™). The Company 3135

elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating
leases in existence at the date of initial application of IFRS 16, being January 1, 2019. At this date,
the Company has also elected to measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease
liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that existed at the date of transition.
Prior periods have not been restated.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Company has elected to apply the
definition of a lease from IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 and has not applied IFRS 16 to arrangements that
were previously not identified as lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. :,

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application, the Company has relied on its historic assessment as to whether leases were onerous
immediately before the date of initial application of IFRS 16. ~

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of
less than 12 months and for leases of low-value assets the Company has applied the optional
exemptions to not recognize right-of-use assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line
basis over the remaining lease term. ‘

For those leases previously classified as finance leases, the right-of-use asset and lease liability are
measured at the date of initial application at the same amounts as under IAS 17 immediately before
the date of initial application.

On transition to IFRS 16 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognized under IFRS 16 was weighted average margin for government T-bills with maturity 3

years+3%.

The Company has benefited from the use of hindsight for determining lease term when considefing
options to extend and terminate leases. '

The management of the Company utilized certain judgement in determination of lease terms, based
on past history.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of property
and equipment. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount, which is
determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount of property and equipment is greater than their estimated recoverable amount, it is
written down to their recoverable amount and the difference is charged as an impairment loss to the
statement of profit or loss. ,

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to their calrying
amount and recorded as gain/(loss) in the statement of profit or loss.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss when the expense is incurred.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis at the following annual rates:

Furniture and office equipment 20-33%
Computer equipment 33%
Vehicles 20%
Other assets 20%
Right-of-use assets over the term of the

underlying lease

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include investment into software license and its customization.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acqun ed separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

De-recognition of intangible assets. An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill. At the end of each reportmg
period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Repossessed collateral

The Company obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered
appropriate. The collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives the
Company a claim on these assets for both existing and future customer liabilities.

In certain circumstances, assets are repossessed following the foreclosure on loans that are in defaplt.
Repossessed collateral is initially recognized at an amount equal to the carrying amount of a loan for
which it was pledged. Repossessed assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recorded for debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCI on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as part of interest
income or expense, all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an mtegra]
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity
relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for
example fees for evaluating creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral,
negotiating the terms of the instrument and for processing transaction documents. \
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Commitment fees received by the Company to originate loans at market interest rates are integral to
the effective interest rate if it is probable that the Company will enter into a specific lending
arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination. The Company
does not designate loan commitments as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

For financial assets that are originated or purchased credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is the
rate that discount the expected cash flows (including the initial expected credit losses) to the fair
value on initial recognition (normally represented by the purchase price). As a result, the effectxve
interest is credit-adjusted.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets, except for:

i) financial assets that have become credit-impaired (Stage 3), for which interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their AC (net of the ECL provision); and

ii) financial assets that are purchased or originated credit-impaired, for which the original credlt—
adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the AC.

Recognition of fee and commission income

Loan origination fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate of the loan. Where it is probable that a loan commitment will
lead to a specific lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are deferred, together with the related
direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment to the rate of the resulting loan. Where it is unlikely that a
loan commitment will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are recognized
in profit or loss over the remaining period of the loan commitment. Where a loan commitment expires
without resulting in a loan, the loan commitment fee is recognized in profit or loss on expiry. Loan
servicing fees are recognized as revenue as the services are provided. All other commissions are
recognized when services are provided.

Retirement and other benefit obligations

In accordance with the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan state pension
system provides for the calculation of current payments by the employer as a percentage of current
total payments to staff. This expense is charged in the period the related salaries are earned. Upon
retirement all retirement benefit payments are made by pension funds selected by employees. The
Company does not have any pension arrangements separate from the state pension system of the
Republic of Azerbaijan. In addition, the Company has no post-retirement benefits or other significant
compensated benefits requiring accrual.

Operating taxes

The Republic of Azerbaijan also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Company’s
activities. These taxes are included as a component of operating expenses in the statement of profit
or loss. ,
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of tl
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

The results and financial position of the Company are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

a) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the respective reporting period; ,

b) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);

¢) Components of equity are translated at the historic rate; and

d) All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When control over a foreign operation is lost, the previously recognized exchange differences on
translation to a different presentation currency are reclassified from other comprehensive income to
profit or loss for the year as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

The exchange rates at the year-end used by the Company in the preparation of the ﬁnanmal
statements are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
AZN 1/USD 0.5882 0.5882
EUR /USD 1.1197 1.1452
AZN 1/USD (average rate for the year) 0.5882 0.5882

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY UNDER GOING CONCERN BASIS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the
reported amount of income and expenses during the period ended. Management evaluates its
estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis. Management bases its estimates and judgments on
historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. The following estimates and judgments are considered important to the portrayal of: the
Company’s financial condition.

Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year include:
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Fair value of restructured loans to customers and borrowing from CBAR under below market
rate originated under the Decree

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company obtained borrowings from CBAR in
the amount of USD 5,295 thousand with 0.1% annual interest rate and restructured the loans to the
costumers in the amount of USD 6,895 thousand with interest rate of 1% under the Decree. Terms
and conditions both for borrowings and loans originated under this Decree did not match the normal
market conditions as at the initial recognition therefore the Company recognized these financial
instruments at fair value utilizing the market rate for similar financial instruments. The market rate
used for discounting the similar loans was 24% and 7.5% for borrowings received from CBAR.

Measurement of ECL allowance

Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology, models
and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note 21. The following
components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definition of default, SICR, probability of
default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD™), and loss given default (“LGD™), as well as models of
macro-economic scenarios.

The Company regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any
differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience. For details of
ECL measurement including incorporation of forward-looking information refers to Note 21.

Significant increase in eredit risk (“SICR”)

In order to determine whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring over the life of a financial instrument at the end of the
reporting date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers
relative increase in credit risk rather than achieving a specific level of credit risk at the end of the
reporting period. The Company considers all reasonable and supportable forward looking
information available without undue cost and effort, which includes a range of factors, including
behavioral aspects of particular customer portfolios. The Company identifies behavioral indicators of
increases in credit risk prior to delinquency and incorporated appropriate forward looking
information into the credit risk assessment, either at an individual instrument, or on a portfolio level.
Refer to Note 21. ‘

Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the
financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date. ~

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. Loan terms are modified in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default
has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised
terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of
the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows
due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to other terms. When a financial asset is
modified, the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In accordance
with the Company’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially
different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original
contractual terms the Company considers the following:
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e Quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual
cash flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms,
both amounts discounted at the original EIR. If the difference in present value is greater than
10% the Company deems the arrangement is substantially different leading to derecognition.

If the terms are substantially different, the Company derecognizes the original financial asset and
recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new EIR for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impahment
calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result: in
derecognition, and the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR (or c1ed1t-
adjusted EIR for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash
flows expire (including expiry arising from modification with substantially different terms), or when
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred
to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognize the financial asset.

Valuation of lease liabilities and right of use assets

The application of IFRS 16 requires to make judgements of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. In
determining the lease term, the Company considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise renewal options (or not to exercise termination options). Assessing
whether a contract includes a lease also requires judgement. Estimates are required to determine the
appropriate discount rate used to measure lease liabilities. ,

Recoverability of deferred income tax assets

The management of the Company created valuation allowance against deferred income tax asset in
the amount of USD 865 thousand and USD 218 thousand as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. The
carrying value of deferred income tax assets amounted to USD 323 thousand and USD 397 thousand
as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively. ,

The management of the Company is confident that the carrying amount of deferred income tax asset
will be fully realized in the future.

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In the current year, the Company has adopted all of the applicable new and revised Standards émd
Interpretations issued by the IASB and the IFRIC of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and
effective for annual reporting periods ended in December 31, 2019.

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” — addresses the determination of taxable
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under 1AS 12. It specifically considers:
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o whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;

o assumptions for taxation authorities’ examinations;

o the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credlts
and tax rates; and

. the effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle — contains amendments to fbul
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as result of the IASB’s annual 1mpr0vements
project.

Standard Subject of amendment

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” and ~ The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control
IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” of a business that is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held
interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that
when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a Jomt
operation, the entity does not re-measure previously held interests in

that business.

IAS 12 “Income Taxes” The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
(i.e. distribution of profits) should be recognized in profit or oss,
regardless of how the tax arises.

IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs” The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale,
that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalization rate on general
borrowings.

Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” —
The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated
by measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits
offered and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but
ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus
position). IAS 19 is now clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from
the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined in a second step and is recognized
in the normal manner in other comprehensive income. ‘

The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the het
defined benefit liability (asset) have also been amended. An entity will now be required to use the
updated assumptions from this re-measurement to determine current service cost and net interest for
the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, the
amendments make it clear that for the period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by
multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset) as re-measured under IAS 19.99 with the discount
rate used in the re-measurement (also taking into account the effect of contributions and benefit
payments on the net defined benefit liability (asset)). ;

The amendments are applied prospectively. They apply only to plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements that occur on or after the beginning of the annual period in which the amendments to
IAS 19 are first applied.

Amendments to [AS 28 “Investments in Associations and Joint Ventures” — The IASB has
published amendments to IAS 28 regarding the long-term interest in associates and joint Ventures.
According to the amendment the entity should apply IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or
joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the
equity method is not applied.
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Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — The IASB have published amendments to IFRS 9
regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation amends the existing requirement of IFRS 9
regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortized cost even in the case of
negative compensation payments. The IASB also clarifies that the entity recognizes any adjustment to
the amortized cost of the financial liability arising from a modification or exchange in profit or loss at
the date of modification or exchange.

IFRS 16 “Leases”, which specifies how and IFRS reporter recognize, measure, present and disclose
leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets
and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a
low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16°s approach to
lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17. '

The Company has chosen the application of IFRS 16 in accordance with IFRS 16:C5 (b), ii.e,
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of
initial application. Consequently, the Company will not restate the comparative information instead
will recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at the date of initial application.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in JAS 17. The Company might be affected by application of new standard as a Lesgee.
IFRS 16 may change how the Company accounts for leases previously classified as operating ledses
under IAS 17, which were off balance sheet. On initial application of IFRS 16, for all leases (exqept
as noted below), the Company adopts to:

a. Recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, initially
measured at the present value of the future lease payments; ‘

b. Recognize depreciation of right of use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income;

c. Separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing
activities) and interest (presented within operating activities) in the cash flow statement.

Lease incentives (e.g. rent free period) are recognized as part of the measurement of the right of use
assets and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease llabﬂxty
incentive, amortized as a reduction of rental expenses on a straight-line basis.

Under IFRS 16, right of use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets. This will replace the previous requirement to recognize a provision for onerous lease
contracts.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (suc as
personal computers and office furniture), the Company opted to recognize a lease expense on a

straight line basis as permitted by IFRS 16.

The Company has evaluated the effects of application of this standard and made changes oni its
financial statements. i
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The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at December 31, 2018 to itlle
lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019:

December 31,

2019
Total operating lease commitments disclosed at December 31, 2018 2%1
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate (36)
Total lease liabilities recognized under IFRS 16 at January 1, 2019 2?15

The effect of adoption IFRS 16 on the financial statements as at January 1, 2019 was as follows:

Carrying value as Re- Carrying vaiue

at December 31, measurement per IFRS 16jas
2018 at January |1,
2019
Right-of-use assets - 270 270
Lease liability - (245) (245)
Other assets 26 (25) 1

5. STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED AND NOT YET ADOPTED

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, other than the Standards and Interpretations
adopted by the Company in advance of their effective dates, the following Interpretations were in issue
but not yet effective.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Amendment of the definition of “Business” — The amendments
will help companies determine whether an acquisition made is of a business or a group of assets.

The amended definition emphasizes that the output of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, whereas the previous definition focused on returns in the form of dividends, lower costs
or other economic benefits to investors and others. Distinguishing between a business and a group of
assets is important because an acquirer recognizes goodwill only when acquiring a business.

According to the amendment new definition a “business” is an integrated set of activities and assets
that is capable of being conducted and managed for the purpose of providing goods or services to
customers, generating investment income (such as dividends or interest) or generating other incqme
from ordinary activities.

Companies are required to apply the amended definition of a business to acquisitions that occur on or
after January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.

make it easier for companies to make materiality judgements. The updated definition amends
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors. :

|
New definition of “Material” — The IASB has issued amendments to its definition of materia;} to
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The amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by including in the
definition guidance that until now has featured elsewhere in IFRS Standards. According to the new
definition, information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably| be
expected to influence the decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.

The changes are effective from January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.

JIASB has published “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 And
IFRS 7)” as a first reaction to the potential effects the IBOR reform could have on ﬁnankial
reporting. The changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform will: :

o modify specific hedge accounting requirements so that entities would apply those heLge
accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash
flows and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform;

» are mandatory for all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the interest rate
benchmark reform;

- are not intended to provide relief from any other consequences arising from interest rate
benchmark reform (if a hedging relationship no longer meets the requirements for hedge
accounting for reasons other than those specified by the amendments, discontinuation of hedge
accounting is required); and

« require specific disclosures about the extent to which the entities’ hedging relationships
affected by the amendments.

are

|
The amendments are be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and n*ust
be applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted. |
IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts” was issued in May 2017 and replaced IFRS 4 “Insurance
contracts”. The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. An entity shall
apply IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” to insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts, it
issues; reinsurance contracts it holds; and investment contracts with discretionary participation
features it issues, provided the entity also issues insurance contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier
application is permitted if both IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFR
Financial Instruments have also been applied.

U7

Amendments to IAS 1 to clarify the classification of liabilities — In January 2020 the IASB has
issued “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)”
providing a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under IAS 1 based on |the
contractual arrangements in place at the reporting date. The amendments in Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1) affect only the presentation of
liabilities in the statement of financial position — not the amount or timing of recognition of any
asset, liability income or expenses, or the information that entities disclose about those items.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and
are to be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
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0
I

|

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — The amendments to IFRS 10
IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor an
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting froml
loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and [AS 28 (amendments) Sale or ContributiO}i of

nd
its
the

joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the parent’s ploﬁ or

loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Simil

(that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to

gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement of investments retained in any former submd{k

ly,

air

value are recognized in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’

interests in the new associate or joint venture.

|
i
The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application of
|

the amendments is permitted.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Cash on hand 6 8
Current accounts with resident banks 4,704 11586
Term placements with resident banks 2.942 -
Current accounts with non-resident banks - 239
Cash in transit 70 48
Total cash and cash equivalents 7.722 1.881

For the purpose of ECL measurement cash and cash equivalents balances are included in Stage 1.

The ECL for these balances represents an insignificant amount; therefore the Company did mot
recognize any credit loss allowance for cash and cash equivalents.
7. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Agriculture loans 4,256 11175
Service loans 1,879 810
Trade loans 1,479 1/432
Other loans 175 149
Gross loans to customers 7,789 3,566
Less: allowance for expected credit loss (634) (1,314)
Total loans to customers, net 7,155 2,252

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, all loans are granted to customers operating in the Republi¢

Azerbaijan, which represents a significant geographical concentration in one region.
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As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company received compensation from |the
government in the amount of USD 6,881 thousand for the problematic loans under the Decree duning
the year ended December 31, 2019. Additionally, the Company restructured loans in amount of
USD 6,895 thousand under the Decree with 1% of interest and 5 years of maturity. Before
restructuring these loans were either written off or presented in Stage 3. The restructured loans were
also granted with 1 year of grace period for payment of principal amount as stipulated in the Decree.
As the modification of terms of these loans were substantially different from their original
conditions, the Company applied derecognition approach regarding these loans. These loans jere
recognized as new loans at initial recognition with fair value of USD 225 thousand taking into
account prevailing market rate of 24% and classified as POCI. The Company recognized gain in ithe
amount of USD 225 thousand from modification and at initial recognition of these loans. ‘

i

For the purpose of excepted credit loss, the Company groups its loans into small and large customers. The
following tables disclose the movements in the gross carrying amounts of loans to customers
between the beginning and the end of the reporting periods:

!
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or To!tal
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated i
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired) credit- 1
impaired ‘
(POCI) |
Large loans to customers i
As at January 1, 2019 4 1,006 1,967 - 2,977
Transfer from Stage | to
Stage 2 472) 472 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to \
Stage 1 765 (765) - - |
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 - (406) 406 -
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - 36 (36) -
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 4,676 80 1,655 120 6,531
Other movements (1,253) (362) (2,720) - 4,335)
Write-offs - - (734) - (734)
As at December 31, 2019 3,720 61 538 120 4,439
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated }
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired) credit- |
impaired
(POCI)
Small loans to customers
As at January 1, 2019 141 160 288 - 589
Transfer from Stage 1 to ﬁ
Stage 2 (232) 232 - - ‘ -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 1 217 217 - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 - 77 77 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - 7 (7 - -
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 6,063 10 619 105 6,797
Other movements (3,070) (65) (825) - (3,960)
Write-offs - - (76) - (76)
As at December 31, 2019 3,119 50 76 105 3,350 '
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired)
Large loans fo customers
As at January 1, 2018 577 4,411 2,570 7,558
Transfer from Stage | to Stage 2 (152) 152 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 79 (79 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,354) 1,354 -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 16 (16) -
New financial instruments originated or
purchased 186 1,066 229 1,481
Other movements (686) (3,206) (1,071) (4,963)
Write-offs - - (1,099) (1,099)
As at December 31, 2018 4 1,006 1,967 2,977
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Small loans to customers

As at January 1, 2018

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2

New financial instruments
originated or purchased

Other movements

Write-offs

As at December 31, 2018

Stage 1
(12-months
ECL)

222

Stage 2
(lifetime
ECL)

1,412

Stage 3
(lifetime
ECL-impaired)

726

Total

2,3

(39)
13

187
(242)

39

(13)

(406)
8

321
(1,201)

406
®

39
(336)
(539)

(1,779)
(539)

141

160

288

The following tables disclose the movements in the credit loss allowance amounts
customers between the beginning and the end of the reporting periods:

Large loans to customers

As at January 1, 2019

Stage 1
(12-months
ECL)

Stage 2
(lifetime
ECL)

- 182

Stage 3
(lifetime
ECL-impaired)

975

Purchased or
originated
credit-
impaired
(POCIH

of loans

to

tal

1,157

Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2

Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 1

Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3

Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2

New financial instruments
originated or purchased

Other movements

Recoveries of loans
previously written-off

Unwinding of discount

Write-offs

(68)

85

91 8
(48)

155
@24

362
(1,181)

911
12
(734)

32
61
22

(17)

461
1,245)

911
12-
(734)

As at December 31, 2019

60 12

476

548
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired) credit-
impaired
(POCY)
Small loans to customers ,
As at January 1, 2019 1 24 132 - 157
Transfer from Stage 1 to
Stage 2 (13) 23 - - | 10
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 1 13 @27 - - (14)
Transfer from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 - 21 27 - 6
Transfer from Stage 3 to
Stage 2 - I 4) - 3)
New financial instruments
originated or purchased 42 - 28 - 70
Other movements 24) 2 (648) - (670) !
Recoveries of loans
previously written-off - - 601 - 601
Unwinding of discount - - 5 - 5
Write-offs - - (76) - (76)
As at December 31, 2019 19 2 65 - 86
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired)
Large loans to customers
As at January 1, 2018 13 742 1,066 1,821
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 N 15 - 8
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 3 (14) - (11)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (424) 501 77
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 4 N 3)
New financial instrument originated or
purchased 3 69 65 137
Other movements (12) 210) (2,048) (2,270)
Recoveries of loans previously written-
off - - 2,441 2,441
Unwinding of discount (recognized in ,
interest income) - - 56 56
Write-offs - - (1,099) (1,099)
As at December 31,2018 - 182 975 1,157
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL-impaired)

Small loans to customers
As at January 1, 2018 4 169 265 438
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (H 2 - 1
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - 3) - (3)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (105) 135 30
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 2 4) (2)
New financial instrument

originated or purchased 2 13 3 18
Other movements (4) (54) (552) 610)
Recoveries of loans previously

written-off - - 824 824
Unwinding of discount

(recognized in interest income) - - - -
Write-offs - - (539) (539)
As at December 31, 2018 1 24 132 157

The tables below show the credit quality analysis of the Company’s loans to customers as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018. Explanation of the terms 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL is disclosed

in Note 21. Credit quality in the table below is based on the scale developed internally by (the
Company. The scale is described in Note 21.
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL- credit-
impaired) impaired
(POCI)

Large loans to

customers
Current 3,697 - 7 30 3,734
Past due 1-30 days 23 35 2 18 78
Past due 31-60 days - 15 2 11 28
Past due 61-90 days - 11 2 4 17
Past due more than

90 days - - 525 57 382
Total gross loans

to customers 3,720 61 538 120 4,439
Less: Expected credit

losses (60) (12) (476) - (548)
Total net loans to

customers as at

December 31,

2019 3,660 49 62 120 3,891
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dolfars, unless otherwise indicated)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased or Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime originated
ECL) ECL) ECL- credit-
impaired) impaired
POCI)
Small loans to
customers
Current 3,115 - - 24 3,139
Past due 1-30 days 4 34 1 10 49
Past due 31-60 days - 8 1 4 13
Past due 61-90 days - 8 1 6 15
Past due more than
90 days - - 73 61 134
Total gross loans
to customers 3,119 50 76 105 3,350
Less: Expected credit
losses (19) (2) (65) - 86)
Total net loans to
customers as at
December 31,
2019 3,100 48 i1 105 3,264
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months (lifetime (lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL- \
impaired) |
Large loans to customers
Current 4 574 - 578
Past due 1-30 days - 245 - 245
Past due 31-60 days - 99 - D9
Past due 61-90 days - 88 44 182
Past due more than 90 days - - 1,923 1,923
Total gross loans to
customers 4 1,006 1,967 2,977
Less: Expected credit losses - (182) (975) (1,1537)
Total net loans to customers
as at December 31, 2018 4 824 992 1,820
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total |

(12-months (lifetime (lifetime ;i

ECL) ECL) ECL-

impaired) ‘,

Small loans to customers [
Current 140 67 - 2QZ7
Past due 1-30 days 1 52 - 33
Past due 31-60 days - 28 - 2;8
Past due 61-90 days - 13 - 13
Past due more than 90 days - - 288 2$8

Total gross loans to |
customers 141 160 288 589
Less: Expected credit losses (1) (24) (132) (157)

Total net loans to customers t
as at December 31, 2018 140 136 156 432

i

'

Collateralization of loans. The table below summarizes carrying value of loans to customels
analyzed by type of collateral obtained by the Company:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Unsecured loans 2,727 632
Loans collateralized by guarantee 4,889 24309
Loans collateralized by pledge of inventories 92 282
Loans collateralized by pledge of real estate 41 235
Loans collateralized by pledge equipment 20 55
Loans collateralized by pledge of motor vehicles 16 | 44
Loans collateralized by households 4 i 9
i
Gross loans to customers 7,789 31566
Less: allowance for expected credit loss (634) (1,314)
Total loans to customers, net 7,155 2,252
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
9. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Office Total right-pf-
buildings use assets
At initial cost
January 1, 2019 270 270
Additions 228 228
December 31, 2019 498 498
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2019 - -
Depreciation charge (147) 147)
December 31, 2019 (147) (147)
Net book value
December 31, 2019 351 351
January 1, 2019 270 270
10. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets comprise:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Other financial assets:
Settlement receivables 46 -
Other financial assets - 11
Total other financial assets 46 11
Other non-financial assets:
Prepayments for services 97 53
Prepaid taxes other than income tax 75 117
Repossessed collaterals* 52 91
Prepaid rents - 26
Total other non-financial assets 224 287
Total other assets 270 298
*As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair value of repossessed collaterals approximates to
USD 52 thousand and USD 91 thousand, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2019 the
Company recognized loss on change of fair value of repossessed collaterals in the amount of USD 39
thousand (2018: nil).
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

11.

Residential property
Business property

Total repossessed collaterals

December 31,

[
i

December 3!1,

2019 2018
42 71
10 20
52 91

i

i
;

Management of the Company intends to sell these assets, however no active program to locaﬁe a
buyer and complete plan have been initiated as at the date of report.

BORROWED FUNDS

Loan from Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan

Total borrowed funds

December 31}',,

December 31, ’
2019 2018
4,138 -
4,138 -

The Company received borrowings from CBAR in the amount of USD 5,295 thousand with annual
interest rate of 0.1% per annum for 5 years under the Decree. The interest rate of borrowibgs
received from the CBAR for the purpose of financing the restructured loans were below market rate
as at the date of origination, therefore the Company recognized gain in the amount of USD 1,131
thousand at initial recognition of these borrowings. The fair value of these borrowings at mljpal

recognition was USD 4,164 thousand.

In accordance with the agreement signed between the Company and the Ministry of Finance

of

Azerbaijan who act as a guarantor on behalf of the Republic of Azerbaijan, the Company pald a

guarantee fee in the amount of 0.5% of received borrowings.

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of borrowed funds with relevant cash and n
cash changes from financing activities is stated below:

January 1, 2018
Cash flows
Repayment

Non-cash changes
Interest expense
Other changes

December 31, 2018
Cash flows

Proceeds
Transaction costs paid

Non-cash changes
Fair value adjustment at initial recognition

December 31, 2019
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59

(6,54
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. LEASE LIABILITIES

December 31, January 1, December 31,
2019 2019 2018
i
Current lease liabilities 182 80 -
Non-current lease liabilities 173 165 -
Total lease liabilities 355 245 -
Future minimum lease payments as at January 1, 2019 were as follows:
Minimum lease payments due !
i
Within one One to five Total |
year years [
[
Lease payments 104 177 281
Finance charges (24) (12) (36)
Net present value as at January 1, 2019 80 165 245
Future minimum lease payments as at December 31, 2019 were as follows: ‘
Minimum lease payments due |
Within one One to five Total
year years
Lease payments 211 192 403
Finance charges (29) (19) 48)
Net present value as at December 31, 2019 182 173 355

i

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of lease liabilities with relevant cash and non-

cash changes from financing activities is stated below:

Amoun

January 1, 2019

Cash flows
Repayment of principal
Interest paid

Non-cash changes
New leases
Interest expense

December 31, 2019

t

(92)
_(34)

1202
| 34
355
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

13. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities comprise:

i

i
|

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 |
Other financial liabilities: :
Payable to employees 232 140
Professional service fee payable 100 112
Service fee payable to a related party 45 23
Compensation payables to customers 22 |-
Severance payable to employees - 24
Others 14 E 3
b
Total other financial liabilities 413 bOZ
I
Other non-financial liabilities:
Taxes other than income tax payable 11 81
Others 52 50
Total other non-financial liabilities 63 131
Total other liabilities 476 433
14. NET INTEREST INCOME
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
i
Interest income on finaneial assets recorded at amortized cost {
- interest income from loans to customers 962 5§9
- interest income from deposit placed with bank 54 | -
Total interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized 1,016 5[69

Interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
- interest expense on lease liabilities (34)

- interest expense on borrowed funds - (566)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at
amortized cost 34) (566)
Net interest income 982
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 {Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

15. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative and other operating expenses comprise the following items:

i

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 3:'1,

2019 2018
Wages and salaries 1,447 D67
Allowances, incentives and other benefits 412 481
Compulsory social security obligations 275 B35
Depreciation and amortization 203 148
Professional fees 157 U,91
Consumables and office supply 89 18
IT professional fees 79 77
Communication expenses 69 ‘ 55
Business trip expenses 54 t39
Marketing expenses 41 8
Bank charges 39 145
Taxes, other than income tax 22 F 3
Vehicle running costs 13 [ 5
Rent expenses 1 139
Others 27 13
Total administrative and other operating expenses 2,928 2,744

16. INCOME TAXES

The Company measures and records its current income tax payable and its tax bases in its assets and
liabilities in accordance with the tax regulations of the Republic of Azerbaijan where the Compény

operates, which may differ from 1IFRS.

The Company is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility| of

certain expenses and certain income being treated as non-taxable for tax purposes.

|

!

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.

Temporary differences as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 relate mostly to different methods/timing

of income and expense recognition as well as to temporary differences generated by tax — bcgok

bases’ differences for certain assets.

[
[

The tax rate used for the reconciliations below is the corporate tax rate of 20% payable by corporate
entities in the Republic of Azerbaijan on taxable profits (as defined) under tax law in that

jurisdiction.

41
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Loans to customers, net

Tax loss carried forward

Other assets

Property and equipment and intangible assets
Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowed funds

Provision for tax losses

Right-of-use assets

Not recognized deferred tax asset

Net deferred income tax asset

December 31,

December 31,
2019 2018 |

693 81
592 344
134 187
113 125
81 28
71 -

(226)

(200) (100)
(70)

(865) (21 3)
323

3&7

F

When estimating the deductible difference for loans to customers the Company has analyzed L[he

following circumstances:

® in accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan impairment loss for a loaﬂ: to

customer is a non-deductible expense;

e losses arising from sale of loan to customer is a deductible expense;

e  the Company plans to start selling its non-performing loans to third parties and it is cmrently

developing respective strategies.

The effective tax rate reconciliation is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 201 8;

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate (20%)
Change in not recognized deferred income tax assets
Tax effect of permanent differences

Income tax (expense)/benefit
Deferred income tax (expense)/benefit

Income tax (expense)/benefit

As at year beginning — deferred income tax assets
Change in deferred income tax balances

As at year end — deferred income tax assets

42

Year ended Year end64
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
6,592 (93)
(1,318) 19
(647) 362
1,891 (205)
(74) 176
(74) 176
(74) 176
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
397 221
(74) 176
323 397




“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated) :

17. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

|

Related parties or transactions with related parties, as defined by IAS 24 “Related party discl osures
represent:

()
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

69
g

(h)

Parties that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries: control, or are controlled
by, or are under common control with, the Company (this includes parents, subsidiaries and [
fellow subsidiaries); have an interest in the Company that gives then significant influence over
the Company; and that have joint control over the Company;

Associates — enterprises on which the Company has significant influence and which is nelther a
subsidiary nor a joint venture of the investor;

Joint ventures in which the Company is a venture;

Members of key management personnel of the Company or its parent;

Close members of the family of any individuals referred to in (a) or (d);

Parties that are entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for wlnch
51g111ﬁcant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual refexred
to in (d) or (e); or

Post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of employees of the Company, or of any enttxty
that is a related party of the Company.

i

The Company’s policy does not allow issuing loans to employees, board members, their family
members and close relatives, and other persons involved in the management, control or supervision of

the

Company. The Company had the following transactions outstanding as at December 31, 2019 and

2018 with related parties:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 |
Related party Total category Related party Total categpry
balances as per financial balances as per financial

statements statements

caption caption[‘
Other liabilities 476 433

- Parent 45 23 |

|
i
»

Included in the statement of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 201 8
are the following amounts which arose due to transactions with related parties: ,

Year ended Year ended :

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 g
Related party Total category Related party Total categ&ry
transactions as per financial transactions as per financial
statements statementf
caption caption !
Key management personnel }
compensation 2,134 1,803
- short-term employee benefits 450 768 !
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

18.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, Pecember 31,
2019 2018

Related party  Total category Related party Total categtry
transactions as per financial transactions as per financial

statements statemen s
caption caption |
Administrative and other
operating expenses (excluding f
staff related costs) 794 941
- the Parent 108 99 i

|

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balahce
sheet risk in order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees
of credit risk, are not reflected in the statement of financial position. '
The Company’s uses the same credit control and management policies in undertaking off-balapce
sheet commitments as it does for on-balance operations.

The Company is received from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no
material un-accrued losses will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these
financial statements. |

Taxation — Laws and regulations affecting business in the Republic of Azerbaijan continue to change
rapidly. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the activity of the Company
may be challenged by the relevant regional authorities. Recent events suggest that the tax authorities
are taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments and as a
result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past ma}) be
challenged. Fiscal periods generally remain open to tax audit by the authorities in respect of taxes}for
three calendar years preceding the year of tax audit. Under certain circumstances reviews may coi\/er
longer periods. |
The taxation system in the Republic of Azerbaijan continues to evolve and is characterized|by
frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes
contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to
review and investigation by a number of authorities who have the authority to impose severe fines,
penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during the
three subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open
longer. Recent events within the Azerbaijan Republic suggest that the tax authorities are taking a
more assertive position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation. E
?
These circumstances may create tax risks in Azerbaijan that are substantially more significant than in

other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its
interpretations of applicable Azerbaijan tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisiéns.
However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on the ﬁnan’?ial
statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be signiﬁcan‘f.

i
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued) i

(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

19. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to tlansfér a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. |

Fair value hierarchy

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects |the

significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data. i

Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the valuaéion
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valped
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Company had no financial instruments measured at fair valué.

I . 5
The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value End
analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measuremen
categorized.

15

Fair value measurement using

45

|
Date of valuation Quoted prices Significant Significant ‘Total

in active observable unobservable l

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) |

Assets for which fair values :

are disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents December 31, 2019 7,722 - - : 7,722
Loans to customers, net December 31, 2019 - - 7,155 ' 7,155
Other financial assets December 31, 2019 - - 46 46

Liabilities for which fair f

values are disclosed ?
Borrowed funds December 31, 2019 - - 4,138 | 4,138
Lease liabilities December 31, 2019 - - 355 3 355
Other financial liabilities December 31, 2019 - - 413 413



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued) ‘
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Fair value measurement using ;

Date of valuation Quoted prices Significant Significant { Total
in active observable unobservable .
markets inputs inputs %
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) f
Assets for which fair values
are disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents December 31, 2018 1,881 - - 1,881
Loans to customers, net December 31, 2018 - - 2,252 2,252
Other financial assets December 31, 2018 - - 11 11
Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed
Other financial liabilities December 31, 2018 - - 302 302

20.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Comparly’s
financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. The table
does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or having a short term maturity (less than
three months) it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumpﬁion
is also applied to demand deposits, without a specific maturity and variable rate financial instruments.

Fixed and variable rate financial instruments

For quoted debt instruments the fair values are determined based on quoted market prices. The fau
values of unquoted debt instruments are estimated by dlscountmg future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a gol'ng
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and eqjlty
balance. According to the verdict # 01/2 para 4.3.1 of the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbagan
dated on January 21, 2015 and the requirement of the Financial Markets Supervision Chamber, the
Company has to meet the minimum regulatory total capital requirement of AZN 300 thousand.

Management’s focus in respect of the Company’s capital management has the following objectlves
ensuring the Company’s ability to operate as a gomg concern and maintain balances in orden to
comply with covenants of lenders and investors. This is exercised daily in respect of the prOJecfted
and actual data and on the basis of monthly reports with the corresponding calculations that ‘are
verified and signed by the management board and chief accountant of the Company.
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21.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the Company’s banking business and is an essential element
of the Company’s operations. '

The main risks inherent to the Company’s operations are those related to:

e  Credit exposures;
o  Liquidity risk;
e  Market risk.

The Company recognizes that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk managem}ant
processes in place. To enable this, the Company has established a risk management flamewq1k
whose main purpose is to protect the Company from risk and allow it to achieve its performargce
objectives. ,

Structure of risk management. The Management Board is ultimately responsible for identifyjna
and controlling risks; however, there are separate independent bodies responsible for managing and
monitoring risks.

Management board. The Management Board is responsible for the overall risk management
approach and for approving the risk strategies and principles.

Audit committee. On a quarterly basis, the Audit Committee examines reports related to risk isspes
presented by Internal Audit and follows measures undertaken by the management to resolve
discovered issues. The Audit Committee is also involved in discussion of findings discovered| by
external auditors. f

Other Committees. In order to provide additional measures in terms of risk management, permanbnt

working committees are created within the Company: ;

o Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALMC”) — the committee reviews every mo%’xth
the projected liquidity for the following 12 months. Liquidity forecasts are based on expec'ted
loan disbursement levels, expected funding plans and other expected cash movements. ALMC
takes decisions related to new borrowings, sets open currency position and counterparty lilmts
for operations with banks and financial institutions, monitors covenants with lenders, examines
issues related to maturities of assets and liabilities, and gives recommendations to the Finapce
Department concerning the elimination of divergences.

e  Credit Departments — the departments evaluate quality of loans of the Company and prep
recommendations concerning allowances for impairment and provisions. Credit Departm, agnt
supervises the realization of methodology concerning credit risk management, takes measu]‘res
towards credit risk minimization and makes decisions concerning operations bearing credit risk.
This department places credit limits for branches, performs analysis and controls credit risk. l

Finance department. Finance department is responsible for day-to-day management of assets and
liabilities of the Company, computation and planning of liquidity position of the Company,
redistribution of cash and cash equivalents between operating sites of the Company. The Finance
Department controls the application of limits and liquidity ratios set by ALMC and the
implementation of decisions taken by ALMC in regard to liquidity risk optimisation.

Internal audit. Internal Audit performs an independent review of the risk management process,
informs management about the revealed shortcomings, and gives appropriate recommendations
concerning the improvement of the risk management process.
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Risk measurement and reporting systems. The choice of the risk management method depend% on
risk factors, which determine the relative importance or probability of the risks, which may adversely
affect the financial position of the Company. The Company not only analyses and measures each risk
separately, but also determines the level of cumulative risks. Thus, for each kind of risk, \“the
following methods of risk measurement are applied:

credit risk analysis of a credit portfolio and credit risk ratios; ;
off-balance sheet risk; ‘
interest-rate risk maturity and interest rate gap analysis of assets and liabilities;
liquidity risk gap analysis of payments in local and foreign currencies; analysis of llqu1dity
ratios, determination of liquidity reserve; {
currency risk gap analysis of payments in foreign currency; analysis of currency position;
e  operational risk for all operations having impact on the Company’s financial position, systems
assuring separation of activities (such as initiation, execution and control) necessary for ithe
finalisation of operations have been implemented.

e

Risk measurement methods reflect expected loss, which the Company might incur when performing
its activities. Every month, based on the analysis of the separate risks, the Finance Department
prepares conclusions concerning the current state of the risks, and their main drivers.

In particular, at the monthly ALMC, the status of the interest rate, liquidity, currency, and other
market risks are reported.

The status of functional risks (operational — technological, legal, strategic, reputation risk) is 1so
reported to Management Board each month. These reports are examined at the Management Bo d
and Audit Committee meetings held each quarter.

Risk mitigation. The Company uses the following methods, inter alia, for risk minimisation:

e  Reception of guarantees and collateral for credit risk mitigation;
® Diversification — selection of assets, which are not connected between each other.

Credit risk
Credit risk measurement for loans to customers

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the usg of
models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the
passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations a§ to
the likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between
counterparties. For risk management reporting purposes, the Company considers and consohddtes
loan size as an element of credit risk exposure. The Company measures credit risk using Probablhty
of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the
approach used for the purposes of measuring ECL under IFRS 9.

Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since 1n1’t1a1
recognition as summarized below: ~

o A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classu‘ied in
‘Stage 1° and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Company;
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o Ifa SIgmﬁcant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the ﬁnanblal
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired;

e Ifthe financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage l3’

e Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months
[nstruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifetime basis;

e A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consgder
forward-looking information;

e Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are creﬁlt—
impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased signiﬁcali,tly
since initial recognition, the- Company considers reasonable and supportable information thaz is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment
and including forward-looking information. The objective of the assessment is to identify whethér a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

e The remaining lifetime PD as at the reporting date; with
e The remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of 1111‘;131
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).|

The Company uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant i mcrease in
credit risk:

e (Quantitative test based on movement in PD;
e Forbearance status; and
e A backstop of 30 days past due.

“Forbearance™ occurs upon restructuring, i.e. prolongation in payment terms of payment of interest
or principal arising from a deterioration of a borrower’s financial condition such that it is not the
same as it was at the time of loan origination and a borrower has applied for a change in the payment
schema of the loan. Restructuring only occurs when the appropriate division of the Company is
reasonably confident that a borrower is able to service the renewed payment schedule.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the PD at initial recognition and at
subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different PD. It is the
weighting of these different scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average PD that is used to
determine whether credit risk has significantly increased. Forward-looking information includes the
future prospects of Azerbaijan economy obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration of
various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic information. |

Definition of default l

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in
measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-
month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects
both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.
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The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default: E

e  The contract is past due more than 90 days; or ’,

e  The credit obligations reflected in the contract is unlikely to be paid to the Company in full.
The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different ty&aes
of assets. When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes
into account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. Quantitative indicators, such as ovelgue
status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in J(hls
analysis. The Company uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are elﬁhel
developed internally or obtained from external sources.

The following diagram summarizes the impairment requirements under IFRS 9 (other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets): ;

i
¢

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase (Credit-impaired !
in credit risk since assets) '
initial recognition)
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
credit losses credit losses credit losses

Credit-impaired assets in Stage 3 undergo a probatlonary period of 6 months after the material cr@dlt
obligations of the Contract are met before moving to Stage 2. '

Write-off '
When periodic collective historical recovery analysis indicates that the Company does not exp[ect
significant additional recoveries after certain months in default (“MID”), it is the policy of }(he
Company to write-off loans on a collective basis. ‘f

Amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the reporting period and are émll
subject to enforcement activity is USD 810 thousand. 3

Grouping with similar credit risk characteristics
Financial assets are split into three segments for the purposes of PD calculation:

o  Small (for loan amounts up to USD 2,000); :
o Large (for loan amounts greater than USD 2,001). {

|
The segments above reflect the level of assessment of client creditworthiness, with the large segment
exhibiting a comparatively stricter assessment. The historical default rate is utilized as an mdlcartor
of strictness, such that the difference in default rates is maximized between the segments.

Rating Model
All available information (product groups, industries, etc.) are used to derive internal ratings for each

segment. In such a way groups with the same risk characteristics are created and used aﬁerward to
adjust the PD curve of the segment.
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Significant increase in credit risk

The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk when the remaining Lifetime PD at the reporting date has increased by 20%, compared to lthe
residual Lifetime PD expected at the reporting date when the exposure was first recognized.

The following table shows the impact on the December 31, 2019 and 2018 ECL allowance of
changing the PD thresholds for SICR. Increases in ECL (posmve amounts) represent hldher

impairment allowances that would be recognized.

Impact on December 31, 2019

ECL
ECL sensitivity on the threshold
for PD change '
Actual Change Change Lower No laher
threshold in in threshold  change thre%;hold
applied threshold  threshold
(%) (+%) (-%)
SMALL 150 36
LARGE 150 548
Impact on December 31, 2018
ECL
ECL sensitivity on the threshold
for PD change
Actual Change Change Lower No Higher
threshold in in threshold change threshold
applied threshold  threshold
(%) (+%) (-%)
SMALL 200 157
LARGE 200 1,157

Measurement of ECL
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

e Probability of default (PD);
e Loss given default (LGD);
e Exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other
historical data. i

Probability of default (PDD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as ﬁaer
“Definition of default and credit-impaired™ above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD) or o*ver
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. ,

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The matumy
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout
the lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to
be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by hlstorfcal
analysis.
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Probability of Default is modeled by survival function, which is based on hazard rates.

Hazard rates are obtained by Cox proportional-hazards model, which is a semi-parametric model, it
uses assumed simple form for effect of covariates and the exact value of free parameters is estlmarlted
with partial likelihood. The baseline is obtained by non-parametrical methods. A macroeconomic
overlay can be directly included into the hazard function through a time-dependent variable. Frpm
obtained hazard rates, then Point-in-Time (“PiT”) PD is derived, i.e. marginal PDs assigned tb a
respective date. k

Observation period for modeling cox hazard rates is 5 years.
Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 that would result from

reasonably possible changes in the macroeconomic parameter from the actual assumptions used in
the Company’s economic variable assumptions.

2019
Macro parameter used GDP
% change of macro parameter for the
sensitivity test  50%
+50% No change -50%
SMALL 85 86 87
LARGE 547 548 349
Total 632 634 636
2018
Macro parameter used GDP
% change of macro parameter for the
sensitivity test  50%
+50% No change -50%
SMALL 157 157 158
LARGE 1,156 1,157 1,158
Total 1,313 1,314 1,316

Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. "I[Lhe
LGD model considers cash recoveries only. LGD is calculated on a discounted cash flow basis usi,ng
the EIR as the discounting factor. »

Secured loans utilize collateral values, whereas unsecured and guaranteed loans are using recovéry
rates.

i

[
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Exposure at default (EAD)

|

r

t
EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the niext

12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

Incorporation of forward-looking information

i
i

[

The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the

credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and !its

measurement of ECL.

The Company has identified and documented the key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for the
portfolio using an analysis of historical data, has assessed the impact of macro-economic variables
on PD and recovery rate. The macro-economic variable which was involved in the analysis is a real

growth rate of GDP.

Maximum exposure of credit risk. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk varies

significantly and is dependent on both individual risks and general market economy risks.

|
|2

[

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance
sheet financial assets. For financial assets in the balance sheet, the maximum exposure is equal to
the carrying amount of those assets prior to any offset or collateral. The Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk under contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit, in the event of
non-performance by the other party where all counterclaims, collateral or security prove valueléss,

is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.

Maximum exposure of credit risk table is as below:

|
|

Maximum Collateral Net |

exposure pledged exposure|
December 31,2019 E
Cash at banks 7,646 - 7’6146
Loans to customers 7,155 - 7,1&55
Other financial assets 46 - 146
'
December 31, 2018
Cash at banks 1,825 - 1,%25
Loans to customers 2,252 - 2,252
Other financial assets 11 -

11

Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements

[

The Company closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired,
as it becomes more likely that the Company will take possession of collateral to mitigate poten{ial
credit losses. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mltlg te

potential losses are shown below:

Gross Loss Amortized Fair valie

carrying allowance Cost of
December 31, 2019 amount collateral
Loan portfolio in default (Stage 3)
Small loans 76 (65) 11 -
Large loans 538 (476) 62 -
Total 614 (541) 73 -
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[

;

Gross Loss Amortized Fair valéle
carrying allowance Cost of ;
December 31, 2018 amount collateral
Loan portfolio in default (Stage 3)
Small loans 288 (132) 156 -
Large loans 1,967 (975) 992 Lo
Total 2,255 1,107) 1,148 P

|

The following tables stratify credit exposures from loans to customers by ranges of loan-to-value
(LTV) ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the loan — or the amolhnt
committed for loan commitments — to the value of the collateral. The valuation of the collatc%ral

excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling the collateral.

The following table shows the distribution of LTV ratios for
portfolio of small loans:

the Company’s credit—impai:red

i

2019 !
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfoli(:)
(stage 3) :
Gross carrying Loss Gross carrying Loss |
Loan to Value (LTV) ratio amount allowance amount allowange
No Collateral 3,350 (86) 76 tGS)
Total 3,350 (86) 76 (65)

[

2018 |
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio
(stage 3) :
Gross carrying Loss Gross carrying Loss |
Loan to Value (LTV) ratio amount allowance amount allowanae
No Collateral 589 (157) 288 (132)
Total 589 (157) 288 (132)

The following table shows the distribution of LTV ratios for
portfolio of large loans:

the Company’s credit-impai?ed

2019 ‘
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio |
(stage 3) 9
Gross carrying Loss Gross carrying Loss
Loan to Value (LTV) ratio amount allowance amount allowance%
No Collateral 4,439 (548) 538 (476)
Total 4,439 (548) 538 (4'}'6)

54



“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

2018 ,
Total loan portfolio Credit impaired loan portfolio |
(stage 3)
Gross carrying Loss Gross carrying Loss
Loan to Value (LTV) ratio amount allowance amount allowancq
No Collateral 2,977 (1,157) 1,967 (975)
Total 2,977 (1,157) 1,967 (975)

Off-balance sheet risk. The Company applies fundamentally the same risk management policies for
off-balance sheet risks as it does for its on-balance sheet risks. In the case of commitments to lend,

customers and counterparties will be subject to the same credit management policies as for loans and
advances. Collateral may be sought depending on the strength of the counterparty and the nature of
the transaction.

Geographical concentration. The geographical concentration of the Company’s financial assets and

liabilities as at December 31, 2019 is set out below:

The Republic of OECD Non-OECD Total
Azerbaijan countries countries
Cash and cash equivalents 7,722 - - 7,722
Loans to customers, net 7,155 - - 7,155
Other financial assets 46 - - 46
Total financial assets 14,923 - - 14,923
Borrowed funds 4,138 _ - - 4,138
Lease liabilities 355 - - 335
Other financial liabilities 304 107 2 413
Total financial liabilities 4,797 107 2 4,9(‘;)6
Net position 10,126 (107) ) 10,017

The geographical concentration of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at December 31

2018 is set out below:

The Republic of OECD Non-OECD Total
Azerbaijan countries countries
Cash and cash equivalents 1,642 239 - 1,881
Loans to customers, net 2,252 - - 2,252
Other financial assets 11 - - 11
Total financial assets 3,905 239 - 4,144
T
Borrowed funds - - -
Other financial liabilities 202 76 24 3q2
Total financial liabilities 202 76 24 3342
Net position 3,703 163 24) 3,842
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Market risk. Market risk is that the risk that the Company's earnings or capital or its ability to 1ﬁeet
business objectives will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market 1ates or
prices.

Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk, credit spreads, commodity prices and equity
prices that the Company is exposed to. There have been no changes as to the way the Company
measures risk or to the risk it is exposed or the manner in which these risks are managed and
measured.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risks as entities in the Company borrow funds at both fixed
and floating rates. The risk is managed by the Company maintaining an appropriate mix betw&en
fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The ALMC also manages interest rate and market risks by matching the Company’s interest tate
position, which provides the Company with a positive interest margin. The Finance Department
conducts monitoring of the Company’s current financial performance, estimates the Company s
sensitivity to changes in interest rates and its influence on the Company’s profitability.

Some of the Company’s financial liabilities that bear interest are either variable or contain clauses
enabling the interest rate to be changed at the option of the lender. The Company monitors its intetest
rate margin and consequently does not consider itself exposed to significant interest rate I‘lSk or
consequential cash flow risk. :

Currency risk. Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctyate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The ALMC controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated basis of
USD fluctuation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Company an opportunity to
minimize losses from significant currency rates fluctuations toward its national currency.

The Company is exposed to effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows.

As at December 31, 2019, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk 1s as

follows:
AZN USDh EUR Total

Cash and cash equivalents 6,688 1,034 - 7, 722
Loans to customers, net 7,127 28 - 7, 155
Other financial assets 46 - - 46
Total financial assets 13,861 1,062 - 14,923
Borrowed funds 4,138 - - 4,138
Lease liabilities 3355 - - 355
Other financial liabilities 399 14 - 413
Total financial liabilities 4,892 14 - 4,9;06
OPEN POSITION 8,969 1,048 - 10,0ﬁl7
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As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk 19, as

follows:
AZN USb EUR Total

Cash and cash equivalents 401 1,478 2 1,881
Loans to customers, net 1,918 334 - 2,252
Other financial assets 11 - - It
Total financial assets 2,330 1,812 2 4,1%14
Borrowed funds - - - -
Other financial liabilities 202 100 - 302
Total financial liabilities 202 100 - 362
OPEN POSITION 2,128 1,712 2 3,842

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the AZN
against the relevant foreign currencies as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 10% is ithe
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange

rates.
2019 '
Effect on profit Effect on
or loss before equity
taxation ﬁ
USD appreciation by 10% 105 84
USD depreciation by 10% (105) (84)
2018 ,,
Effect on profit Effect on;
or loss before equity
taxation :
USD appreciation by 10% 171 137
USD depreciation by 10% (171) (137)

Interest rate risk. Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect
the fair value of the financial instruments or the future cash flows on financial instruments. The
Company’s interest rate policy is reviewed periodically by the Management Board in order to place
and attract funds based on market conditions. Interest rate risk is managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps.

The Company manages fair value interest rate risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that
could arise from adverse changes in market conditions. The Finance Department conducts monitoring of
the Company’s current financial performance, estimates the Company’s sensitivity to changes in fa1r
value interest rates and its influence on the Company’s profitability.
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The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. A 50 (0.5%) basis points increase or decreiase
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and xepresents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (0.5%) basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant
the Company’s:

2019 2018
Effect on profit Effect on Effect on profit Effect on
or loss before equity or loss before equity
taxation taxation 1
Interest rate increase on 0.5% 28 22 1 9
Interest rate decrease on 0.5% (28) (22) (1D (9

Limitations of sensitivity analysis. The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key
assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the
assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or
smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements
to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Company’s view of possible near-term market
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty; and the assumption that all interest rates move
in an identical fashion.

Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet financial
commitments associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due. In order to manage
liquidity risk, the Company performs daily monitoring of existing cash balances and monthly
analysis of future expected cash flows on clients” and other financial operations, which is a part of
assets/liabilities management process.
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATIOr;l

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
Credit ratings analysis. The following table details credit ratings of financial assets held by the
Company that are neither past due nor impaired: |
December 31,2019 BB- B1 Ba3 Ba2 Not rated Total
Cash at banks 6,577 34 744 - 291 7,646
Loans to customers, net - - - - 7,155 7,155
Other financial assets - - - 46 - . 46
i
December 31, 2018 AA- B3 Ba3 Ba2 Not rated Total
Cash at banks 239 52 1,499 - 35 ,825
Loans to customers, net - - - - 2,252 2,252
Other financial assets - - - - 11 11

i
The Company enters into numerous transactions where the counterparties are not rated| by
international rating agencies. The Company has developed internal models, which allow it to
determine the rating of counterparties, which are comparable to rating of international rating
agencies. ;
b
A model of the borrower’s scoring assessment has been developed in the Company to assess and
decide on loans customers. The scoring model is developed relating to loan products and includes
key performance indicators of borrowers: financial situation, relations with the borrower,
management quality, target use, location, credit history, collateral, etc. ‘

The scoring assessment based on the borrower’s parameters is one of the main factors for [the
decision-making process relating to loans. ‘

A methodology of evaluation of borrowers is based on following criteria: education, occupancy,
financial position, credit history, property owned by the borrower. Based on information obtained the
maximum limit of a loan is calculated. The maximum limit of a loan is calculated using a ratia of
debt pressure on a borrower. ;

Financial assets other than loans to customers are graded according to the current credit rating they
have been issued by an internationally regarded agency such as Fitch, Standard & Poor’s and
Moody’s be advised that rating titles and therefore rating meanings are different from agency to
agency. The highest possible rating is AAA. Investment grade financial assets have ratings from
AAA to BBB. Financial assets which have ratings lower than BBB are classed as speculative grade.

Operational risk. Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fré;iud
or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation,
have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect? to
eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework
. . . . . . . . b
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of dutjes,
access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes. !
|
‘,
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE f

On January 31, 2020 the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan decided to reduce ithe
refinancing rate from 7.50% to 7.25%, the ceiling of the interest rate corridor from 9.25% to 9.00%
and the floor from 5.75% to 5.50%.
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“FINCA AZERBAIJAN” LIMITED LIABILITY NON-BANKING CREDIT ORGANIZATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

In late 2019 the coronavirus outbreak occurred in Wuhan, China. The situation at December 31, 2
was limited in number of reported cases and geography and therefore this event was considerec
non-adjusted event for the financial reporting purposes under IFRS. However, after January 2020

019
I as
the

situation changed drastically, and in March 2020 the World Health Organization (WHO) announced

that the coronavirus outbreak can be characterized as a pandemic.

Many governments, including the government of the Republic of Azerbaijan have introduced varitous

measures to combat the outbreak, including travel restrictions, quarantines, closure of business

other venues and lockdown of certain area. These measures have affected the global supply Chailrl as

well as demand for goods and services and resulted in significant disruption to business operati
and a significant increase in economic uncertainty, with more volatile asset prices and curre
exchange rates, and a marked decline in long-term interest rates in developed economies. Th
government responses and their corresponding effects are still evolving.

In addition to slowdown in world economy, oil prices have declined dramatically after OPEC

Russia were unable to agree on production cuts at their March 2020 meeting. These events

conditions create a level of uncertainty and risk that companies may not have encountered beft
and may result in significant financial reporting implications.
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Currently, the management is working on action plans under different scenarios of future
developments. The Company management estimates that if the current situation does not improve in

the nearest future, the Company might go to certain loan restructuring with their customers.

4
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